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Commissioner

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION
25 Hall Street
Concord, N.H. 03301
_TEL..(603) 271-3495
FAX (603) 271-1953

July 25, 2024

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council.

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

'REQUESTED ACTION

Authonze the Department of Educat1on ‘Bureau of Vocational Rehabilitation (VR) to exercisé the
contract renewal on an existing sole source contract with Granite State Independent Living (GSIL)

Concord, NH, (vendor #155330) to provide the “Inspiring the Mastery of
Postsecondary Achievement in ‘College, Careers & Training” (IMPACCT) program in five
regions of NH, by increasing the price limitation by $1, 272,042 from $1,272,040 to $2,544,082
and extending the completion date from August 31, 2024 to- August 31, 2025 effective upon
Governor and Council approval. The original contract was approved by Governor and Council
on November 29, 2023, item #92, and amended on March 27, 2024, item #65 100% Federal
Funds.

Funds are available in the following account in Fiscal Year 2025 and are anticipated to be available-
in -Fiscal Year 2026 upon the availability and continued appropriation of funds' in the
future operating budget, -with the authority to adjust budget line items within the price
limitation and encumbrances between Fiscal Years through the Budget Office, if needed and
justified.

06-56-56-565010-2538000 VR Field Programs-Federal

Fiscal | Class/Account Class Title Current Increase Revised
| . Year Budget Amount _ Budget
2024 603-504150 VR Clients $848.027 30 $348.027
2025 | 603-504150 VR Clients $424.013 $848,028 $1,272,041
2026 603-504150 VR Clients - %0 ' $424,014 $424,014
Total $1,272,040 $1.272,042 $2,544,082

TDD Access: Relay NH 711
EQUAL QPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER- EQUAL EDUCATIONAL OPPORTUNITIES



His Excéllency, Governor Christophér T: Sununu
and the Honorable Council
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EXPLANATION

The request is sole source because the agreement became sole source in a subsequent iteration,

When initially implemented, the IMPACCT program was awarded through an RFP process in
2016. Since that time; GSIL has continued to run a-successful student program. This request is to
continue funding the “Inspiring the Mastery of Postsecondary Achievement in College
Careers & Training” (IMPACCT) Pre-Employment Transition Service (Pre-ETS) program,
‘which is a ‘collaboration between the Department of Education, Bureau of Vocational
Rehabilitation and Granite State Independent Living. The program was developed and
implemented in 2016 after the Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act was reauthorized,
which required VR to set aside 15% of Federal funding to provide Pre-ETS to potentially eligible
students.

" Since 2016, the program has continued in the north country (Berlin/Littleton), Nashua,
Portsmouth, Manchester, and Concord. The program is a 14 week (fall and spring) and 5 week
(summer) comprehensive Pre-ETS program that provides the five required services: job
exploration counseling, work readiness training, work-based learning experlences counseling
on post-secondary training opportunities, and self-advocacy.

Respectfully Submittgd,

Frank Edelblut
Commissioner of Education |

v
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AMENDMENT #2 TO
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES CONTRACT

. Now come the New Hampshire Department of Education, (NHED) hereinafter “the Agency,” and Granite State

Independent Living (GSIL), (VC#155330) Concord NH, hereinafter “the Contractor”, and, pursuant to an agreement’
between the parties that was approved by Goveinor and Council on. November 29, 2023 (Item #92) and amended on
March 27, 2024 (Item # 65) hereby agree to modify same as follows:

1.

2,

=-)Amend Section 1.7 of form P-37 by removmg August 31, 2024 and replacing it with August 31, 2025,

Amend Section 1.8 of form P-37 by mcreasmg the price limitation by §1, 272 042 from %1, 272 040 to
$2,544,082.

'-Remove Exhlbif B (Scope of Services) and replace with B-1-(Scope of Services)

Remove Exhibit C (Method of Paymeht) and replace with C-1 (Method of Payment)
All other provisions of this agreemenﬂshall remain in full force and effect as originally set forth; and

This amendment shall commence upon Govemor and Council approval and shall terminate on August-31,
2025.

This modification of an existing agreement is hereby incorporated by reference to the existing agreement by the parties
and must be attached to the sdid agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREQF, thelparties, hereto have éet their hands as of the day and year first above written.

THE STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
Department of Education

Division of __ Commissioner’s Office

Qﬂé M' 811312024

Frank Edelblut, Commissioner of Education Date

Granite State Independent Living

-

1&2\0 Y Jul 31,2024

Deborah Ritcey, President & Chief Executive Ofﬁcer Date

Approved as to form, substance and execution. by the Attorney General thiS 'ﬁ day of August, 2024.

Fhabehe o S

DiVision of Attorney General Office

_Approved by the Governor and Council this day of ,20

By:




EXHIBIT B-1
Scope.of Services

Granite State Independent Living (GSIL) will provide the following services to the New Hampshire
Department of Education, Bureau of Vocational Rehabilitation (VRNH), effective upon Governor and
Council approval.

The contractor, GSIL, shall provide the five (5) required Pre-Employment Transition Services (Pre-ETS),-
as outlined in the WIOA and in the VR Federal Regulations by providing the "Inspiring the Mastery of
Postsecondary Achievement in College, Careers and Training (IMPACCT)" program in five locations
around the state (North Country) Berlin/Littleton, Concord, Manchester, Nashua, and Portsmouth. ’

“The contractor, GSIL, will utilize the culmination of the IMPACCT Academy program evaluation (June
2023) report developed by a third-party consultant and IMPACCT evaluation fidelity review completed by
IMPACCT, to highlight the return on investment and value of the IMPACCT program. This evaluation
shall be utilized to establish agreements with school districts for a portion of the sustainability of the
program after this contract ends.

The IMPACCT program is a 14-weck (fall and spring) and 5-week (summer) comprehensive program that
provides all five required Pre-ETS services (job exploration counseling, work readiness skills, work-based
learning. opportunities, counseling on post-secondary education opportunities and self-advocacy) to

" students who are eligible or potentially eligible for VRNH services. The following are the modules provided

to students for the program and may include, but not limited to examples listed: -

1. Job Exploration Moedule
i. Complete an interest inventory
ii. Complete a self-report assessment
iii. Complete a career ladder
iv. Listen to employers speaking about the day-to-day operations and expectations of the
workplace
v. Listen to employers speaking about possible positions within a company

2. Work-Based Learning Experiences Module
i. Identify what types of work—based learning experience they already have
completed
ii. Identify workplaces in which they might llke to have an experrence
iii. Identify transferable skills
iv. Participate in a.work-based learning experience

3. Counseling on Post-Secondary Education Opportunities
i. Receive labor market information
ii. Receive information on how to use public transportatlon
iii. Receive information on budgeting
iv. Receive information on health management
v. Receive information on healthy recreational activities
vi. Receive information on NHVR services and how to apply for services
vii. Receive exposure on potential post-secondary options like:
1. Rapidly growing careers
2.'Community colleges
3. Trade schools/technical schools
4. Four-year colleges-

Contract between Granite State [ndependent Living and the New Hampshire Department of Education
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4. Workplace Readiness Training Module
a. Students receive information on social skills and independent living skills
b. Employers and students experience mock interviews
c. Students receive feedback on interviewing skills
d. Students receive training regarding professional presentation and appearance
e. Students produce a resume, cover letter and thank you notes

5. Self-Advocacy Module :
a.-Students receive information and trammg regarding personallzed plannmg o learn how
to advocate for themselves mdependently and in the presence of support throughout the
transition process
b. Students receive training on how to identify positive supports
c. Students identify positive adult supports
d. Students identify positive peer supports

DELIVERABLES AND TIMELINE
GSIL Shall:

1. Provide a signed registration form for each student enrolled no later than fourteen (14) days prior to the
start of the cohort. If a student drops out of the application process, GSIL has seven (7) days prior to the
state date of the progran to submit a reglstratlon form to replace said applicant.

2. Ensure there is written authorization per individual, received from VR prior to the start of each cohort.

Prov1de the module programming in five areas of the state (Berlm/thtleton Concord, Manchester,
Nashua and Portsrnouth )

4. Provide an Academy experience, via the GSIL IMPACCT Program which will consist of three cohorts
per year serving no less than ISO students with cohort sizes per region not to exceed 25 students, and to the
extent possible will be held at a regional community college or other designated location.

The structure for the Academy experience will be training room/classroom time, work experience, and
remote learning, adapted as needed based on the needs of the students, schools, and work environment in
each awarded region. Each cohort will provide a minimum of twelve (12) direct service hours to the student
weekly. This does not include the hours of service for work-based learning opportunities. GSIL will provide
a 40-hour work-based learning experlence at an approved Department of Labor (DOL) busmess site in the
community to each student participating in the Academy cohort,

5._ Each student can get further assistance with the academic, career, independent living, credential
opportunities, and other needs as possible and appropriate. Ensure that those participating in the Academy
experience have the opportunity to earn academic credits by mastering the necessary competencies through
-Extended Learning Opportunities (EEC's) related to the five (5) Pre-ETS services.

This can include but is not limited to:

i. The National Career Readiness Certificate

ii. Online credit recovery and remedial education

iif. High School Equivalency Test (HiSET) preparation tools
iv. Peer mentoring

v. Job shadows

vi. Job tours

vil. Information interviews

Contract between Granite State Independent Living and the New Hampshire Depariment of Education
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viil. Intérnships

6. Ensure that transportation arrangements are made with the participating schools in each
region for participating students to get to and from the program each day.

7. Identify a 'point person' at each participating school who will serve as the contact person *
for the IMPACCT Academy and assist with appropriate on-site adniinistrative tasks.

8. Ensure that curriculum used for the Academy appr()pnately and solely addresses the five
requlred Transition Services identified in. WIOA.

9, Adhere to VRNH's standard monthly student progress note reporting format, monthly
reports to be received by the 10% of the following month.

10. Engage, coordinate, and facilitate VRNH designated representatlves at the followmg ”
stages of the program cohorts (referral with school district, new cohort orientation, '
workshops, coordinate a scheduled time for VRNH to provide VR Overview of services,
exit Interviews, and graduation).

GSIL will work in tandem with NHVR to ensure:

1. Work in collaboratlon with YR offices to determine if there are any students who are interested in bemg
part of a cohort prior to filling spots. :

2. IMPACCT will assist in the collection of the identified documentation requirements for eligibility.

3. As defined by Workforce Innovations Opportunity Act (WIOA), all students with a disability, who are
eligible or potentially eligible, will meet the required criteria.

4. The development, marketing, and presentation of the required Pre-Employment Transition Serv1ces and
all aspects of the process are effective and accessible. - :

5. Traditionally underserved populations are identified and provided equal opportinity to participate; such
as students who are in all levels of placements, students who are deaf or hard of hearing and students who
are in, and/or from rural settings. -

6. Effective collaboration with local high schools. and Special Education professionals to coordinate
provision of services to students.with disabilities and school transition plan.

7. Ensure the employers are appropriately involved.in the delivery of Pre-Employment Transition Services
being sure to include: Presenting information about their specific industry, opportunities within the industry
and/or the employers' specific organization such as, after school opportunities, training opportunities, and
other types of opportinities, presenting a basic overview of workplace expectations such as, soft skills,
appropriate verbal communication, appropriate electronic communication, appropriate customer
interactions, appropriate conflict resolution, and appropriate overall workplace behavior.

8. Any and all marketing materials used to promote the specific services listed above shall promihently
display the VRNH logo and communicate clearly that the services are being provided at ‘the request of
VRNH and as a result of direct funding by VRNH and the Department of Education. -

9. GSIL and VRNH personnel will both participate in the provision of Spec1ﬁc servnces (i.e. VRNH w1llA
present on how to apply for VRNH services, attend exit meetings, etc.).

Contract between Granite State Independent Living and the New Hampshire Department of Education’
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REPORTING

GSIL shall provide, not later than fourteen (14) days prior to the start of the program, a registration form
approved by VRNH containing the required data elements signed by the student, school official and parent
" or guardian,.if applicable; if changes to enrollment of students happen due to unforeseen circumstances;
GSIL must connect with VRNH Transition Coordinator as soon as-circumstance arises for approval of
change.

Upon completion, of the program, VRNH will receive an electronic. copy of the student's portfolio,
documenting what was completed during the program. Documents should include resumes, detailed
information about the student's work-based leaming experiences, work logs, interest inventories, and other
documents helpful to the VR planning process.

GSIL shall provide a report, at the end of each cohort by the 10th of the following month, and one report -
that summarizes the following data for each regional site: :

- Cohort statistics (number of students, schools represented, dlsabmty information, VR
" participant 1D);
* Number of credits attained and in what specialty;
« Number of different employers providing student experiences and their names;
* Number of students with part or full time employment at the end of IMPACCT,;
« Number of students returning to school that may have dropped out; and
« With assistance from VRNH, the number of students who are VRNH customers
« Schedule for reporting is

o Spring Cohort —By the 10 of July

o Summer Cohort-By the 10" of September

o Fall Cohort-By 10™ of March

GSIL will conduct an annual IMPACCT Academy fidelity review following each contract year, for all sites
due within thirty (30) days of completion of Summer Cohort or of contract expiration.

The vendor shall maintain sufficient documentation on file to support invoices, and make such
documentation available for review by authorized NHED staff and/or its auditors. Complete documentation
to support invoices shall be maintained by the vendor for no less than three years as required under federal
regulation.

The vendor is solely responsible for paying to the New Hampshire Department of Education any disallowed
costs associated with the misappropriation of federal funds:and/or costs expended that the vendor is not
able to sufficiently support with expenditure backup documentatlon upon request for up to three (3) years
commencing the contract end date.

The State of New Hampshire Depaﬁment of Education, Bureau of Vocational Rehabilitation requires the
following for all invoices. Any invoice received that does not have the following will be returned to the
vendor for updates/corrections and, in turn, delay the remit of payment.

o1 Vendor Name

11 Vendor Address

o Vendor Phone Number

o Invoice Number

0 Date

a Expense Period (Reportmg Period)
0 Vendor Contact Person Name

Contract between Granite State Independent Living and the New Hampshire Department of Education
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a Vendor Contact Person Phone
aNendor Contact Person Email
a Invoice addressed to:

[Assigned Agency Point of Contact Name]
New Hampshire Department of Education
21 8. Fruit 8t. Concord NH 03301

i Invonce billed by deliverablé(s) outlined in contract Exhlblt Cc

o Total Invoice Amount | ‘

i Summary of all billable items prowdmg validity of expenses being requested for reimbursement on this ©
invoice. ‘

o Signature with the following attestation:

. “I certify to the best of my knowledge and belief that the report is true, complete, and accurate, and the
expenditures, disbursements and cash receipts are for the purposes and objectives set forth in the terms and
conditions of the Federal award. I am aware that any false, fictitious, or fraudulent information, or the
‘omission of any material fact, may subject me to criminal, civil or administrative penalties for fraud, false
statements, false claims or otherwise,” (2 CFR 200.415)

tom

Contract between Granite State Independent Living and the New Hampshire Deparrmen't of Education
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EXHIBIT C-1
Method of Payment

Budget: .
Deliverable . Total Students Cost Per Student Total
| 3 Cohorts 180~ $7,066.90 $1,272,042 -
(Fall/Spring/Summer) ’ :
’ TOTAL $1,272,042

Limitation on Price: ; . :
Upon mutual agreement between the state.contracting officer and the contractor, line items.in this budget

may be adjusted from one to another, but in no case shall the total budget exceed the price limitation of
$2,544,082. ‘ ‘ ' ‘

‘Source of Funding:
06-56-56-565010-2538000 VR Field Programs-Féderal

Fiscal | Class/Account Class Title Current Increase Revised
. Year Budget . Amount ___Budget
2024 603-504150 VR Clients $848,027 $0 $848,027
2025 603-504150 VR Clients - _$424.013 $848,028 .$1,272,041
2026 603-504150 |~ VR Clients ' $0 $424,014 $424.014
' ‘ Total $1,272,040 $1,272,042 $2,544,082

Method of Pavment: o

. Payment is to be made on the basis of invoices which are received by the 10* of the following month and
supported by a summary of completed deliverables, as outlined by budget line, that have taken place in
accordance with the terms of the contract, along with a detailed listing of expenses incurred. If otherwise
correct and acceptable, payment will be made for 100% of the expenditures listed. A final invoice is due

_ within 30 days of the end of this contract. Failure to submit the invoice by this date could result in non-

payment. Invoices and reports shall be submitted electronically to:

Joy Sabolevski
Joy.P.Sabolevski@doe.nh.gov
Cc: Jillian.H.Johnson@doe.nh.gov

Contract between Granite State Independent Living and the New Hampshire Department of Education
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. Certificate of Authority

I, Lisabritt Solsky Stevens, hereby certify that [ am a duly appointed representative of Granite
State Independent Lmng (GSIL). Ihereby certify that Deborah Ritcey, President & Chief
Executive Officer, is authorized to execute contracts on behalf of Granite State Independent Living
and may bind the organization.

I hereby certify:
1. 1 maintain and have custody of the minute books of the Organization;
~2. Tam duly authorized to issue certificates with respect to the contents of such books;
3. The following is true, accurate, complete, the Board of Directors duly approved via Board Meeting
held on July 25,2024, to Enter into an Amendinent for the organization’s IMPACCT Contract with

the Department of Educations which was duly completed in accordance with the State 6f New
Hampshire [aw and the by-laws of the Organization;

4. The foregoing adoption. has not been amended or revoked and.remain in full force and effect
as of the date hereof.
This authority remains valid for thirty (30) days. I further certify that it is understood that the State of
New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(s) listed above currently oceupy the
position(s) indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation. To the extent that-there are
any limits on the authority of any listed individual to bind the co1porati611 in contracts with'the State of

New Hampshire, all such limitations are expressly stated herein.

Dated: 8/2. bf ‘ Attest: %
) Lisabritt Solsky Steven Secretary, GSIL Board of

Directors




State of New Hampshire
Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, David M. Scanlan, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that GRANITE STATE INDEPENDENT
LIVING is a New Hampshire Nonproﬁt Corporation registered to transact business in New Hanipshire on January 29, 1980, [
further certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State’s office have been received and is in good standing as

far as this office is concerned.

Business [D: 63257
Certificate Number: 0006655783

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set rily hand and cause to be affixed
the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,
this 2nd day of April A.D. 2024.

David M. Scanlan

Secretary of State



ACORD.

Client#: 492954

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

GRANISTA6

DATE {MM/DD/YYYY)
1/31/2024

- THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT-CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BEETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL. INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSU RED prowsmns or be endorsed
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer ‘any rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRDDUCER

US| Insurance Services LLC
3 Executive Park Drive, Suite 300
Bedford, NH 03110

ﬁﬁﬂmﬂ Christine Kopec

_u: No Ext): 855 874-0123 F.:Ié, No}):

ML 5. christine.kopec@usi.com

INSURER{S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #
855 874-0123 INSURER A : Philadelphia Indemnity Insurance Co. _[18058
INSURED . . INSURER B+ Granite State Healthcare & Human Sve WC NONAIC
Granite State Independent Living -
INSURER C :
21 Chenell Drive
ks INSURER D :
Concord, NH 03301
. INSURER E :
. INSURER F ; .
COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW: HAVE BEEN [SSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FCR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRAGT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO: WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS
: EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR

\ELEUBR
INSR [WV

POLICY EFF

LTR TYPE OF INSURANCE POLICY NUMBER {MM/DDIYYYY} (nﬁﬁ%ﬁ% LIMITS
A | X| COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY PHPK2650936 02/01/2024 | 02/01/2025 EACH OCCURRENCE $1,000,000
| CLAIMS-MADE E’ OCCUR PRI S (H5 oemurence) | $100,000
|| MED EXP (Any one person) $5,000
PERSONAL & ADV INJURY | 31,000,000
E« 'L AGGREGATE LIMI'T APPLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE $3,000,000
|| eoLicy l:l JECT D Loc’ PRODUCTS - COMPIOP GG | $3,000,000
OTHER: s
A | AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY PHPK2650933 02/01/2024/02/01/2025 FMERER YT | 1,000,000
X| any auto . ' BODILY INJURY {Per person) | $
: AOEVT“(‘:,ESDONLY ) - SCHEDULED BODILY INJURY (Per accident) | $
l‘ AOF8s oncy 28%'0%‘%'?5_3 LB ey, GE s
’ 5
A [ X|UMBRELLALIAB | X | ocour PHUB39899% 02/01/2024|02/01/2025 EACH OCCURRENGE $5,000,000
EXCESS LIAB CLAIMS-MADE ’ AGGREGATE $5,000,000
DED | Xl reTEnTION $10000 - _ ‘ 5
B | WORKERS COMPENSATION .  HCHS20240000556 01/01/2024(01/01/2025 X [88%yr: | [
| prcrmEToREARTIERR=C e T cL.esorzcope | 51,000,000
{Mandatory In NH) - E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE| 51,000,000
EE%%&?S%{S’;‘&"E%;;ERH.ONS below . E:L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT | 51, 000, 000
A |Professional PHPK2650936 02/01/2024|02/01/2025 $1,000,000 Ea. Incident
: Liability $3,000,000 Aggregate

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIGNS f VEHICLES {ACORD 101, Additienal Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required)

Additional Insured Status is Provided When Required by Contract with Respect to the Commercial General
Liability. :

CERTIFICATE HOLDER

CANCELLATION

State of NH Department of Education

Attn: Bill Finn

21 South Fruit Street, Suite 20

Concord, NH 03301

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFCRE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED  IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

I e

ACORD 25 (2016/03) 1
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Granite State

Concord Main Qffice
21 Chenell Drive
Concord, NH 03301
603.228.9680

" 800.826.3700
603.225.3304 (fax)

Sgp s il =, ) www.gsilorg
L,,. Bringing Independence to Life :

Missién Statement

~ Granite State Independent Living (GSIL) is a
statewide nonprofit organization whose mission is to
promote quality of life with independence for people
with disabilities through advocacy, information,
education, support and transition services.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Board of Directors
Granite State Independent Living

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
' Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Granite State Independent Living, which comprise
the statement of financial position as of September 30, 2022, and the related statements of
activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to
the financial statements.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the .
financial position of Granite State Independent Living as of September 30, 2022, and the changes
in its net assets and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. :

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America (GAAS) and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of
Granite State Independent Living and to meet.our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance -
* with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparatlon and fair presentatlon of the financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and
for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation
and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or etror.
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In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there a_ré
conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise-substantial doubt about Granite State
~ Independent Living’s ability to continue as a gomg concern for one year after the date that the
financial statements are Issued

Audi_tors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditors’ report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but
is not absolute assurance and, therefore, is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
- with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is hlgher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of ‘internal control: Misstatements are considered material if -
there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the
judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements. -

In'performing an audit in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards, we

* Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the
audit.

¢ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or-error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks.
Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the aud1t in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose. of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Granite State Independent Living’s internal
control. Accordingly, no such opinion is'expressed. -

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

¢ Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the
aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about Granite State Independent Living’s ability to
continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal
control-related matters that we identified during the audit.

Report on Summarized Comparative Information

The prior year summarized comparative information has been derived from the financial
statements of Granite State Independent Living for the year ended September 30, 2021, which
_ were audited by another auditor who expressed an unmodified opinion on those statements in their.
report dated December 23, 2022. -



DRAFT
Other Reporting Requ"iréd‘,by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated

, 2023 on our consideration of Granite State Independent Living’s internal control
over ﬁnancxal reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is
solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to pr0v1de an oplmon on the effectiveness of
intérnal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an
audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering Granite State
Independent Living’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance. '

i Merfimack, NH
,2023

D
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GRANITE STATE INDEPENDENT LIVING

; STATEMENT OF FIlU\T‘AN_CIAL POSITION

SEPTEMBER 30, 2022
(with comparative totals as of September 30, 2021}

2022
Without Donor ~ With Donor 2022 ' 2021
Restrictions Restrictions Total 'Total

Assets 7
Current Assets’ . ,

Cash and cash eduiva[ents o8 125445100 % ©50932 8 12,3595447  § 2,769,546

Restricted cash : 34,151 - 34,151 . 34,151

Accounts receivable, net : 1,155,251 - 1,155,251 1,234,815

Grants receivable 1,550,263 -- 1,550,263 2,641,999

Prepaid expenses and other assets 174,783 - 174,783 ) 74,666
Total Current Assets 15,458,958 50,932 15,509,890 6,755,177
Noncurrent Assets

Investments 1,315,691 198,015 1,513,706. 1,215,225

Property and equipment, net 698,306 - 698306 705,716
Total ancurrént Assets. 2,013,997 ‘ 198,015 2212012 . 1,920,941
Total Assets : $ 17472955 % 248947 8§ 17,721,902 § 8,676,118
Liabilities and Net Assets
Current Liabilities

Accounts payable 3 154217 % - % 154217 % 114,291
- Accrued payroll and

related liabilities 457,605 - " 457,605 470,383

Accrued expenses - 47,523 - 47,523 47,743

Refundable advances . 7.916,939 - 7916939 . 263,867

Other liabilities C 34,151 L - . 34,151 . 34,151
Total Liabilities 8.610.435 - 8.610.435 930,435
Net Assets

Without Doenor Restrictions . 8.862,3520 - 8,862,520 7,516,984

With Donor Restrictions: ' C

Purpose restrictions - 50932 50,932 30,912

Perpetual endowment — 198,015 198,015 197,787
Total Net Assets ’ 8,862,520 248,947 9,111,46’7 7,745,683 -

Total Liabilities and Net Assets $ 17472955 % 248947 § 17721902 $ 8,676,118

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

4



- | DRAFT
GRANITE STATE INDEPENDENT LIVING

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2022

(with summarized comparative totals for'the year ended September 30, 2021).

2022 -
i Without Donor With Denor 2022 <2021
Restrictions: - Restrictions ~ Total Total
Revenue, Support, and Other
Revenue ) .
" Program service fees, net $ 14745135 § - % 14745135 § 14.604,940
Support ) ,

Grants 4,534,698 - 4,534,698 3,737,768
. Public support ) 39,028 44,938 83,966 67,194

In-kind contfibutions 33,854 - ©33854 . 43,008

Special events: ) . '

Gross special events revenue §4.490 . - 84,490 78472

Less cost of direct benefits to donors " (23,967) — (23,967) (15,898)

Net special event revenue 60,523 - 60,523 . 62,574
Other ) ' ' l .

Investment income (loss). net o (176,180) -- (176.180) 135,625

Interest ‘ o 460 - 460 o6l

Miscellaneous 1,138 - 1,138 22,465

Loss on disposal of assets ’ - - - (28,241}
Net Assets Released -

From Restrictions 24,690 {24.690) : - -
Total Revenue, Support, and Other 19.263,346 20,248 19.283,594 18,647,954
Expenses
Program Services

Long-term care . 12,777,183 - 12,777,183 12,239,587

Community economic development 2,801,914 - 2,801,914 3,076,837

REM . 122,051 - 122,051 . - 100,866
Total Program Services S 15701148 W= 15700148 . 15417,290
Supporting Services: }

General and administrative - 2,041,880 - 2,041,830 - 1,933,521

Fundraising 174,782 - 174,782 301,231
Total Supporting Services 2,216,662 - 2,216,662 - 2,234,752
Total Expenses ' 17,917,810 - 17,917,810 ) 17,652,042

: Changé in Net Assets 1,345,536 20,248 1,365,784 995,912
Net Assets, Beginning of Year 7.516,984 228,699 " 7,745,683 6,749,771
Net Assets, End of Year 3 8862520 % 248947 3§ 9111467 3 7,745,683

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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GRANITE STATE INDEPENDENT LIVING

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2022

(with summarized comparative totals for the year ended September 30, 2021)

. 2022
Program Services Supporting Services
" Commumity Total : ) Total
Leng-term Econornic Program General and " Supporting 2022 2021
Care Developnxnt . REM Services Administrative Fundraising - Services Total Total

Personnel expense: : . .

Salaries and wages $ 10,676,498 $ 1,448,384 5 37,947 5 12163329 § 988,180 $ 08,295 5 1,086,475 $ 13,249,804 . 3 12,775,153

Enployee benefits 971,059 403,845 10,883 1,385,787 : 338,998 28,182 . 367,180 1,752067 1,333,490

Payroll taxes 851292 123,209 3321 977,822 34,674 8,434 43,108 1,020,930 1,021,053
Professional services 83,253 3,110 4,500 50,863 155299 - - 155,299 246,162 175,227
Advertising 40,107 11,005 ) 18,19 69,305 21,207 30,541 51,748 ©121,083 123,958
Depreciation - 22932 - 22932 Mo - 44,799 B 67,731 171,909
Infonuation technology 1T ' - 9438 - s 41,000 122,123 - 122,123 ’ 163,123 185919
Insurance ' - 25,223 - 25223 72,056 - 72656 97,879 91,936
Crants and other assistance 01 410,357 T ’ 411,158 - - i - 411,158 396,517
Miscellaneous 1,452 66,235 1,231 68918 35,506 ) 86 . 35,592 104,510 \ 125453
Occupancy 67,186 192,966 37372 297 524 64,142 : 3,169 67311 364,835 375,522
Office, printing, postage; and supplies 4,152 " 8678 6,:]118 18978 49760 1,235 50,995 ) 69,973 88,631
“Travel 4189 17,688 - 58 887 2,938 21 2959 61,816 84,395
Consultants - - - - 3400 - 3400 3400 20,079
Dues and subscriptions 2069 . 2,720 240 5,059 - 5,329 3,826 9,155 = 14214 15,517
Equipment and imintenance 881 332 - C 413 30410 314 ' =30,724 32137 36,364
Interpreter - ) 2% - -3 76 - 716 1,002 o34
Meals and entertainment - 196 - 156 9% - 9%, 292 17
Meetings and events 202 1,3%0 - 1,592 ) 1819 23,997 25,816 © 27408 18,232
Telephone ' 5,280 8,331 . 1434 . 15045 50,712 649 51,361 66,406 T2004
‘Trans pattation ' 180 42,676 583 43439 1459 - : 1,459 44898 ° 41,605
Professional development - 2,253 195 2452 B33 K - . 13,302 15,754 9,758
Board of directors - ~ - - 4293 - 4295 4295 2,067
Total Expenses By Function 12,777,183 2,801,914 122,051 15,701,148 . 2,041,880 198,749 - 2,240.629 [7.94L.777 " l?,667,_940'
Less expenscs included in revenoes

an the Statement of Activities: . A . .

Special evems direet costs - - - - - (23.967) (23967 23.961) (15.898)

Total Expenses Reported on . . ’

the Statement of Activities $ 12,777,183 s 2,801,914 s 122,051 $ 15,701,148 $ 2041880 § 17:4,782 $ 2216662 $ 1797810 $ 17,652,042

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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GRANITE STATE INDEPENDENT LIVING

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2022
(with comparative totals for the year ended September 30, 2021)

2022 2021 °
* Cash Flows from Operating Activities * .
Change in'net assets ‘ $ 1,365,784 § 995,912

Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to
net cash provided (used) by operating activities:

Depreciation | 67,731 171,909
Unrealized (gain) loss on investments - 214,058 (88,477) .
Loss on disposal of assets : -- 28,241
Restricted contributions (228) A(1,300)
Changes in assets and Habilities: ; '
Accounts receivable, net ' ; 79,564 (162,166)
Grants receivable : - 1,091,736 . (2,012,182)
Prepaid expenses and other assets . (100,117) 51,890
Accounts payable ’ _ 39,926 (171,250)
Accrued payroll and related liabilities . ‘ (12,778) (482,754)
Accrued expenses (220) (158,373)
* Refindable advances , 7,653,072 (19,391)
Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Operating Activities - 10,376,172 (1,882,285)
Cash Flows from Investing Activities _ - A
Purchases of investments ) : - (665,746) : (33,834)
Proceeds from sales of investments - 175,563 - 14,400
Purchase of property and equipment (60,321) 129,604
Proceeds from sale of property , ' - (69,603)
Net Cash (Used in) Provided by Investing Activities (550,504)- 40,567
Cash Flows from .Financi'ng Activities :
Proceeds from restricted contributions ) 228 . 1,300
Payments of contracts payable -- (7,288)
Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Financing Activities ' 228 (5,988)
Net Change in Cash and Cash Equivalents, ' ‘
and Restricted Cash 9,825,896 (1,847,706)

Cash and Cash Equivalents, and Restricted
Cash, Beginning of year ‘ 2,803,697 4,651,403

_ Cash and Cash Equivalents, and Restricted
Cash, End of year , $ 12,629,593 § 2,803,697

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements,
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GRANITE STATE INDEPENDENT LIVING -

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2022
(with comparative totals for the year ended September 30, 2021)

2022 2021

~ As reported in the Statement of Financial Position,
cash balance consists of: '
Cash and cash equivalents $ 12,595442 § 2,769,546
Restricted cash 34,151 . 34,151
Total Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Restricted Cash . $ 12,629,593 ' § 2,803,697

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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" GRANITE STATE INDEPENDENT LIVING

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2022

NOTE 1 - ORGANIZATION

Granite State Independent Living (the Organization) is a New Hampshire nonprofit corporation
providing a wide range of .services to improve the quality of life for' individuals with
disabilities, in New Hampshire. This is accomplished through ensuring the availability of a-
broad range of services, advocacy efforts, and the establishment of social support. The
Organization impacts lives through three primary service areas: -

Long-term Care Program — the Organization offers a variety of personal care service
" programs based on eligibility. Personal care attendants provide non-medical, hands-on
assistance with activities of daily living for seniors and adults living with disabilities. A
personal care worker helps individuals bathe, dress, eat, and navigate a range of other
daily tasks..In addition to providing assistance with activities of daily living, personal care
workers can assist with. housekeeping chores, meal preparation, and medication
management. Personal care services can be delivered in either a private home, residential

~care setting, or an individual’s place of employment. The Organization also provides

nursing facility transition services.

Community Economic Development Program — the Organization is committed to assisting
seniors and consumers with disabilities so they can fiinction well within their community and
pursue personal goals, whether through employment or earning academic credit through
youth transition programs. Options are discussed through a call to Information & Referral

" Program Service Coordinators, who help individuals set their goals. Services provided can

include benefit planmng, transportation, ASL referral, peer support, and access modification.
Additional services offered may include placement, job coaching, and employment through
the Ticket to Work Program.

Refurbished Equipment Marketplace (REM) — the Organization restores pre-owned durable

medical equipment and resells the equipment at affordable prices.

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The following is a summary of significant accounting policies used in-preparing and
presenting the accompanying financial statements.

BaSsis OF FINANCIAL STATEMENT PRESENTATION

The financial statements of the Organization have been prepared on the accrual basis of
accounting in accordance with accountmg principles generally accepted in the United States
of Amerlca (GAAP)
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GRANITE STATE INDEPENDENT LIVING

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2022

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLE
ASU 2020-07, Contributed Nonfinancial Assets

In fiscal year 2022, the Organization retrospectively adopted Accounting Standards Update
(ASU) 2020-07, Not-for-Profit Entities (Topic 958): Presentation and-Disclosures by Not-

for-Profit Entities for Contributed Nonfinancial Assets. The new guidance Tequires nonprofit
entities to present contributed nonfinancial assets as a separate line item in the Statement of
Activities, apart from contributions of cash or other financial assets. The standard also
increases the disclosure requirements around contributed nonfinancial assets, including
disaggregating by category the types of contributed nonfinancial assets a nonprofit entity has
received. Adoption of this standard did not have a significant impact on the financial
statements, with the exception of increased disclosure.

COMPARATIVE FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The accompanying financial statements include certain prior-year summarized comparative
information in total, but not by riet asset class. Such information does not include sufficient detail
to constitute a presentation in conformity with GAAP. Accordingly, such information should be
read in conjunction with the audited financial statements for the year ended September 30, 2021,
from which the summarized information was derived.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

All cash and highly liquid financial insttuments with original maturities of three months or less,
and which are neither held for nor restricted by donors for long-term purposes, are considered to
be cash and cash equivalents. Cash and highly liquid financial instruments invested for long-term
purposes, including endowments that are perpetual in nature, are excluded from this definition.

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE
Accounts receivable consist primarily of noninterest-bearing amounts due for services and
programs. The allowance for uncollectable accounts receivable is based on historical experience,

an assessment of economic conditions, and a review of subsequent collections. Accounts
receivable are written off when deemed uncollectable.

10
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GRANITE STATE INDEPENDENT LIVING

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2022

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
GRANTS RECEIVABLE

Grants receivable, that is, those with a measurable performance or other barrier, and a right of
return, are not recognized until the conditions on which they depend have been substantially met.
Amounts recorded as grants receivable represent cost-reimbursable contracts and grants, which
the incurrence of allowable qualifying expenses and/or the performance of certain requirements
have been met or performed. The allowance for uncollectible grants receivable is based on
historical experience and a review of subsequent collections. Management has determined that
no allowance is necessary.

INVESTMENTS

Investment purchases are recorded at cost, or if donated, at fair value on the date of donation.

* Thereafter, investments are reported at their fair value in the Statement of Financial Position.
Net investment return/(loss) is reported in the Statement of Activities and consists of interest
and dividend. income, realized and unrealized gains and losses, less external investment
expenses.

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Property and equipment additions over $1,000 are recorded at cost, if purchased, and at fair value
at the date of donation, if donated. Dépreciation is computed using the straight-line method over
the estimated useful lives of the assets ranging from 3 to 40 years, or in the case of capitalized
leased assets or leasehold improvements, the lesser of the useful life of the asset or the lease term.
When assets are sold or otherwise disposed of, the cost and related accumulated depreciation is
removed, and any resulting gain or loss is included in the Statement of Activities. Costs of
maintenance and repairs that do not improve or extend the useful lives of the respective assets are
- expensed.

The carrying values of property and equipment are reviewed for impairment whenever events or
circumstances indicate that the carrying value of an asset may not be recoverable from the
estimated future cash flows expected to result from its use and eventual disposition. When
considered impaired, an impairment loss is recognized to the extent carrying value exceeds the
fair value of the asset. There were no indicators of asset impairment-in fiscal year 2022 or 2021.

11
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GRANITE STATE INDEPENDENT LIVING

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS-

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2022

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
NET ASSETS

Net assets, revenues, gains, and losses are classified based on the existence or absence of
donor or grantor-imposed restrictions.

Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions

Net assets without donor restrictions are net assets available for use in general operations
and not subject to donor (or certain grantor) imposed restrictions.

Net Assets With Donor Restrictions

Net assets with donor restrictions are net assets subject to donor (or certain’ grantor)
imposed restrictions. Some donor-imposed restrictions are temporary in nature, such as
those that will be met by the passage of time or other events specified by the donor. Other
donor-imposed restrictions are perpetual in nature, where the donor stipulates that resources
be maintained in perpetuity. Donor-imposed restrictions are released when a restriction
expires, that is, when the stipulated time has elapsed, when the stipulated-purpose for which
the resource was restricted has been fulfilled, or both. The Organization recognizes revenue
from contributions and grants that were initially conditional, which became unconditional
with restrictions during the reporting period, and for which those restrictions were met
during the reporting period, as net assets without donor restrictions.

REVENUE AND REVENUE RECOGNITION

Revenue from providing program services is recognized when services are provided, in an
amount that reflects consideration entitled to in exchange for those services. For contracted
service arrangements where services are to be performed over a stated period of time, services
are considered to be performed ratably over the term of the arrangement. Amounts received in
advance are deferred and are reported as contract liabilities until the performance obligation of
providing those services has been met.

A portion of the Organization’s revenue is derived from cost-reimbursable contracts and
grants, which are conditioned upon certain performance requirements and/or the incurrence
~of allowable qualifying expenses. Amounts received are recognized as revenue when the
Organization "has incurred expenditures in compliance with specific contract or grant
provisions. Amounts received prior to incurring qualifying expenditures are reported as
refundable advances in the Statement of Finaricial Position.

12
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GRANITE STATE INDEPENDENT LIVING

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS"

- FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2022

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
REVENUE AND REVENUE RECOGNITION (CONTINUED)

The. Organization recognizes contributions when cash, securities or other assets; an
unconditional promise to give; or a notification of a beneficial interest is received.
Conditional promises to give — that is, those with a measurable performance or other barricr
and a right of return — are not recognized unti! the conditions on which they depend have
been met.

Special events revenue is comprised of an exchange element based upon the direct benefits
donors receive and a contribution element for the difference. Special events revenue is
recognized equal to the fair value of direct benefits to donors when the special event takes
place. The contribution element of special event revenue is recognized immediately, unless
there is a right of return if the special event does not take place.

DONATED SERVICES AND IN-KIND CONTRIBUTIONS

Volunteers contribute significant amounts of time to program services, administration, and
fundraising and development activities; however, the financial statements do not reflect the
value of these contributed services because they do not meet recognition criteria prescribed
by GAAP. GAAP allows recognition of contributed serviceés only if (a) the services create or
enhance nonfinancial assets, or (b) the services would have been purchased if not provided
by contribution, require specialized skills, and are provided by individuals possessing those
skills. Donated professional services are recorded at the respective fair value of the services
received. Contributed goods are recorded at fair value at the date of donation and as expenses
when placed in service or distributed. Donated use of facilities is reported as a contribution
and as an expense at the estimated fair value of similar space for rent under similar
conditions. If the use of the spacé is promised unconditionally for a period greater than one
year, the amount is reported as a contribution and an unconditional promise to give at the
date of the gift, and the expense is reported over the term of use.

ADVERTISING COSTS

Advertising costs are expensed as incurred and are reported in the Statement of Activities and
Statement of Functional Expenses.

FUNCTIONAL ALLOCATION OF EXPENSES
The costs of program and supporting services activities have been summarized on a

functional basis in the Statement of Activities. The Statement of Functional Expenses
presents the natural classification detail of expenses by function. Certain categories of

13
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" GRANITE STATE INDEPENDENT LIVING '

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER‘ 30, 2022

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ‘ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
FUNCTIONAL ALLOCATION OF EXPENSES (CONTINUED )

expenses are attrlbuted to more than on ‘program or supporting functlon Accordingly,
certain costs have been allocated among the programs and supporting services benefited on a
reasonable basis that is consistently applied. Personnel expenses, including salaries and
wages, employee benefits, and payroll taxes, are allocated based on time and effort estlmates
Occupancy costs are allocated on a square footage basis.

INCOME TAXES

The Organlzatlon has been recognized by the Internal Revenue Service (IRS}) as exempt from
federal income taxes under Internal Revenue Code (IRC) Section 501(a) as an organization
described in IRC Section 501(c)(3), qualtf‘ ies for charitable contribution deductions, and has
been determined not to be a private foundation. The Organization is annually required to file
a Return of Organization Exempt from Income Tax (Form 990} with the IRS. In addition, the
Organization is subject to income tax on net income that is derived from business activities
that are unrelated to its exempt purpose.

ESTIMA TES

The preparation of ﬁnanmal statements in conformlty with GAAP requires management to
make estimates and assumptions-that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the
repotted amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could
differ from those estimates.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND CREDIT RISK

Deposit concentration risk is managed by placing cash and money market accounts with
financial institutions believed to be credltworthy At-times, amounts on deposit may exceed
insured limits or include uninsured investments in money market mutual funds. To date, no
losses have been experienced in any of these accounts. Credit risk associated with receivables
is considered to be limited due to high historical collection rates. Investments are made by
diversified investment managers whose performance is monitored by the Finance Committee
of.the Board of Ditectors. Although the fair value of investments are subject to fluctuation on
a year-to-year basis, the Finance Committee believes that the investment policies and guidelines
are prudent for the long-term welfare of the Organization. .
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GRANITE STATE INDEPENDENT LIVING

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

'FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2022

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED})
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS AND DISCLOSURES

Certain assets and liabilities are reported at fair value in the financial statements. Fair value is
the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction in the principal, or most advantageous, market at the measurement date under
current market conditions, regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated
using another valuation technique. Inputs used to determine fair value refer broadly to the
assumptions that market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability, including
assumptions about risk.- Inputs may be observable or unobservable. Observable inputs are
inputs that reflect the assumptions market participants would use in-pricing the asset or
liability based on market data obtained from sources independent of the reporting entity.
Unobservable inputs are inputs that reflect the reporting entity’s own assumptions about the
assumptions market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability based on the best
" information available. A three-tier hierarchy categorizes the inputs as follows:

o Level 1 — Quoted prices (ur_iadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
that are accessible at the measurement date.

e . Level 2 — Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level | that are observable for
the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly. These include quoted prices for similar
assets or liabilities in active markets, quoted prices for identical or similar assets or
liabilities in markets that are not active, inputs other than quoted prices that are
observable for the asset or liability, and market-corroborated inputs.

e Level 3 — Unobservable inputs for the asset or liability. In these situations, inputs are
developed using the best information available in the circumstances.

In some cases, the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability might be
categorized within different levels of the fair value hierarchy. In those cases, the fair value
measurement is categorized in its entirety at the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the
lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement. Assessing the significance of
a particular input to entire measurement requires judgment, taking into account factors
specific to the asset or liability. The categorization of an asset or liability within the hierarchy
is based upon the pricing transparericy of the asset or liability and does not necessarily
correspond to the assessment of the quality, risk, or liquidity profile of the asset or liability.
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GRANITE STATE INDEPENDENT LIVING
_ NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2022

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
NEW ACCOUNTING STANDARDS TO.BE ADOPTED IN THE FUTURE
Leases

In February 2016, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued ASU 2016-
02, Leases. The ASU requires all leases with lease terms more than 12 months to be
-capitalized as-a right of use asset and lease liability on the Statement of Financial Position
at the date of lease commencement. Leases will be classified as either finance leases or
operating leases. This distinction will be relevant for the pattérn of expense recognition in
the Statement of Activities. This ASU will be effective for the Organization for the fiscal
year ending September 30, 2023. The Orgamzatlon is currently in the process of
evaluatmg the impact of adoption of this ASU on the financial statements.

Credit -Losses :

In June 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-13, Measurement of Credit Losses on .
Financial Instruments. The ASU requires a financial asset (including trade receivables)

measured at amortized cost basis to be presented at the net amount expected to be

collected. Thus, the Statement of Activities will reflect the measurement of credit losses

for newly recognized financial assets as well as the expected increases or decreases of

expected credit losses that have taken place during the period. This ASU will be effective

for the Organization for the year ending September 30, 2024. The Organization is

currently in the process of evaluating the impact of adoption of this ASU on the financial

statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2022

NOTE 3 - LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY
Financial assets available for general expenditufe_, that is, without donor or other restrictions
limiting their use, within one year of the date of the Statement of Financial Position, were
comprised of the following at September 30, 2022 and 2021:

2022 ' 2021

Financial assets at year end: : '
Cash and cash equivalents $ 12595442 $ 2,769,546
Restricted cash ' | A 34,151 34,151
Accounts receivable, net : . 1,155,251 - 1,234,815
Grants receivable ‘ 1,550,263 2,641,999
Investments ' 1,513,706 1,215,225

Total financial assets 16,848,813 7,895,736

Less amounts not available to be used within one year: _

Restricted cash 34,151 34,151
Net assets with donor qestrictions _ 50,932 30912
Perpetual endowment : 198,015 197,787

283,098 " 262,850

Financial assets available to meet
‘expenditures over the next year $ 16565715 § 7,632,886

Endowment funds consist of donor-restricted perpetual endowments and are not available for

general expenditure.. However, income from donor-restricted endowments is available for
general use.

The Organization regularly monitors liquidity required to meet its operating needs and other

-contractual commitments, while also striving to maximize the investment of its available
funds. In addition to financial assets available to meet general expenditures over the next
year, the Organization operates with a balanced budget and anticipates collecting sufficient
revenue to cover.general expenditures not covered by donor-restricted resources.

NOTE 4 - RESTRICTED CASH

The Organizatioh is the fiscal sponsor for Transport NH, an advocacy organization currently
seeking exempt status as an organization described in IRC Section 501(c)(3).
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i

NOTE 5 - ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE, NET -
Accounts receivable conéisted of the following at September 30, 2022 and 2021:

2022 . ' 2021
Receivable Allowance Net Receivable Allowance Net

Medicaid $ 1,137,393 § 2452 § 1134941 § 938','853 $ 2452 $ 936401
Other 76,203 55,893 *20,310 " 368,657 70,243 298414

$ 1213596 § 58345 § 1,155251 $ 1307510 § 72695 § 1234815

NOTE 6 - INVESTMENTS
INVESTMENT COMPOSITION

‘Investments, measured at fair value. on a recurring basis, consisted of the following at

September 30, 2022:
Levell Level 2  Level3 Total

Exchange-traded funds $ 182239 % - % - % 182239
Mutual funds 208,177 - . -- 208,177
Money market funds 54461 -- e 54461
U.S Government bonds - 147311 -- 147,311
U.S. Corporate bonds ' - 540,097 - 540,097
U.S. Treasury obligations - - 58,952 -- 58,952
U.S. Common stock 322.469 - -- 322,469
Total $ 767346 S 746360 § ~ $ 1513706

Investments, measured at fair value on a recurring basis, consisted of the- following at
Septemnber 30, 2021: -

Level 1 * Level2 Level 3 * Total

Exchange-traded funds - $ 136074 § - 3 - 8§ 136074
~Mutual funds 195,627 - - 195,627
Money market funds 47,655 - - 47,655
U.S Treasury obligations - 99,159 j— 99,159
U.S. Corporate bonds - 441,230 - 441,230
Convertible bonds - 20,205 - 20:205
U.S. Common stock 275275 - - 275275
Total $ 654631 $ 560594 § -- § 1215225
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2022

NOTE 6 - INVESTMENTS’ (CONTINI:ED)
INTEREST RATE RISK

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair
value of an investment. Generally, the longer the maturity of the investment, the greater the
sensitivity of its fair value to changes in market interest rates. Information about the
sensitivity of the fair value of the Organization’s investments to interest rate fluctuations as
of September 30, 2022 was as follows: ' '

Investment Maturities {in Years)

] Fair Less More
Investment Type Value Than 1 1-5 6-10 Than 10 N/A

Exchange-traded funds 3 1822% 8 - % - 5" - § - 3 182,239
Mutual funds _ - 208,177 T - - ‘ - - 208,177
Money market funds 54,461 - ' - - - 54,461
U.S. Government bonds 147,311 - 106,217 41,004 -- -
U.S. Corporate bonds 540,097 173,418 251,298 115,381 - -
U.S. Treasury obligations 58,952 29,805 29,147 - - -
U8, Comumon stock 322,469 = - - - 322469

$ 1513706 3% 203223 % 386,662 % 156475 § - $ 767,346

Information about the sensitivity of the fair values of the Organization’s investments to the
interest rate fluctuations as of September 30, 2021 was as follows:

Investment Maturities (in Years) .
Fair Less ’ More 5

Investiment Type Value " Than 1 1-5 6-10 Than [0 N/A
Exchange-traded funds $ 13607 $ - § - 3 - 3 - 136074
Mutual funds 195,627 - - - - 195,627
Money market-finds 47,655 - - : - - . 47655
U.S. Treasury obligations . 99,159 - 34,711 64,448 - -
U.S. Corpormate-bonds 441,230 66,374 307,786 67,070 - -
Convertible bonds © 20205 20,205 - - - -
U.S. Common stock _275275 .- = - - 275275

$ 1205225 § 86,579 § 342,497 % 131,518 § - § 654,631
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" NOTE 6 — INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)
CONCENTRATION OF RISK

" The Organizatiofl’s investment policy states that not more than 10% (at cost) of the
investment portfolio may be invested in the securities of any one issue; with the exception of .
the U.S. Government or its agencies. The maximum amount invested in the securities of
issuers in the same industry shall not be more than 25% (at cost) of the portfolio. The
Organization was in compliance with this policy at September 30, 2022 and 2021.

“ NOTE 7 - PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Property and equipment was comprised of the following at September 30, 2022 and 2021:

2022 2021
Land , | $ 69,198 $ 69,198
Buildings and improvements ) - 1,171,061 1,171,061
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 1,160,264 1,045,689
Vehicles : 632,525 632,525
Fixed assets not in service -- - 54,254

3,033,048 2,972,727
Less accumulated depreciation . (2,334,742) (2,267,011}
Total . : $ . 698306 $ 705716

Depreciation expense totaled $67,731 and $171,909 in fiscal years 2022 and 2021,
respectively.

NOTE 8 - REFUNDABLE ADVANCES AND GRANTS

The Organization receives grants, which are conditioned upon certain performance
requirements and/or the incurrence of allowable qualifying expenditures. Amounts received
prior to incurring qualifying expenditures are reported as refundable advances. In fiscal year
2022, the Organization® was the recipient of American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) funds
‘totaling approximately $9 million. The funds were received in advance and approximately
$1.4 million was recognized as revenue when eligible expenses were incurred. At
September 30, 2022 and 2021, $7,916,939 and’ $263,867, respectively were comprised
primarily of ARPA funds and reflected as refundable advances.
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'NOTE 8 - REFUNDABLE ADVANCES AND GRANTS (CONTINUED)

Grant revenue from federal agencies is subject to independent audit under the Office of
Management and Budget’s Uniform Guidance, and review by grantor agencies. This review
could result in the disallowance of expenditures under the terms of the grant or réductions of
future grant funds. Based on prior experience, the Organization’s management believes that
cost ultimately disallowed, if any, would not materially affect the financial position of the
"Organization.

NOTE 9 - ENDOWMENT FUNDS
TYPES OF FUNDS

The Organization’s endowment consists of individual funds established by donors to provide

* funding for specific activities and general operations. Net assets associated with endowment
funds are classified and reported based on the existence or absence of donor-imposed
restrictions.

The Board of Directors has interpreted the New Hampshire Uniform Prudent Management of
Institutional Funds Act* (UPMIFA) as requiring the preservation of the fair value of the
original gift as of the gift date of the donor-restricted endowment funds, unless there are
explicit donor stipulations to the contrary. At September. 30, 2022, there were no such donor
stipulations. As a result of this interpretation, net assets with donor restrictions are classified
as (a) the original value of gifts donated to the endowment, (b) the original value of
subsequent gifts donated to the endowment (including contributions receivable net of
discount and allowance for doubtful accounts), and (¢} accumulations to the endowment
made in accordance with the direction of the applicable donor gift instrument at the time the
accumulation is added. The earnings from endowment held in perpetuity are available for
spending without further action by the Board of Directors.

FUNDS WITH DEFICIENCIES
Due to market conditions, the fair value of assets associated with individual donor-restricted

endowment funds may fall below the level that the donor or UPMIFA requires the

Organization to retain as a fund of perpetual duration. There were no deficiencies at
September 30, 2022 and 2021. )
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NOTE 9 - ENDOWMENT FUNDS (CONTINUED)
CHANGES IN ENDOWMENT NET ASSETS

Changes in endowment net assets for the years ended September 30, 2022 and 2021 were as

follows:
Perpetual Endowment
' 2022 2021
Endowment net assets, beginning of year , $ 197,787 $ 196,487
Contributions _ 228 1,300
Endowment net .assets, end of year $ 198,015  § 197,787 -

NOTE 10 - NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS

Net assets with donor restrictions were comprised of the following at September 30, 2022
and 2021: .

2022 2021

Subject to expenditure for specified purpose:

Access modification program $ 21,903 § 7,045

Advocacy activities ‘ 5.918 5,661

Community economic development program 6,790 6,790 -

IMPACCT program 11,321 11,416

Veterans 5,000 --

50,932 30912

Perpetual endowment 198,015 : 197,787
Total $ 248947 $§ 228,699

Net assets were released from donor restrictions by incurring expenses satisfying the
~ restricted purpose or the occurrence of the passage of time as follows for the years ended
September 30, 2022 and 2021:

2022 2021
Satisfaction of purpose restrictions:
Access modification program $ 24,595 §$ 6,814
IMPACCT program : 95 679
Total $ 24,690 § 7,493
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'NOTE 11 - CONTRIBUTED NONFINANCIAL ASSETS

The Organization received contributed nonfinancial assets in the amount of $33,854 and
$45,008 for the years end September 30, 2022 and 2021, respectively. These contributed
nonfinancial assets in fiscal years 2022 and 2021 related to the donation of equipment and
service discounts, and personal protective equipment which were utilized in the
Organization’s programs. The Organization valued the nonfinancial assets at the estimated
fair market value of similar items considering the goods’ conditions at the time of
contribution. There were no associated donor restrictions.

NOTE 12 - RETIREMENT PLAN

The Organization provides a tax-deferred annuity plan qualified under Section 403(b) of the
Internal Revenue Code. All salaried employees working 30 or more hours a week and are 21
years of age or older may participate in the plan. The Organization matches up to 100% of
employee contributions to the plan, to a maximum of 6% of salaries, depending on the years
of service. The Organization contributed $68,237 and $92,362 for the years ended
September 30, 2022 and 2021, respectively.

NOTE 13 - OPERATING LEASES

The Organization leases office space under the terms of non-cancellable lease agreements that
are scheduled to expire at various times through 2026. The Organization also rents additional
facilities on a month-to-month basis. Rent expense under these agreements, which is included
in occupancy in the Statement of Functional Expenses, totaled $216,350 and $190,307 for the
years ended September 30, 2022 and 2021, respectively.

The Organization also leases office equipment under the terms of non-cancellable lease agree-
ments that are scheduled to expire at various times through 2028. Equipment rental expense,
which is included in equipment and maintenance in the Statement of Functional Expenses,
totaled $32,137 and $36,364 for the years ended September 30, 2022 and 2021, respectively.

Estimated future minimum lease payments are as follows:

2023 ) $ 134,116
2024 68,740
2025 _ 44,579
2026 36,323
2027 : 8,459
2028 : 300
Total future minimum lease payments § 292,517
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NOTE 14 - CONCENTRATIONS OF RISK
A material part of the Organization’s revenue is dependent upon government sources, the
loss of which would have a materially adverse effect on the Organization. During the years
ended September 30, 2022 and 2021, Medicaid accounted.for 73% and 72%, respectively, of
total revenues and 98% and 76%, respectively, of total accounts receivable. -

NOTE 15 - RECLASSIFICATIONS
Certain reclassifications of amounts previously reported "have been .made to the
accompanying financial statements to maintain consistency between periods presented The
reclassifications had no impact on previously reported net assets.

NOTE 16 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Subsequent events have been evaluated through , 2023, which is the date the
financial statements were available to be issued. '
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Contractor Name:

Name of Program:

KEY PERSONNEL

NH Department of Education

_ Granite State Independent Living

IMPACCT

BUDGET PERIOD. _

3 L B
’ Hia S -F SEY2025 -]
SO T AN

NAME. JOBTIME = '~ SAL NTR/

Marcia Bagley Chief Program Officer $130,000 20%

Brianna Smith Director of Education Services $64,818 0%

Debbie Cortes Manager of Education Services $58,545 80%

Kelly Jones Lead Transition Specialist $50.182 95%
Amanda Chase Lead Transition Specialist $50,626 95%

Denise Neskorik Lead Transilion Specialist $50,182 95%

Patrick Bernard L ead Transition Specialist $49,858 95%
Jessica Therriault L ead Transition Specialist $48.091 95%
TBD Transition Specialist $45,744 95%

Sarahjane Irizarry Transition Specialist 845,226 95%

TBD Transition Specialist $44,954 95%
Christy Silfani Transition Specialist $46,000 95%:

Megan Baltard Transition Specialist $46,000 95%
TBD Transition Specialist - floater 544,954 100%

TOTAL SALARIES PAID FROM THIS CONTRACT-




Joshua Serard

PROFESSIONAL SUMMARY: 1have ten years of experience in the physical services field, five years as a Lead
Residential Counselor and I am currently a Transition Specialist. My passionis being a motivational leader and
organizational problem solver. In my work life I have advanced supervisory, team building, and customer service
skills. My practice desires are utilizing my experience gained in the development and execution of the programs
created for individuals with specific needs. I am highly innovative and explicitly client focused as a staff member
and a supervisor. I'have a sustained record of achievement in all aspects of the operations of the businessIam
serving. Delivering the requirements of the Supervisory board and supervisory staff. Ialso.am proficientin the
staff recruitment and all aspects of the hiring process. I can think creatively and adapt to the multitask
environments we create in support of my team initiatives and the goals for the student. that I am working. I am

_self-motivated with a strong willingness to learn new tasks in a fast-paced environment. My proven customer
service skills are exceptional, especially with parents and school staff. Ihave a proven record of accomplishment
and communication.

EDUCATION:
University of Maine — Orono Bachelor's Degree Kinesiology and Physical Education  May 2015
NH Institute of Therapeutic Arts School of Massage Therapy Massage Therapist June 2011
* NH Technical Institute Course Work _ ’ September 2009 -Dec 2009
Bow High School High School Diploma June 2009
Additiongl training: Skills/Abilities:
MANT Training/Safety Care Training Proficient with Google applications and PC/Microsoft Office Suite
RBT Training Behavioral Support Experienced in both Apple and PC platforms
CPR and First Aid certified Knowledgeable with staff and direction of clients
Wilderness Response certified Extremely skilled with Microsoft word, excel programs and PowerPoint
EMPLOYMENT:

Granite State Independent Living

Lead Transition Specialist ' July 2023 — Present

# Serves as lead instructor of the day-to-day academic activities

% Oversees the development of the new ELOs (extended learning opportunities) to respond to 1dent1f1ed
student needs

% Directs staff in recruitment, intake, and progressmn through the program experience and back to school
and other appropriate service

% Works with Program Administrators and stakeholders (Regional Advisory Group) to continually review
and evaluate all aspects of the program — assess process effectiveness and full academic rigor

% Responsible for establishing and maintaining student expectations

“ Provide suppott to work site activities as needed

% Completes all the necessary program reports with high quality and in a timely manner

Transition Specialist . ‘ December 2022 — July 2023

% Responsible for carrying out day-to-day academic activities with flexibility and focus on goals

& Establish, develop, and maintain student expectations while being able to quickly make decisions

+ Provide support to worksites of students and ensure task understanding and improving soft and hard
skills in a work environment allowing the students to create their learning style

% Effectively communicates with all parents, school personal, student teams, and other community
partners
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Teach daily lessons with multiple modalities to target various learning styles and student presentations
Assess progress of all students throughout the term and offer diverse ideas for academic levels

Provide daily and monthly reports on updates, issues, concerns.

Build, develop and maintain connections with businesses

Provide job site assessment and training in collaboration with a vocational rehabilitation counselor
Refer students to community resources for financial, medical, educational, and rehabilitation services
Working knowledge of IEP/504 accommodations and modification including meeting attendance
Complete knowledge of google suite and Microsoft office
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* Monadnock Developmental Services Program Manager February 2021 - December 2022

e Manage the schedules of Staff and our Clients

< Provides support to Cur Disabled Clients and management of time

% Leader to drive the mission of success to accomplish our goals

Communications with all Parents of Clients, Employers-and Clients.

Scheduling the daily operations and staffing patterns

Training job coaches (1 on 1) on the daily tasks for clients needed for their job requirements
Providing data for entry of program hours for each client program .

Manage time slips, mileage reports, and expense reports bi-weekly )

Data entry and review of all documentation and scheduling to provide services

Making sure that every client continues to succeed every day in theirassigned programs

Ensure daily operations are followed by employers, staff, and clients
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Crotched Mountain Rehabilitation Center- . " July 2015 - November 2021
(COVID Shut Down)

Residential Program Manager
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Act as liaison, advocate, and coordinator for consumer involvernent in self -advocacy, vocational programming, integrated
community activities, and learning independent living skills.

Monitor staff performance management, including evaluations and developinental plans, dlsaplmary actions, etc. forall
program staff as scheduled.

Arrange and schedule all training for all program staff.

Ensure completion/submission of all required daily, bi-weekly, monthly, quarterly and annual reports as scheduled.
Coordinate/attend as needed all consumer related meetings; ensure all necessary follow-up is completed.

Residential Counselor III -

.
Ex3

&

Supervisor of an assigned house; everyday operational functions

Ensures compliance with applicable state regulations

Trains staff members on daily routines to safeguard the patients, placing a high priority on dignity and respect

Time management: daily scheduling and supervision of support staff, prioritizing workloads and available resources
effectively to meet deadlines

Responsible for seizure protocols to ensure rescue outcome |

Accomplishes implementation of IEP and therapy options

Influence policies and procedures, exchange meaningful information and ideas throughout the workplace
Completes/monitors medication sign out sheets, daily student logs adherence to behavior program including data keeping
Fulfills food requisitions according to establlshed menus, ensuring balanced meals, oversee all special diets under
supervision of Program Manager ’

Liaison between the school and residential departments; helps improve team communication

Attends trainings and-seminars as required; pursues areas of development and training that will enhance job performance
Supports the team of direct support staff in their growth and development |

Develops.and maintains positive working relationships with co-workers by being punctual, keeping personal
communication to a minimum, and maintaining a pleasant work attitude

Accepts constructive criticism in a professional manner

Self Employed Independent Contractor .
Massage Therapist (continues to provide services for all clients) January 2010 — Present

VOLUNTEER: Organizing/Overseeing small and large sports-based tournaments, Intramural
Coach/Captain Soccer/Intramural Referee/Official.



Kelly Jones-

Skitls Profile

CPR/AED Certified

CPI Certified

Staff Development Experience
Communication Skills

Coordinator Skills

Ilustrated Leadership Ability

Bachelor’s degree in healthcare management

Employment History

Transition Specialist

Granite State Independent Living, Nashua, NH

Delivered curriculum.

Recruit students

Build relationships with schools and foster them.
Find business partners for student worksites.

Special Education Paraprofessional

Milford School District, Milford, NH

Program Associate

1:1 Paraeducator

Processed and delivered curriculum.
Wellness Coordinator

Human Resource Office - Peer Tutor &
Academic Support Center

Mount Wachusett Community College, Gardner, MA.

¢ Development and implementation of tutoring program
¢ Organization of Schedules
¢ Oversight of the lunch program
® Data entry using Excel and Word
Education

Mount Wachusett Community College Gardner, Ma.

Completed an associate degree in human services in 1999
Cumulative GPA 3.2

May 2023- present

2003 - May 2022

1997 — 2002

1997-1999



Fitchburg State College Fitchburg, Ma.

*  Worked toward B.S. in Sociology
¢+ Cumulative GPA 3.6

Granite State College, Concord, NH.

¢ B.S. in Healthcare Management
+ Cumulative GPA 3.8 - -

Community Service

Lion’s Club

Milford Community Athletic Association
Best Buddies ’

Awards and Accolades

« Lion of the Ye'ar 2010

Souhegan Valley Lacrc‘)sse Club- league game scheduler”

2001-2002

2021-June 2022



’ JessicaTerriauIt

Educator and facilitator passionate about supporting all learners. Effective at working independently and
as a team. Respect for diversity and cultural inclusivity in. all aspects of life and learning.

PROFESSIONAL EXPJE,R_IENCE

Granite State Independent Living | Dover, New Hampshire April 2023-Present
Lead Transition Specialist for WIPACCT Academy

Manage all aspects of a 16-week academic program from recruitment to matnculatton mcludmg
participating in and directing staff in recruitment, intake, and progression through the program
experience and back to school and other appropriate service.

Recruit a full class of 16 individuals from over 19 regional schools and placements three times yearly
through email campaigns, advisory meetings, meet-and-greets at schools, observation days for
administrators, and meetings with students, school staff, and parents.

‘Serve as lead instructor for academic programming in career exploration training in soft and hard skills. -

Evaluate student progress and provide mastery-oriented feedback for competency-based learning.
Establish and maintain student expectations in'the classroom and at the worksite.

Adapt to academic and social situations in the classroom using researched, evidence-based strategies.
Contact local businesses. to establish relationships and arrange worksite internships for students based
on industry and student needs and interests.

Support local worksites and student.interns throughout the cohort, including observing, direct on—the-job
training, and new sKills training.

Establish and maintain clear communication with stakeholders includihg program directors, school
administration, case managers, transition coordinators, and parents to ensure student success.
Coordinate and facilitate monthly Regional Advnsory meetings to work with Program Administrators and
stakeholders to confinually review and evaluate all aspects of the program — assess process
effectiveness and full academic rigor.

Maintain effective records through data recording, monthly update reports, and day-to-day observations
and communications.

Maintain professional knowledge and skills by reviewing professional literature, conducting mdependent

. research, and attending workshops and trainings.

Support and uphold GSIL policies and procedures, workplace regulations, and safety practices.

Newmarket Jr./Sr. ngh School | Newmarket, New Hampshire August 2018 — July 2022
Teacher and Grade Level Coordinator

Established trust and credibility with students through advising and relatlonsmp building.

Maintained effective communication with stakeholders via emails, phone conversations, and meetings.
Presented to audiences of up to 200 individuals using established public speaking capacities.
Facilitated events for between 30-100 participants with a focus on inclusivity and adaptivity.
Independently created and implemented a Grade 7 ELA curriculum to increase testing scores by 22%.
Utilized technological tools, including video and audio editing platforms to: create learning content.
Analyzed qualitative and quantitative data to develop reports and make informed policy decisions.
Coordinated a grade-level team to ensure that goals were met in a timely manner.

Reviewed deliverables for.up to 90 learners at a time, responding with mastery-oriented feedback.
Simultaneously managed implementation projects in MTSS Intervention, SEL, STEAM, and ELA.
Conducted outreach with local partners to establish and build a middle school STEAM pregram.
Analyzed barriers related to equity and inclusion to ensure equitable experiences for all.

Universal Design for Learning Facilitator/Coordinator

Coordinated a UDL implementation project from exploration, to teacher learning, to classroom use.
L.ead outreach and relationship building to bring in prospective new teachers and triple our participants.
Used iterative design techniques to create accessible curriculum frameworks and materials.



Community Leadership

American Independence Museum | Exeter, New Hampshire . 2022 —Present
Educational Program Management Volunteer - Field Trip Curriculum Development

¢ Determine-and write learning outcomes for museum-specific programming.

o Design program matrixes, standard operating procedures, and templates for activity planning.

e Collaborate with a team of educators to redesign a comprehensive field trip for up to 40 participants at a time,

. letermme and pre-design publlcations and extra-curricular materials.

Green Acres Stables | Madbury, New Hampshire . ' © 2010 — Present
Volunteer Event Coordinator, Secretary, Scorer ’
s Build relationships with volunteers and manage volunteer schedules to ensure ﬂaw]ess event delivery.
. e Maintain and analyze records and spreadsheéts to score events and ensure financial success.
e Communicate clearly to participants to ensure that all rules and regulations are followed on the day of the event.

EDUCATION AND CERTIFICATIONS

University of New Hampshire | Dover, New Hampshire
Masters in Education - Secondary Education (GPA 4.0)
Bachelor of the Arts - English Teaching (GPA 4.0)

NH Department of Education Experienced Educator License - Grades 6-12 Enghsh/Language Arts
CAST Universal Design for Learning Associate Level 1 Certification
" Alfred Ernest Richards Award for Excellence in English Teaching

TECHNICAL PROFICIENCIES
Google Suite | Microsoft Office Suite | Outlook | Zoom | Trello | Asana



'EXPERIENCE

*+  Event planning

+  Tour guiding

* _ Sales management

* Team leadership

+  Program development

*  Museum management

+ Data input

«  Historical analysis

*  Curriculum
development

+  Proficient in Microsoft,

"~ Google applications,
and Cnhitlock

*+  Cultivating
relationships

VOLUNTEER
EXPERIENCE

VOLUNTEER TUTOR -
DECEMBER 2020 - JUNE 2021
I gave tutoring lessons twice a
week to a student in the 10%
grade. We worked on various
subjects and developed their
skills in time management &
organization.

TRANSITION SPECIALIST+ GRANITE STATE INDEPENDENT LIVING
MAY 2023 - CURRENT

My role as a transition specialist includes teachmg work-readiness
education to students with disabilities through an ELO program
called IMPACCT Academy and providing follow- up services to those
students upon graduation from the program. I am also responsible for
cultivating and maintaining relationships with school personnel,
parents, business & community partners, and local resources to help
students on their pathway to life after high school. Curriculum is
delivered in the form of work-readiness training, self-advocacy, goal
setting, and independent living.

SPECIAL EDUCATION PARAPROFESSIONAL » DOVER MIDDLE.
SCHOOL +» OCTOBER 2021 - MAY 2023

" My position as a paraprofessional involved working with high needs

students at Dover Middle School in their autism resource room. As a
para | assisted students with academic needs and structural support.
Areas of need/strategies to assist are determined by student IEP
guidelines and case manager recommendations. Data tracking and
reporting was completed daily. I also prioritized the dignity, health,
and safety of the students.

MUSEUM EDUCATOR + ALBACORE PARK * JUNE 2022 - SEPT 2022

I worked as a temporary Museum Educator for Albacore Park,
assisting the team in creating and implementing a robust schedule of
education programs. [ was also resporisible for training a small staff
of volunteers to run daily programs. My responsibilities were to
develop lesson plans for current and future programming, deliver the
programs during events and daily opérations, design an education

brochure, and collect visitor feedback.



EDUCATION

BACHELOR OF ARTS IN PUBLIC
HISTORY WITH A MINOR IN-
TRAVEL & TOURISM « MAY
2018 + SALEM STATE
UNIVERSITY

Graduated Magna cum laude
with a 3.7 GPA and lifetime
membership in Phi Alpha
Theta, the national honors
society for historians.

VISITOR SERVICES & SALES MANAGER ¢+ OLD NORTH CHURCH &
HISTORIC SITE » AUGUST 2018 - AUGUST 2020 7 .
[ was responsible for the complete onboarding and management of
the visitor services team. I worked directly with thousands of visitors
every year. My most frequent clients were school groups, Boston -
walking tours, and cruise liners, looking to arrange field trips or
private events. Additional responsibilities included data input, ’
revenue reporting, website editing, donor retention; and invoicing.

EDUCATOR + OLD NORTH CHURCH & HISTORIC SITE + APRIL 2018 -
AUGUST 2018 : o
I held a dual position as an educator and a first-person interpreter. I

‘was responsible for teaching visitors and school groups the process :

used by the colonists to create colonial-style drinking chocolate. The
demonstration used props to show cultivation and creation from
“bean to beverage”. The position included wearing historically

. accurate clothing and memorizing a multitude of facts and

information from the 17% & 18% centuries.

TOUR GUIDE & MUSEUM INTERN » THE HOUSE OF THE SEVEN
GABLES * MAY 2017 - AUGUST 2018 '

My undergraduate internship allowed me to explore my interest in
non-profits, specifically in museums. I worked on social media
management and surveying visitor experience. I also worked closely
with the archival team to catalogue and input notable objects into
PastPerfect. At the end of my internship, I was hired as a tour guide
giving educational and historical tours of the mansion to groups and-
school groups. Tours covered the architectural, familial, and
maritime history of the site.



ADMISSIONS AMBASSADOR + SALEM STATE UNIVERSITY + MARCH
2015 - MAY 2018

While an admissions ambassador [ gave daily tours of the university
campus to prospective students and their families. My position was
also responsible for hiring, scheduling, and training ambassadors. I-
also worked in the office, inputting/converting grades from
prospective student applications using the programs Onbase and
Pecoplesoft.

RIDES TEAM LEAD - SIX FLAGS NEW ENGLAND - APRIL 2012 -
OCTOBER 2016

As a team lead, I oversaw a division of the park that composed of up
to thirty employees from April — October each year. My duties
included operating theme park rides, managing a break schedule,
employee training, daily paperwork, safety implementation,
addressing quest concerns, and cleaning tasks.




Marcia Bagley

“ia good communicator. . I see you
being a special ed;tfmiz'aﬂ direetor—
a really good one... :

Janice Martin, Former

Director of Special Education
Nashua School District

“.. effectively addressed barriers
related to implementing fransition

and child find requirenents,

thinking creatively while kegping the | .

needs of families and children at the

Jorefront...."

Michelle Lewis, Executive

Director, PIC

. works through any hurdles

suecessfully making sure that each

child’s needs are met...”

Susan Angel, Former
Administrative Assistant,
Nashua School District

“ . talented and bumble. ..

administrator who can fruly make a

difference”’

Simonne Perry, Teacher

Frofessional Frolile

Enthusiastic and energetic Administrator who is eager to support individuals with differing
abilities, staff and families to ensure all individuals are provided equal access to opportunitiés
within their communities.

«  New Hampshire Certificate in _Spécial Education Admiristration and Educator
Certificate in General Special Education and Elementary Education.,

+  Well versed in the New Hampshire Standards for_ the Education of Children with
Diszbilities and IDEA. requirements.

e Chair and Vice Chair of the Board of Ditectors for the Parent Information Center on
Special Education {(PIC), 2012 — 2021.

s PIC Volunteer Advocate for Special Education.
»  Named New Hampshire Special Education Administrator of the Year for 2022,

Educa'aon

2002 — 2004 " McDaniel College
. Master's of Science Westminster, MDD

Mastet’s of Science in Human Services Management in Special Education with 2
concentration in Applied Behavior Analysis (ABA).

1997 — 2002
Bachelor's of Science
Bachelor’s of Science in Special and Elementary Education.

Marywood University

Scranton, PA

Employment

2023 - present Concord, NH

Chief Program Officer
¢ Oversee the coordination and de].lvery of all programs, contracts and services promaoting
collaborative relationships in the pursuit of independence for individuals with disabilities.

¢ Coordinate with CEQ and executive team to create and maintatn overall program
development and management across multiple sites and departments.

s  Represent GSIL with external community partners.

s  Directly supervise four program directors.

*  Create and support a high performing culture amongst alf programs that ahgn with GSIL’s
core values.

Granite State Independent Living (GSIT)

*  Monitor emerging needs among key stakeholders such as consumers, government and
other funding services.

2007- 2022 Nashua School District
Director, Special Education 2018- 2022 -

Assistant Director; Special Education 2016-2018
Preschoo! Coordinator 2007 - 2016 e

*  Direcdy supervised a ream of ninc administrators and administrative support staff
to suppott the goals and vision of the Nashua School District.

e Oversaw and supervised 500+ special educaton staff, ensuting all 2000+ students’ IEPs
were fulfilled in accordance with Federal and State law.

o Fzcilitated the District’s response to the COVID-19 pandemic, providing guidance and
tools to staff to best support stadents during remote and hybtid learning,

o Created and manage budget for special education department (approximately
%12.2 million).

¢  Provided technical assistance to teams to problem solve unique issues,
maintain compliance, and meet students” unique needs.

Nashua, NH



.. has the ability to humanize

what can be an overwhelming process

Jor parents. . .exirenely

© professional...alivays positive...”
Kyle Langille, Former

Principal, Nashua School
District

Lt was really bard sending [him]

15 school at ;f;id) a yorng t;ge, bt
Sfrom onr first IEDP mecting, you

wade us feel 50

* comfortable. . . Parents are lucky to

haye someone like you belp with this

initial transition...”

Cheryl B, Parent

A“. .. the Preschool depariment,
under the leadership of Marcia
Bagley, bas come leaps and
bonnds. .. she wears many, reany
bats and does a fabulous job...”

. Sarah Almeida, Specch
Pathelogist

*  Collaborated with senior leadership, bullding administrators and other administrators to

ensure zll students had equal access to high quality educational opportunities.

Processed and respond to parent complaints, OCR complaints and due process requests.

Facilitated team and deparument meetings. . -

Created and conducted trainings for Nashua School District staff.

Directed and coordinated the Nashua Early Education Program (NEEP), inciusive of the

tuition-based Play Pals program. '

*  Supervised the Specizl Education process for all referred students ages 255,
averaging 215 per year. . .

¢ Developed Preschool Procedures, Program Descriptions and Curticalum for the
Nashua School District in compliance with the New Hampshire Rules for the
Education of Children with Disabilities. Nashua Preschool procedures have been used
as exemplars for school districts throughout New Hampshire. - '

e Collaborated with all team members ifcluding patetits, advocates, principals,.teachers,

and service providers to fesolve issues and provide students with a free and appropriate
public education (FAPE).

2006 — 2007 The Birchtree Center
Special Bducation Case Coordinator
Developed students’ Individualized Education Plans. Prepared quarterly progress

reports. Administered standardized and criterion-referenced evalvations. Coordinated and

facilitated alternative forms of. stace testing. Assisted in the development and implementation
of curriculum and related materials. Implemented students’ IEP goals within the classtoom in

Pottsmouth, NH

one-to-one settings, Modeled teaching of students’ academic programs in the classroom.
) g g prog

2004 — 2006 Sheppard Pratt -The Forbush School
Special Education Teacher

Provided direct instruction to students with Autism in a non-public twelve-month school.
Responsible for the development, implementation and supervision of Individualized Education
Plans and Behavior Management Plans. Prepared quarterly progress reports. Collected and
analyzed data. Planned, created, and introduced group and individuval lessons and materials
tailored to IEPs and curricalom. Prepared and facilitated alternative forms of standardized
testing. Supervised Teaching Assistants.

Temple Hills, MD

2001 — 2004
Community Living Manager

Target Community and Ed. Setvices, Inc.  Westminster, MD

Delivered direct care to.adults with developmental disabilies. Collaborated in the opening of-
a new alternative living unit. Organized all required paperwork, coordinated inspections,
oversaw the hiting, scheduling, and training of staff, and managed the household budget.



Debbie Cortes

Qualiﬁcation Highlights

o Good Attitede ¢ Deal with Difficuit ® Value Education
e Critical Observer situations e Empathetic
¢ Flexible ¢ Think Outside the e Highly Organized
Box
Related Skills
CLASSROOM MANAGEMENT

o Managed a classtoom of 10-25 students.

¢ "Organized activities for students and
individuals with IEPs/ ISPs.

¢ Contnually encouraged children to be
understanding and patient with others.

COMPUTER SKILLS

o Able to troubleshoot common Computer
issues ’

e FExperienced in Audio/Visual equipment

BILINGUAL

Communicated effectively with students,
teachers and parents.

Critically obsetved student progress and
provided learning material needed to help
students succeed.

e Proficient in Word, Excel, PowetrPoint,

Google Classtoom, Imagine Learning, Aspen

X2, Smarter Balanced Testing

e Effectively communicate verbally and in writing in Spanish.
e (Can-understand and partially communicate in Portuguese.

Experience

‘Granite State Independent Living, Lead Transition Specialist
Granite State Independent Living, Transition Coordinator

Nashua School District; Para Professional
TILL, INC; Residential Manager

TILL INC: Residential Staff

Atlantic Union College; IT Secretary
Atlantic Union College; Maintenance
Atlantic Union College; Audio/Visual Tech

Education.

Nashua, NH
Nashua, NH
Nashua, NH
Dedham, MA
Dedham, MA

South Lancaster, MA
South Lancaster, MA
South Lancaster, MA

10/2018-Present
8/2017-10/2018
10/2014-07-2016
01/2013-09/2014
09/2011-01/2013
08/2007-05/2011

- 08/2007-05/2011

08/2007-05/2011

Nashua Community College; Educator Preparation

Associates Degree

Atlantic Union College; Biology
72 Credits

Nashua, NH

South Lancaster, MA.

5/2017

9/2007-5/2011



2000
1993

2023~ Present

© 2015- Present

2017-2019

2015-2017

2003-2015

1998-2003

1996-1998 -

-Denise Irene Neskorik

.

Education-Walla Walla College
BS Speech Communication (emphasis-public speaking)
BA Elementary Education
Minor in Health .

Work Experience

Granite State Independent Living- Lead Transition Specialist
Experience- Instructs daily academics for students, maintaining
academic rigor. Supervises extended learning activities for students.

" Supports work site activities when needed.

Self Employed-Uber
Customer rating 4.95 and higher, Current Rating 5.0

Ross Sterling Middle School - Humble, TX
Experience: Identified specific skills, developed and implemented a
remedial plan to increase testing scores for at'risk students.

Adventist Christian Academy of Texas - Conroe, TX

Experience: 5™ & 6" grade teacher, HS choir director, HS Health, HS
Computer. Developed and implemented curriculum for a HS life skills
class.

Spring ISD-Pat Reynolds Elem. - Houston, TX

Experience: Regular Education and ELL Téacher (2™ language learners)
3" grade and 5" grade for Language Arts/Social Studies

Leadership positions: 5" grade Team Leader; Social Studies District
Representative; TRIBES trainer (team building), Student Council 5%
grade sponsor, Spelling Bee Coordinator, Microsoft trainer for
Educators.

Humble ISD- North Belt Elem - Humble, TX
Experience: Regular Education 3 and 4" grade

Child Development Services US Army - Babenhausen, Germany
Experience: Asst. Director for Army daycare, Scheduled and
supervised 15-20 workers including cook, secretary and teachers;
maintained an age-appropriate quality educational environment for
infants, toddlers and preschoolers; NAYAC certification was processed
and approved during this time; in charge of daily running of center in all
areas including paperwork, inspections, and finances.



Patrick Bernard

Highly organized and detail-oriented individual with over a decade of classroom experience with
diverse student populations. Ability to work in a fast-paced environment, with individuals and groups

" from diverse cultural backgrounds-as a team member or independently. Strong leadership abilities,
adaptable, resilient and able to effectivély solve problems in stressful situations.

Coordinated and diligent activity coordinator skilled in student behavior management and redirection.
Supports faculty and classroom needs with proactive and diligent approach. Passionate about helping
students and offers proven skills developed over ten years of related experience. Versed. in school
standards and strategies to optimize learning for any students needs.

Work Experience

Lead Transition Specialist
Granite State Independent Living - Manchester, NH
August 2023 to Present -

* Serves as lead instructor of the day-to-day academic activities.

* Oversees the development of the new ELO’s (extended [earning opportunities) to respond to identified
student needs.

* Directs staff in recruitment, intake and progression through the program experience and back to,school'
and other appropriate service,

* Works with Program Administrators and stakeholders {Regional Advisory Group) to contlnually review
and evaluate all aspects of the program - assess process effectiveness and full academic rigor.

Instructional Assistant/ Registed Behavior Tech
SAUS8 School District - Conord, NH .
March 2018 to Present

= Supported student learning objectives through personalized and small group assistance.

* Provided support to help students with special needs learn and grow.

* Provided support during classes, group lessons and classroom activities,

* Delivered curriculum in both one-on-one lessons and group learning environments.

= Used behavior modeling and specialized teaching technigues to share and reinforce social skills.
* Provided support during classes, group lessons and classroom activities

* Assessed student assignments to check quality and completeness before submission for grading

Freelance Writer
Freelance - Concord, NH
Juby 2005 o Present

* Wrote and posted content for company blog, keeping customers updated and engaged

+ Wrote and edited long- and short-form copy for blogs, websites, social media, presentations, training
materials and more

* Wrote in several styles and voices for website, print and internal documents



,-AShaped the strategic direction of copy by collaborating with marketing and retail partners
* Prioritized workflow and managed schedules to deliver completed projects under deadline.

Residential Counselor and Instructional Assistant
Spaulding Youth Center - Northfield, NH
March 2014 to August 2015

+ Counseled students with mental health disorders such as emotionally handicapped, learning disabled,
neuro- behaviorally impaired, autistic, mentally challenged or delinquent boys and girls or adolescents
» Supervised residential and day treatment children during class and on field trips

» Supported student learning objectives through personalized and small group assistance.

* Provided support to help students with special needs learn and grow.

* Counseled clients to helb‘ them understand and overcome personal, social and behavioral problems

» Consulted with other staff members regarding treatment plans as deemed appropriate by team leader,

Substitute Teacher
Manchester School District - Manchester, NH
September 2007 to June 2015

= Instructed up to 35 students individually and in groups

+ Adapted teaching methods and materials to meet students' varying needs and interests

*» Set up lesson materials, bulletin board displays and demonstrations

« Encouraged students with special academic interests to fully pursue those subjects

» Worked one on one with students with special needs.

+ Upheld classroom routines to support student environments and maintain consistent schedules.

» Followed classroom plans left by class teacher to continue student education and reinforce core
.concepts. '

» Repeatedly requested as substitute teacher by teachers based on excellent past referrals and trusted
performance. -

Education

Master of Arts in Creative Writing
Southern New Hampshire University - Hooksett, NH
August 2007 to 2009

Skills

« Managing classroom for diverse populations Expertise in Creative Writing

+ Expertise in English and special-needs classrooms Diverse classroom settings
« Experience with special-needs students Strong collaborator

« Positive reinforcement Teaching/tutoring

= Creative imagination stimulation Creative questioning

+ Student motivation Critical thinking

» Adept at working with special needs children Qutstanding social skills

= Special education Classroom discipline

+ Curriculum-Based Lessons



Brianna C. SMITH

Objective:

To obtain a position within the field of employment and education that will enhance
professional growth and ufilize strong organizational and interpersonal skills.

Experience:

Director of Education Services- February, 2023 — Present
(_Sron[’re State Independent Living » Manchester, NH

Oversee our education team throughout New Hampshire in implementing
Pre-Employment Transition Services _
Collaborates with New Hampshire Vocational Rehabilitation in ensuring
sustainable funding for both IMPACCT and Earn and Learn Op-portuhiﬁes
Program

Lead consultant for managing federal Department of Health and Human

‘Services Independent Living funding, Department of Labor regulations and WICA

grant compliance and reporting

Facilitate regional stakeholder advisory boards throughout the state with the

Department of Education, school partners and employers to provide technical
assistance for program growth and advancement

Collaborate with the Community College System of New Hampshire and
negoftiate to offer.career pathways and occupational fraining through post
secondary education :

Responsible for recruitment, hiring and supervising dll staff member throughout
New Hampshire which also includes facilitating quarterly professional
development seminars

Associate Director of Education Services- May, 2018 — February, 2023
Granite State Independent Living = Manchester, NH

Oversee our education team in the Manchester area in implementing
Pre-Employment Transition Services



Lead consultant for managing federal Department of Health and Human _
Services Independent Living funding, Depariment of Labor regulations and WICA
grant compliance and reporting ‘

Facilitate regional stakeholder advisory boards in the Manchester area with the

Department of Education, school partners and employers to provide technical

assistance for program growth and advancement

Collaborate with Manchester Community College to offer career pofhwoys and
occupational training through post secondary education

Responsible for recruitment, Hiring and supervising four staff members in
Marnichester programs which also includes facilitating quarterly brofessiondl
developmeént seminars

Manage and develop sustainable business partnerships for employmént
opportunities

Lead Transition Specidlist- June, 2016- May, 2018
Granite State Independent Living « Manchester, NH

Responsible for daily instruction of Pre—Emponmen’r Transmon Services for
underserved youth in New Hompshrre s largest city..

Oversee programming in developing paid work experiences for.students and
families

Conduct monthly stakeholder advisory board fo refine programming

Lead ligison for the foster grandparent program to bridge employment services in
creating an organic approach for purposeful relationships

Delivered wraparound services for the foster grandparent program and students
through the provision of Independent Living services ‘

Transition Specialist- June, 2015: June, 2016
Granite State Independent Living- Manchester, NH

Provided vocational classroom instruction to youth beiween the ages of 16-21 fo
edrn high school academic credit and-employment pathways skills

Responsible for student recruitment with area high schools
Developed employment opportunities for individuals to gain paid employment

Built relationships with community partners for students to experience internships
and access local resources



School Program Team Leader= June, 2009 — June, 2015
Work Opportunities Unlimited = Manchester, NH

» Counseling individuals to provide education and vocational guidance
*  Providing skills, 1rdvel training and direct support for students within the program

*  Assistin working wnh team on tfransitioning s’rudenTs out of high school by
' counseling with community resources and the school district

*+ Develop IEP godals fo conduct transition plan for future pathways

., ResponSIbIe for team members daily schedule, job objechves and c:c’rrvmes for all
students in school program i

Teacher Assmiant * August 2007-January 2008
- Alpha Bits Leornmg Center Manchester, NH

« Assisted with planning daily routines for the preschool classroom

+ Develop lesson plans for children's goals including inteliectual stimulation and
language activities

. Praised children for accomplishments along with guidance in learning.

Skills:.

Lead consultant in cfeoﬁng programming in school districts and businesses throughout
New Hampshire

Spearhead federal, state and foundation grant management that includes reporting
and compliance responsibilities

Assist with onboarding, managing and overseeing numerous team members and
assisting with staffs day fo day operations

Reliable, hard working indivi_ducl confributor and team player

Highly organized with an person centered approach

Strong Communication skills with employers, area agencies and school districts
Credte lesson plans for students and guide with goals and objectives related to IEPs

Proﬂaeni in Microsoft Office, XP, Excel, Powerpoint olong with Mac OS and Google
Platforms



Christy Silfani

OBJECTIVE Secking a position with an agency dedicated to posrtlve 1nd1v1dual famlllal
somal and commumty change

WORK EXPERIENCE:

Transitio;’l Specialist (February 2022- Present) Granite State Independent Living- Manchester,
NH : : | '

» Deliver standardized IMPACCT curriculum to students (ages 16-22), inc'ludi'ng instruction in-
work-readiness, self-advocacy, goal-setting, and independent living

* Recruit, organize and implement curriculum presenters/workshops on specific topics

» Recruit students from each high school and serve as the IMPACCT Academy's pomt person for
parents and school personnel

» Support students in identifying and utilizing community resources to increase their independent
living skill development, greater personal and economic mdependence Support students'
reintegration to sendmg schools

*Maintain accurate student records and provide monthly update reports on student progress to
schools, parents, and GSIL Leadership Téam Provide monthly reports on enrollment, school &
business outreach, and overall progress to GSIL Leadership Team

Residential Counselor (August 2018 to March 2019} Spaulding Youth Center- Northfield NH

» Responsible for caseload of behaviorally-challen'ged students (ages 4 to 21), with neurological
impairments, including autism, intellectual disabilities, emotional disorders, and those who have
experienced significant trauma, abu’se‘ or neglect

* Providing direct care, support, and supervision to students durmg the non- school hours by
implementing residential objectives and behavioral support plans

. Teachmg daily living skills, community integration and socialization as well as partlclpatmg
and engaging students in all residential activitics

" Activity Coordinator & Summer Camp Counselor (April 2014 to June 2016) Girls Inc - Concord,
NH :

* Creating, organizing, and implementing engaging, educational, and theme-based activities for
girls (ages 5-13)

* Supervise children, maintain safety, problem solve, and control difficult-behaviors:
» Maintain sanitation, organization, and cleaning

» Establish/follow curriculum, rules, and regulations of after-school/summer camp
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CAREER BRIEF

Dynamic and creative paraprofessional with 20+ years of experience working with students of all ages in a
myriad of settings. Flexible, enthusiastic, team player with leadership skills and ability to engage in open
minded collaboration. Enjoys developing innovative, hands-on curriculum with differentiated instruction for
unique learning experiences. Well versed in supporting students and dedicated to instilling confidence and self-
esteem. Committed to building strong connections and positive relationships with students, parents, coworkers
and the community. Excited to foster an-atmosphere that engages and inspires.

SKILLS )
" ® Professional and dependable e Excellent interpersonal skills e  Strong leadership qualities
e Innovative and optimistic e Proven written and oral skills e Enthusiastic motivator

e Ambitious and eagertolearn e  Effective communicator e Versatile and compassionate -

APPLICABLE AND RELATED WORK EXPERIENCE

Granite State Independent Living, IMPACCT Academy, Transition Specialist, Concord, NH (2021-Present)
o Establish and support post-secondary transition goals for students with disabilities
» Inspire students to actively engage in their education and understand the relevance to future career goals’
o Create, develop and maintain relationships with local school district staff, adolescents, parents and
service providers
¢ Build and foster community connections and relationships with local business

Hopkinton Middle High School, Inclusion Faczlttator/lnstructzonal Assistant,-Hopkinton, NH (2018-2021)
¢ Engaged with Special Education Department team members to plan for/assess student learning
e Used knowledge of unique leaming styles to create measurable goal oriented instruction
¢ Wore many hats (1v1, general classroom IA, Special Ed. Para, substitute, field trip planning etc.)
e Had direct input and worked collaboratively on writing/developing IEP’s and curriculum
e Established rapport with parents/guardians to facilitate communication and academic progress

Henniker Community School, 5th_gt Special Ed Literacy Paraprofessional, Henniker, NH (2014-2018)
Differentiated instructional design within programs to engage diverse student learning needs

e Assisted students in literacy development and academic endeavors in a variety of settings

e  Worked collaboratively with teachers and other staff to implement student academic/behavior plans
e Managed student behaviors to ensure the best possible learning environment

'Dynamite Sound Productions, Disc Jockey and Company Partner, New England Area (Aug '04-Present)
e Coordinate a variety of productions to meet individual and group needs and expectations
¢ Serve as primary pomt of contact between clients, 1nclud1ng facilitating meetings and planning
o Work under pressure, improvise, plan/manage timelines, control flow of important events
¢ Maintain high reviews and positive experiences to foster satisfied customers and repeat clients
e Responsible for all aspects of running a small business and fostering an impéccable reputation



The Villager Newspaper, Bi-weekly Columnist/Feature Writer Hillsboro, NH (Sept 09-June 10)
Responsible for generating story pitches and composing and editing my own column
Successfully planned, navigated and facilitated numerous interviews

Built contacts with many local citizens; programs, and organizations

Handled press coverage, penned entertainment stories, and researched and wrote feature articles

Penn Yan Middle School, Teacher/Facilitator for 21 Century Program, Penn Yan, NY (Aug 02-Dec 03)
Successfully developed and implemented after school program activities

Adapted various motivational strategies to engage students academically and keep them on task
Generated contact leads for new programs and networked with contacts to actualize programing
Acted as one-on-one mentor support for several students, with focus-on goal completion

Fmger Lakes Parent Network, Juvemle Respite Worker, Penn Yan, NY (Aug 02-Dec 03)
" e Planned numerous children’s group and individual outings, in-home respites, and on-site functions
e Learned how to facilitate an environment conducive to students’ emotional growth
® Adapted group management and program planning appropriate for children of diverse abilities_

Pat's Peak Ski Area, PSTA Lv1 Certified Ski Instructor, Henniker, NH (Dec 99-April 2010)

Taught an average of 6-8 lessons per day to children, teens and adults of all ages

e Instructed school program lessons, responsible for 50-75 adolescents daily

e Designed and implemented a variety of lesson plans to meet learners’ needs

e Variegated instruction for different learning styles, with attention to skill mastery and enjoyment

Mount Royal Academy, Academic Tutor, Ski Program Coordinator, Substitute, Sunapee, NH (2008-2011)
e Worked with teachers and parents to determine individual student needs for tutoring
e Planned and facilitated appropriate tutormg sessions in a range of subjects and levels
¢ Coordinated group of 68 students 1°-12" grade and all parent chaperones for Ski Program
e Responsibilities included safety of all involved, smooth running of 6-week program, delegating tasks,
handling" emergencies, ensuring completed paperwork and financial transfers, communicating
effectively with all involved agencies including MRA, Ski Mountain, transportation and parents

Richard E. Byrd Academy, Internship in 8 Grade Multi-Level Classroom Chzcago IL (Jan 03-March 03)
e Navigated and gained knowledge of challenges facing students and teachers in urban classrooms
e Tailored lessons to meet the needs of the students
e Nurtured and inspired students to reach for their dreams

EDUCATION AND CERTIFICATIONS:

Keuka College, Keuka Park, NY (Sept 00-Dec 03)
e Three completed years - Major in Secondary English Education
¢ Education courses including: Educational Psychiology, Foundations of Education, Early Human
Development, Study of Children's Literature, Diverse Learners

Bishop Brady High School, Concord, NH (96-00)
e College preparatory studies, Honors Diploma

Youth Development Practitioner - NH (October 2022)
Para II Certification - NH (April 19)
CPI Certification (Non-violent Crisis Prevention and Intervention) - NH (Sept ‘19)



Amanda Chase
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Objective: To make a career change in line with my experience and skills.
Education

Utah State University, M.S., 1997

M.S., Psychology with emphasis in school counseling
University of Vermont, B.A., 1991

Major: Psychology; Minor: Erglish

Cértification: New Hampshiré k-12 Guidance Certification

Experience i ‘

1/19 - present ‘ Granite State Independent Living, Concord, NH
Lead Transition Coordinator, IMPACCT Academy

¢ Teach students with disabilities various competency-based ELO topics, transmon and
Independent Living skills

¢ Recruit and monitor business partners for student work-based Iearmng and classroom

presentations

Recruit students from and maintain year-round relationships with over 12+local school districts

Create curriculum (Career Exploration, English, Health, Consumer Science, Personal Finance)

Maintain accurate records on student achievement and convey to stakeholders :

Create progress notes for parents, schools and reporting, track student credits

Facilitate monthly advisory board meetings '

Communicate with former students to track progress with goals

8/16-712018 John Stark Regional High School, Weare, NH
School-fo-Career Coordinator

e Arranged and monitored students in job shadows, linternships, work study, community service
experiences and recruited businesses for such activities

Provided career counseling

Secured guest speakers for groups of students during popular “Flex time” Career Speaker
Series

Coordinated and superwsed career-related field trips

Taught workshops in career assessment, job acquisition and retention for high school students
Contributing member of K-12 Counseling Curriculum Team and PLC Team

Extra-curricular Involvement: Freshman Class Advisor; Official Home Basketball Bookkeeper

'
o ® & @



11/99-06/2016 Kearsarge Regional High School, North Sutton, NH
School-to-Career Coordinator ‘ .

e Arranged and monitored students in ]ob‘ shadows, internship, work study, community service
experiences and recruited businesses for such activities

Planned and coordinated middle and high school career days

Collaborated with 5 other high schools for annual Career Expo

Communicated with business people regarding expectations for students in work-based
experiences

Provided career guidance for students .

Concord Regional Technical Center program liaison

Facilitated NH Scholars Program

Taught career guidance course, classroom activities, summer school and KADP classes
Extra-curricular Activities: Kyar-Sarga Yearbook Advisor "

4/97-11/99 ‘Tween School ‘n Home, Hopkinton, NH
Director, After School Program

] Responsible for daily programming of activities, .
e Facilitated parent and staff meetings/training, hiring
e Overall supervision of 50+ students aged 5-12 and 6 staff members

Community Involvement
2003-2012  Girl Scouts of the Green & White Mountains
Girl Scout Leader

e Guided girls in grades 1-9 in self-esteem building activities through goal setting, fundraising

and community service ‘
e Planned trips and coordinated troop and town-wide camping weekends

2002-2015 Hopkinton PTA, Project Graduation Committee and Hopkinton Booster Club Secretary

2008-2011 Maple Street School Volunteer
e Created student yearbook “The Maple Leaflet’

e QOrganized students to work on book, taught photographyfjournalism b‘asiAcs to students

grades 4-6

References available upon request



Frank Edelbiut 4 Christine Brennan
Commissioner o - Deputy Commissioner

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION
25 Hall Sireot
Concord, N.H. 063301
TEL. {603) 271-3495
FAX {603) 2711953

March 4, 2024 .

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

Stite House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Education, Bureau of Vocational Rehabilitation (VR) to

. retroactively amend the existing sole source contract with Granite State Independent Living
(GSIL), Concord, NH, (vendor #155330), to provide the “Inspiring the Mastery of Postsecondary
Achieveraent in College” (IMPACCT) program in five regions of NH, by medifying the scope of
services to increase the cohort size, and changing the period of performance from October [, 2023
through September 30, 2024 to September 1, 2023 through August 31, 2024, effective upon
Governor and Council approval with an option to renew for one additional year. The original
contract was approved by Governor and Council on November 29, 2023 (Item #92). 100% Federal
Funds.

Funds are available in the following account in Fiscal Years 2024 and 2025 with the authority to
adjust budget line items within the pnce limitation and encumbrances between Fiscal Years
through the Budget Office, if needed and justified.

(6-56-56-565010-2538000 VR Ficld Programs;Fedeml

Fiscal Class/Account - Class Title CCurrent 1 Increased | Revised
Year . Budget {Decreased) |  Budget

. Amount
2024 603-504150 VR Clients $954.030 (3106,003) | $848.027
2025 603-504150 VR Clients | $318,010 $106.003 $424,013

Total | $1,272,040 $0 $1,272,040

‘ IDD Access: Relay NH 711
EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER- EQUAL EDUCATIONAL OPPORTUNITIES



His Excellency, Governor Christopher, T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council
Page 2 of 2

EXPLANATION

This contract is retroactive due to the period of pcrformance shifting from October 1, 2023, to
September 1, 2023, based on the vendor's scheduling of progranimatic weeks. The contract is sole
source because the previous agreement was approved by the Governor and Council on November
29, 2023 (Item #92) as a sole source. When initially implemented, the IMPACCT program was
awarded through an RFP process. Since that time, GSIL has continued.to run a successful student
program. This request is to continue funding the “Inspiring the Mastery of Postsecondary
Achievement in Coliege” (IMPACCT) Pre-Employment Transition Service (Pre-ETS) program,
which is a collaboration between the Department of Education, Bureau of Vocational
Rehabilitation and Granite State Independent Living. The program was developed and
implemented in 2016 after the Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act was reauthorized, which -
required VR to set aside 15% of Federal funding to provide Pre-ETS to potentially ehglble
students.

Since 2016, the program has continued in the north country (Berlin/Littleton), Nashua,

- Ponismouth, Manchester, and Concord. The program is a 14 week (fall and spring) and 5 week .
(summer) comprehensive Pre-ETS program that provides the five required services: job.
exploration counseling, work readiness training, work-based learning experiences, counseling on
post-secondary training opportunities, and self-advocacy. '

Students who attend the program also eam high school credit for the program and have eamed °

~5,240.50 extended learning opportunity credits. 3,526.25 academic credits have been obtained.
After completing the program, 221 students graduated immediatety, 48 attended alternative .
education, and 757 returned to high school. The average student attendance rate is 90%. 81.4% of
students in IMPACCT have an [EP, and 14.7% have a 504 plan.

HB4, when approved in Qctober 2019, allocated S4b0,000 in General Funds to be allocated toward
program costs. This funding was allocated to the program in FY20. .

Respectﬁ.tlly Submitted,

Frank Edelblut _
Commissioner of Education

TDD Access: Ralay NH 711
* EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER- EQUAL EDUCATIONAL OPPORTUNITIES _



_ AMENDMENT TO
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES CONTRACT

Now come the New Hampshire Department of Education hereinafter “the Agency,” and -Granite State
Independent Living {GSIL), Concord, NH 03301, ( Vendor Code #155330) hereinafier “the Contractor”, and, pursuant
1o an agreement between the parties that was approved by Governor and Council on November 29, 2023 (ltem #092)
hereby apree to modify same as follows: :

. Amend P-37 box 1.7 by removing 09/30/24 and replacing it with August 31, 2024,
2. Amend Exhibit A by removing “Renewal date October 1, 2024, throagh September 30, 2025” and replacing
it with “Renewal date September 1, 2024, through August 31, 2025".
3. Amend Exhibit B, paragraph | remdving “October 1, 2023 through Seplember 1, 2024™ and replacing with
“September 1, 2023 through August 31, 2024,
4. Amend BxhlbltB “Deliverables & Timeline” section, “GSIL Shall:", #4, paragraph | shall be removed, ‘and
" replaced with the following language:

Provide ‘an Academy expericnce, via the GSIL IMPACCT Program, which will' consist of three
cohorts per year serving no less than 180 students with cohon sizes per region not lo exceed 25
students, and to the extent possible will be held at a regional community college or other desngnated
location.

5. Amend Exhibit B, “Reporting” by adding “VR paﬂlCIpanl 1D™ to the first bulieted slalemcnl
6. Amend Exhibit C, "Method of Payment™ by removing the current budget brcakdown and rep[acmg with the

following:
. Deliverable ‘Total Students Cost Per Student Total
3 Coharts (Fall/Spring/Summer) ) 180 $7,066.8489 $1,272,040
s ' TOTAL $1,272,049

7.  Amend Exhibit C “Funding Source” by remeving current account fiscal year breakdown and replacing with
the following;

06-56-56-565010-2538000 VR Ficld Programs-Federal ‘
Fiscal | Class/Account | iass Title Current Increased Revised

Year Budpet [Decreased) Budpet

2024 603-504150 VR Clients $954,030 {$106,003) $848.027

2025 | 603-304150 " VR Clients $318.010 $106,003 $4924,013
Total . $1,272,040 - $1,272,040

8. Al other provisions of this sgreement shall remain in full foree and effect as originally set forth; and
9, “This amendment shall commence upon Govemor and Council approval and shall terminate on August 31,
2024,

This modification of an existing agreement s heseby incorporated by reference to the existing agreement by the parties
and must be aftached tothe said agreement,

IN WITNESS WHEREOQF, the parties, hereto have set their hands a5 of the day and year first above written,

THE STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
vy Department of Educalion
(Agency)

Division of

By: Qﬂj 3/8/2024

Frank Edelblut, Commissioner of Education Date




rasite State Independent Living {GSI

Coniractor
(o by =eloosy
. Deborah Ritcey, Chiel Executive Officer Date’
Approved s to form, substance and exccution by the Attomey General this .doy of March , 2024

W&/&/

‘(/Elizabeth Brown, Attomey General Office

fype text here

Approved by the Governor and Council-this day of _ ,20_




Certificate of Authority

I, Lisabritt Solsky Stevens, hereby centify that'| am a duly appointed representative of Granite
State Independent Living (GSIL). 1 hereby certify that Deborah Ritcey, President & Chief
Executive Officer, is authorized to execute contracts on behalf of Granite State Independent Living
and may bind the corporation. '

I hereby certify that said authority has not been amended or repealed and remains in full f(;rce and effect
as of the date of the contract to which this certificase is attached. This authority remains valid for tfnirty
(30) days. 1 further cenify that it is understood that the State of New Hampshire will rely on this certificate
as evidence that the person(s) listed above currently occup.y the position(s) indicated and that they have full
‘authority 10 bind the corporation. To the extent that there are any limits on the authority of any listed
individual to bind the cbrporation in contracts with the State of New Hampshire, all such limitations are

v

expressly stated herein.

Dated: _3 Mar 2024 ' Attest: Lisabritt Sobleky Stevers

Lisabritt Selsky Stevens, Seerctary, GSIL Board of
Directors

.
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State of New Hamgéshire
- Department.of State

CERTIFICATE

], David M. Scanlan, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that GRANITE STATE INDEPENDENT
LIVING is a New Hampshire Nonpro(it Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshirc on January 29, 1980. |

further certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State’s office have been received and is in good standing as

far as this office is concerned.

Business 1D: 63257
Centificate Number: 0066195416

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I'herete set my hand and cause to be afltxed
the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,
this 4th dav.of April A.D. 2023,

David M. Scanlan

Secretary of State




Client#: 492954

ACORD..

CERTIFICATE.OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

GRANISTAS

DATE (RMIDDAYYY)
1/31/2024

THIS CERTIFICATE IS5 ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANGE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSU RER({S), AUTHORIZED

REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

TIMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADRITIONAL INSURED, the policy{ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or bo endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsomant. A statemont on
this cartificato does not confer any rights to the certlficate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER " |
USl Insurance Services LLC
3 Executive Park Drive, Suite 300

Sit“? Christine Kopec

[ PHRNE e 855 874-0123° [To% ok

5k es. christine.kopec@usi.com

Bedford, NH 03110 IRSURER{S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIG S
855.874-0123 \xsuRes A : Philadetphia Indemnity lasuranee Co, 18058
INSURED T INSURER B ; Granita State Healthcara & Human Sve WG INONAIC
Granlte State Independent Living HSURER C ¢
21 Cheneli Drive IRSURER D : ; -
Concord, NH 03301 B P—
" | INSURER F :

COVERAGES - CERTIFICATE NUMBER:

REVISION NUMBER:

THIS 5 TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TOQ THE: INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY . REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE {SSUED CR MAY FERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIGNS OF SUCH POLICIES. UMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCEQ BY PAID CLAIMS. . v

ol TYPE OF INSURANCE e vam y PCLICY NUMBER |-§31"63va” ﬁ%ﬁ% unirs
A | -X| COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY _ 02/01/2024|02/01/2025 EacH oCCURRENCE 51,000,000
} ceamsaunoe [ X] occun ‘ - B T2 0y |4100,000
- | ' ! MED EXP (Any one parson) $5,000
|| PERSONAL & ADVINJURY  |$1,000,000
| GENL AGGREGATE LlMiT APPLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE 53,000,000
|| Poucy D JECT Loc . PRODUCTS - coMPioP aGG | 53,000,000
OTKER: . $
A | AutomasiLe LABRITY ] 02/01/2024]02/01/2025 o b0 SNGLE (WIT 1 4 000,000
x ANY AUTO N BODILY INJURY (Porparsan) |3
| S SeHERLLED BODILY IMIURY [Par accident) | §
R o [X] IR e
. $
A | X)UMBRELLALB | ¥ | occuR 02/01/2024[02/01/2025 EACH OCCURRENCE $5,000.000
EXCE33 UAB CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE $5,000,000
oeo | X| reresmons10000 - - 3
8 ﬁ;‘gﬁﬁ:gg’;’fﬁ‘;m;‘v vin 0_1!01!2024 01/01/2028 X |E5 .
ag;lggglmlﬁ%gg‘%mggggicumlﬂ NIA EL BACHACCIOENT 31,000,000
{Mandatory tn NH} E.L. OISEASE . EA EMPLOYEE) $1,000,000
If yas, describe undsr
CESCRIPTION-OF OPERATICHS below E.L DISEASE - PoLiCY LT | 31,000,000

A jProfesslonal
Liability

02/01/2024|02/01/2025 $1,000,000 Ea. Incident
$3,000,000 Aggregate

DESCRIPTION OF QPERATIONS ! LOCATIONS ] VEHICLES [ACORD 101, Additonal Remarks Schadule, may be antsched if more spaca s requiredy

Additional Insured Status Is Provided When Required by Contract with Respect to the Commarcizl Generai

Liability.
Evidence of insurance

_CERTIFICATE HOLDER

CANCELLATION

Nhed
25 Hall Street
Concord, NH 03301

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORRED REPRESENTATIVE

Sea Soé :

ACCRD 25 {2016/03) 1 of1
#543488069/M43486005

© 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD nama and Iogo ara ragisterad marks of ACORD

AZLZP -




... Coocord Main Offiec

* 21 Chenefl Drive

: Cencord, NH 03301

B » ' | E03.228.5880 °

. ) . - 800,826:3700

‘ ) : £03.,225.3304 {fax}
wanv.geilocg

" Granite Stare (o

: , Rrhgfﬁglndqmdmm e

Mission Statément - -

!

- Gtramte State Independent L1V1ng (GSIL) isa
statewide nonprofit organization whose mission isto
promote quality of life with independence for people
with disabilities through advocacy, information,

| educatlon support and tran51t1on serviees.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT: PROFTSSI 0S4 ASSICLTINY
< " _ CERTIE(ED PUBLIC ACCGUNTANTS

_\FOLFEBAORO * NORTH CONWAY .

DOVER « CONCORD

. TotheBoard of Dlrectorsof . K Lo ST
. 'Granite State Independent Living

i

.* We have audited the accompanying ﬁﬁahciél,statements ‘of Granite State Indépendent Living
{a New Hampshire nonprofit organization}), which-comprise the statement of financial position

- as of September 30, 2021, and the related statement of acﬂvxt:es and statement of functional

expenses for the year then ended,” and the statement of cash flows for the years ended
September 30, 2021 and 2020 and lhe related notes to the financial statements. g

Management’s Responsibihty for the Financial Statements ; g

Management ts responsible for the preparation and fair presentahon of these fihancial

statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
Ameérica; this includes the design, implemantation, and maintenance of internal control relevant
to the ‘preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’' Responsibility

#
]

. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial staiements based on our audits:
We conducted our audits in-accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the,
_Umted States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits: contained in
Govemment Audifing Standards; issued by the Comptroller General of the United States:
.Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free from materlal mxsstatemant

An audit involves performing -procedures to obtain audit ev1denca abou! the amounts and .

disclosures in the financial statemenis. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers intemal control refevant. to the entily's preparation and fair presentation of the

financial  statements in order to design audit procedures that are .appropriate’ in the -
circumstances, but not for the. purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity'’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion, An audit also includes:

. evaluating the appropﬁataness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
: presentatlon of the financial statements. ,

We believe that the audit’ evidence we have obtained Is sufﬁcient and appropnate to provide a .

basis for our audit opinlon

-



*. Opinlon | )
lﬁ'our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairlﬁ,'~in‘all material respects, -
the financial position of Granite State Independent Living-as-of September 30,2021, and the-
changes in its nef assets and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
accaunting principles generally accepted in the Uniled States of America.

Report on Summarized Camparative Information
We-have previously audited Granite State Independent Living's financial statements as of
_Sep;ember 30, 2020, and we expressed an unmodified audit opinion on those audited financial
glatéments in our report date January 31, 2021. In our opinion, the summarized comparative
information presented heretn as of and for the year ended September 30,-2020, is consislent, in

" all material respects, with the audited financial statements from which it has been derived. "

Other lnformqtibn'

* Our-audit was. conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as
a whole. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as required by Title 2

. U.8. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards is presented for purposes of additional
analysis ard is not a required part of the financial statements. Such information is the
responsibility of management and was 'derived from and relates directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the financial stalements. The information has
been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial staterhents and
certain additional procedures, including comparing and recenciling such information directly to
the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the
financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information’is
fairly stated, in all material respects, in relatlon lo the financial statements as a whole.

Other Repqrﬂng Required by Government Auditing Standards

in accordance with Govemment Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
. December 23, 2022 on our consideration of Granite State independent Living’s intemal contro! -
aver financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and olher matters. The purpose of that report is
to describe the scope of our testing of internal contro over financial reporting and compliance
. and the results of that testing, and not to provide an apinion on intemal contiol over financial
+ reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance
with Government Auditing Sfandards In cansidering Granite State Independent Living's interna!l -
control aver financial reporting and compliance.

. .‘ Teone. TeDonnett &+ Roborte P»‘,&é,m;,ma,g Oecociod ',- o

_ Dover, New Hampshire
December 23, 2022



T " ‘ STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
L L. SEPTEMBER 30, 2021 . .
' i v et WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS A OF SEPTEMBER 30, 2029) . '
. s - . 2024 :
) N ’ . * . WilhoutOondr  WithDomor, - © 2020
i R ) . Rasctrietions Bestriclions JoTAL . JOTAL
. CURRENT ASSETS . i . . - .
 Cash ond cash aquivalents . “ $ 2788280 § 36993 & 201,201 .§ 4882672
- Rastricisd cosh ' 34,151 - s 8,388
. . Azcounts recaivible, net . 3gTeEMd. . - 3,678,814 - 702468
Prepaid sxpensas . . 74,868 - 74 686 126 538
C Toial crraat assals ’ . : 8,771,920 3012 . 8802832 _- 6528080
: NONCURRENT ASSETS < ‘ - ’
Investmenls ) . 859703 167.787 1.167,570 1025315
. Property 0nd equipment; nel - 705.718 . 705716 §85.867
. Yota! poncurent asssts : : 1,675,499 197,787 1,873,286 1,991,182
’ TOTAL ASSETS ‘ . $ 8447419 3 220699 5 BA76118 3§ 659,282
' . 1 b ¢ ’ - ’ * ‘ .
) . : BILITIES ASS '
CURRENT LIABILITIES ' - C. .
Accounts payable s 14291 s 5 e s 285541
. * Agcrued payrol] pnd rotled Gobliies . 470,383 . 470,383 853,137
Accued eipenses © ) 47,743 . 743 . 208,118
Delerred revanta . . 298018 - - 268,013 317 408
o Contracls payatle : = . - 7,268
Tots! tabillies “ 830,435 . $30,438 1,269,481
NET ASSETS - . .
Without danor resticions L. 1518384 . 7,516,984 6,518,342
‘With donor restrictions: - ) ' )
Teae and purpose rostriciod v - 30,012 30,912 34,042
Perpstual endorment . 197,787 197,797 188,487
Totel aet aasets ) : 7518984 . 228699 2,745,683 6,749,711
“TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS - §__B4en41s $ 228689 8676418 § 6519263

»
1

. 3



GHANITE STATE INDEPENDENT LIVING S v 7

SN STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES - . :
E " ¥ FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 19, 2021 Yy -
- M[mcgumm B TOTALS FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2020) ° "
» ' .- 202 . ) .
. * * Whithout Denor With Donor 2020
N . Restrlctions Restalctlons Tola) ' Iatal
REVENUE AND SUPPORT Lt ] L
Grants . o $ 373305 $ 3,483 'S 3737764 § 4212915
* Public supgort * . ; . Mosol 1,308 220 ‘80,917
Speciz! venls, nol 52,574 - 82,574 . 56,388
Pragram faes, nst- 14,604,040 e . 14804.54D 15,058,022
Indecest, pal . 621 - g21 §,229
Mscelianacuy - 22483 - 22468 | 4,239
Gain (loas) on salo of property . asady - (28,241) 17200
Investrrant income, et 135825 - 125,625 - 413
" Not s3sals relensed kom restricions 74903 {7,493 s -
Toi! f;vﬁﬂun and suppart - 18 650,684 {2,730} '13.847.954 19,481,623
EXPENSES | . - A - o
Program Sorvices . - . . '
Long-lerm caro” 12,239,557 - 12,230,887 . 12,301,043
Communily Econemic Dovelopmanl . 3,076,837 - 3,076,657 3,173,096
REM . 100,866 . {00,866 . .
Tolad progr'am services 15,417,290 - - 15417.290 15,479,130
Supporting Services o - S '
Gengral and Adminisiralive v 1,033,521 . 1933521 3,184,563
Fum!:_aj;lng i 301,231 - 301 231 105,178
Total supporting sorvices : . 2.234.752 =, 2234752 3,289,739
Total expenscs . 17,852,042 - 37,832,042 1 3.74_!8.873
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 998.042 (2.730) . 998912 - 12748
NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR : 6,518,342 221,420 6,749.77‘{ 8,037,028

NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR

31,516,084 32165688 § 7.745.883 $ 68148,

P

' See Notes to Financial Statements

4 .
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. GRAMITE STATE INDEPENDENT LIVING ‘
- STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES -
* FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2021 .
TOTA MBER 2
_Program Jenvien Supporiing Borvicas N -
Community i Tota! "y Tota!
5 Leng-Term Coonamic . Program Ganernl and Supparitog 02 420
- ey - Raxstprmgnt’ BEM- dervigey admintsintiey, ! Serrices Joti Tt
Poiongl papenses, * ] -.
Siterlos 5 wopEs 3 AM2.003 5 ey RS mssan 3 22,090 3. T 300 £ 1277318 31237262
Engroyey besalis 102,084 AN <87 1L50/550 T TNem 4,30 ATE - 14 284,048
Payrad laxas * o 22084 4262, L5 115,803 $3,088° 120,45 1021553 R Y:ry X ]
Grrh 2.537 B 11100 8517 - . - .y L4904
Buadrg craupancy n.a2 8TH 048 30888 £6,420 ] 1] man 304,821
Indfoamasdion 22,970 31400 144 [-Apal 113,058 240 119,560 153819 230632
Professionss feas 20,039 Jan 20 [T 149,717 1,200~ 151,857 22y 135192
Ocpreciaton 36 ] v 10778 I7.8M 99 e A RN hrat- 8 21901
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STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

. FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2021 AND 2020

+

kY
[

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERAﬂNG ACTIVIT]ES
Change In nat assels -
Adjustments o reconcile change ln net assets'to net .
- tash and resticted cash from operating actlvlu'as
Depreciation
{Gain} loss on sale of property
Realizad {galn) loss on Investments
Unrealized (galn) foss on investments
Restricted contributions
" (Increase) decreass In assets:
Accounts recelvable
Prepaid expense
Increase {decrease) In liabililies
Accounts payable
Accrued payroll and related 1lah1mes

Accrued expenses
Deferred revenue

NET CASH PROVIDED BY (usén IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES.
. Sales (purchases) of investments, net
Proceeds from sale of property
Purchese of property and aquipment
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN) INVESTING ACTIVITIES
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from rﬁtr!cted contributions e
Payments of contracts pavable
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES
NET CHANGE IN CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS AND RESTRICTED CASH
CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS AND RESTRICTED CASH, BEGINNING OF YEAR

CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS AND RESTRICTED CASH, END OF YEAR

See Notes to Financial Statements

6

2021, : 2028 -

§ 995812 § 712745
171,908 ° 219,619
28,241 {17.200)
(34.344) 21706
{88,477 . 149.672)
{1,300) (845)

(2,174,348) (197.173)
51,890 233,710

- {171,250) 188,664
(482,754) 143,287
(158.373; (73.874)

. (19,391 168,390
{1,882,285) 1,347,357
(15,434) 7,237
129,604 * 17,200
(69,603) (218,178)
40,567 {193.741)
1,300 845
(7.288) (7.850)
(5,988) (7.105)
(1,847,706) 1,146,511
4.699.058 3,552,547
$ 2851352 § 4699058

-



GRANITE STATE INDEPENDENT LIVING .

‘ NOTES-TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS -
FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2021 AND 2020

ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Granite State Independent Living (the Orgamzahon) is a New Hampshire nonprofit
.’ corporation prowdmg g wide range of services to Improve the quahly of life for.individuals
with disabilities in New Hampshlre This is accomplished through ensuring the availability
of a broad range of.services, advocacy efforts, and the éstablishment of social support.
The Orgamzatlon impacls lives through two primary service areas:

Long-Terr Care Program. The Organization offers a variely of personal cafe service
programs based on eligibility.. Personal care attendants provide non-medical, hands-on
assistance with activities of daily living for seniors'and adults living with. disabllities. A
.personal care worker helps individuals bathe, dress, eal, and navigate a range of other
daily tasks. In addition to. providing assistance with activities of daily living, persona| care
workers can assist with “housekeeping chores; meal preparation, and medication
management. Personal care services can be delivered in either a privale home, residential
care setting, or an individual's place of employment. The Organization also provides

nursing facmty transition services.

c:ommunlty Economic Development Program. The Orgamzahon is commltted o -~
assisling seniors and consumers with disabiliies so they can function well within their
communlty and pursue personal goals, whether through employment or eaming academic

credit through' youth transition programs: Options are discussed through a call to
Infofmation & Referral Program Service Coordinators, who help individuals set their goals. -
Services provided can include benefit planning. ransportation, ASL referral, peer support,
and access modification. Additional services offered may include placement, job coaching,
and employment through-the Ticket to Work Program.

Bas!s of Accountlng
The .accompanying ﬁnancual statemenis have been prepared on the accrudl basis of

accounting.

r .

Basis of Presentation ;

The financiatl statements of the Orgamzailon have been prepared in accordance with U.S.
generally accepted accounting principles (US GAAP), which require the Organizationto’
report information regarding its financial posifion and aclivities according 1o the following
net asset classifications:

Net assets without donor restrictions —~ Net asseis that are not subject-to donor-impased
restriclions and may be expended for any purpose in performing the primary objectives of
the Organization. These net assets may be used at the discretion the Organlzatlons
- management and board of directors. ; !




-GRANITE STATE INDEPENDENT LIVING Lo

NOTES TO0 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS .
'FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2021 AND 2020

-

. _Net assets with donor restrictions — Nel assets subject to stipulations lmposed by donors

and grantors. Some donor restrictions are.temporary in nature; those restrictions will e
.met by actions of.the Organization or by passage of time, Other donor réstrictions are
perpetual in nature, whereby the donor has stlpulated the funds be maintained in,
perpetuity. .

- Donor reslricted contributions are reported as. increases In net assets wlth donor
restrictions. When restriction expires, net assets are reclassified from net assets with
donor reslnctmns to net assets w1thout donor restrictions in the statement of activilies.

.7 L Asof September 30, 2021 and 2020 lhere were donor restricted net assets of $228,699

and $231,429, respeclively.

Cash and Cash Equivalenis T

All cash and. highly liquid financial |nstruments with original matunhes of thrée months or -
less, and which are nelther held: for nor restricted by donors for fong-term purposes, are
considered to be cash and cash equivalents. Cash and highly liquid finahciat instruments

. testricted far permanent endéwment or-other long-term purposes are ekcluded from this
def nition.

The following table provides a reconc!hatlon of cash and restricted cash reported within -
the statement of financial position that sum to the total in the statements of cash flows
-as of September 30, and is comprised of the following components:

_ 2021 2ozq'
_ Cashand cash equivalents $ 2817,201 $ 4,692,672
Restricted cash 34,151 6386
Totalcash - ' _s__g_m § 4698 058

. Accounts Receivable ' . :
Accounts receivable consist primarily of nonmterest-bearing accounts due for sennces
and programs. The allowance for uncollectible accounts receivable is based on
historical experience, .an assessment of economic conditions and a review of
subsequent coﬂecﬁons Accounts receivable are wrrtten off when deemed uncollectible.

-‘Revenue and Raveriue Recognition .
Revenue is recognized when earned. Program service fees and payments under cost-

reimbursement contracts received in advance are deferred to the applicable period In
which the related services are performed or expenditures are incurred, fespectively.



| GRANITE STATE INDEPENDENT LIVING

- NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
"FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2021 AND. 2020

Investments
The Organization carries mvestmenls in.marketable securities with readily determinable
fair values ‘and all investments in debt securities at-their fair values in the Statement of
Financial Position. Unrealized gains and Iésses are included in the change in net assets
in the accompanying Statement of Activities. . ’

Property and Degreclat:on .

Property and Equipment -additions over $1,000 are recorded at cost, if purchased or if
_donated, at estimated fair value on the date received. Material assets with a useful life in
.excess of one year are capitalized. Depreciation is provided for using the straight-line

method over the estimated useful lives of the related assets as follows, or iri the case of -

capitalized leased assets or leasehold tmprovements the lesser of the useful life or the

asset or the iease term: .

Buildings ' 40 years
Leasehold Improvements ' 51tc 40 years
Fumiture, fixtures and equipment 3to5years |
Vehlcles . Syears’

GCosts for repalrs and maintenance are expensed when mcurred and betterments are
capitalized. Asséts sold or otherwise disposed of are removed from the accounts, a!ong
with the related accumulated depreciation and any gain or Ioss is recognized.

The camying values of property and equipment are revrewed for impairment whenever
evenls or cirgumstances indicate that the carrying value of an asset may not be
recoverable from the estimated future cash flows expected to result for its use and
eventual dlsposmon Wheh considered impaired, an impairment loss is recognized to the
extent carrying value éxceeds the fair value of the asset. There were no indicators of asset
impairment for the years ended September 30, 2021 and 2020.

Falr Value of Financlal instruments
Accounting Standards Codification No. 825 {ASC 825), Disclosures of Feir Value of

Financial Instruments, requires the Qrganization to disclose fair values for its financial
instruments. The Organization's financial instruments consist of cash and cash
equivatents, restricted cash, accounts receivable, prepaid expenses, accounts payable,
accrued payroll and related fiabilities, accrued expenses and deferred revenus. The
camying value for all such Instruments, considering the lterms, approximates fair vaiue at
September 30, 2021 and 2020. The fair values of investments are measured using a fair
value hierarchy, which priofitizes the Inputs used in measuring falr values (see Note -
10).

3



GRANITE STATE INDEPENDENT LIVING

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ' .
E R THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2021 AND 2020

Contributlons :

’ Contnbutlons are recognized when received. Afl contributions are reported as increases in’
" . net assets without donor restrictions unless use of the contributed asset is specifically -
restricted by the donor. Amounts received that are festricted by the donor fo use infuture
periods or for specific purposes are: reported as increases in net assets with donor
restrictions. Unconditional promises with payments due in future years have an implied |
restriction to be used in the year the payment is due and, therefore’ are reported.as net
assets.with donor restrictions until the payment is due unless the contnbutnon is cléarly
intended to support activilies of the current fiscal year. Conditional promtses such as
matching grants, are not recognized until they become unconditional, that |s unlll all
conditions on which they depend are substanhally met, _
Gifts4n-Kind Contnbutlons . -

The Organization penodlcaliy receives conlnbutlons in a fom other than cash or
investments. Contributed property and equipment is recognized as an- asset at its
estimated fair value at the date of -gift, provided that the value’ of the asset and its
estimated useful life meets lhe Organization's capitalization policy. Donated use of
facilitles Is reported as contributions and as expenses at the estimated fair value of similar
space for rent under similar conditions. If ffie use of the space is promised unconditionally
for a period greater than one year, the amiount is reported as a contribution and an
.unconditional promise to give at the date of gift, and the expense is reported over the term.
of use..Donated supplies are recorded as contributions at the date-of gift and as expenses
when the donated items are placed into service or dustnbuted

.

The Organlzatlon "benefits from personal semces provtded by a substantial number of

volunteers. Those volunteers have donated sxgmﬁcant amounts of time and services in the

Organization's program operations and in its fundraising campaigns.. However, the

majority of the contributed services do not meet the criteria for-recognition in the financiat
" statements. Generally Accepted Accounting' Principles alfow recognition of. contributed

services only if (a) the services creaté or enhance nonfinancial assets or (b} the services

would have been purchased if not prowded by contribution, require specialized skills, and
- are provided by lndmduals possessmg those skills,

Grant Revenue

Grant revanue is recogmzed when quahfymg costs are mcurred for cost-reimbursement
grants or contracts or when a unit of service is pravided for performance grants. Grant
revenue- from federal agencies is subject to mdependent audit under the Office of
Management and Budgets, Uniform Guidance, and review by grantor agencies: The
review could result in the disallowance of expenditures under the terms of the grant or
reductions of future. grant funds. Based on prior experience, the Organization's
management believes that costs ultimately dlsallowed if any, would not materially affact
the financlal position of the Organization.
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GRANITE § STATE INDEPENDENT L‘IV!NG ’

"

_ ' NOTES TO FINANGIAL STATEMENTS =~ .. -
FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 202% AND 2020

Summarized Financial Information’ :

The financial statements Include cerain prior-year summarized comparative lnformatxon in
total but not by net asset class. Such information does not include sufficient detail to
- constitute a- presentation in conformlty with accounting pringiples generally acoepted in the
United States of America. Accordingly, such. information should be read in conjunction °

with the Organization's financial statements for the year ended September 30, 2020, from
which the summarized information was derived,

Accergﬂmed Time ' 2
The Organization has accrued a habﬂxly for future cnmpensated leave tlme that its
employees have earned -and which is vested with the employee. Accrued eamned time
amounted to $169, 733 and $190, 007 at September 30, 2021 and 2020, respechvely

-

Adverttstng Costs |
* Advertising costs are expensed as incurred and are reported In the Statement of Activities
and Statement of Functional Expenses. .

Income Taxes

The Organization is exempt from income taxes under ‘Section 501{c)(3) of the Interna
Revenue Code and qualifies for charitable contributions deductions.” The Intermnal
Revenue Service has determined the Organization tobe other than a private’ foundation
within the meanmg of Sectmn 501(a)

The Organization is required to file a Retum of Organization Exempt from Income Taxes
(Form 680) with the IRS. In addition, the Organization is subject fo income iax on net
* income that Is derived from business activities that are unrelated to its exempt purpose. In
fiscal year 2021, the Organization was not subject to unselated business income tax and
did not file an Exempt Organization Business Income Takx Retumn (Form 990-T) with the
. IRS.

Management has evaluated the Organizalion's tax.positions and concluded that the
Organization has maintained its tax-exempt status and has taken no uncerain' tax
positions that would require adjuslment to the financial statements. The ‘Organization is
subject to income tax exammahons by the United States Federal or State tax authorities
for three. years .
Esttmates .
The prepe preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Generally Accepted
Accounting' Principles requires estimates and assumplions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabiliies and disclosurs of contingent assets and liabilities at the,
date of the financial statemenis and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses
" during the reporting period. Actual resuits could differ from those estimates; and those
dlfferences could be material.

"
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. _GRANITE.STATE INDEPENDENT LIVING

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
. FORTHE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30 2021-AND 2020

. . Functional Allocation of Expenses : . : )
" The costs of providing the various services and other, aclivities have béen summarized on
a functiona} basis. Natural expenses are defined by their nature, such as salaries; rent,
* supplies, etc: Functional expenses are classified by the type of activily for which expenses .
are incurred, such as management and general and direct program costs. Expenses are
allocated by function using a feasonable and consistent approach that is. piimarily based
on function-and use. Expenses that relate solely to the functional calegories are directly
charged, -however, there are certain expenses that are allocated. Personnel expenses,
including salaries and weges, employee benefits, and' payroll taxes, are allocated based
on time and effort estimates. Building occupancy costs are allocated on a square footage
basis. ' ‘ - K ‘ ‘ )

Financial Instruments and Credit Risk . :

- Deposit concentration risk is managed by placing cash with financial institutions believed
to be creditworthy. At times, amounts on‘deposit may exceed insured limits of inciude
uninsured iivesiment in money market funds. To date, no losses have been experienced
in.any of these accounts. Credit risk associated with receivables is considered to be limited

“due to high histerical collection rates and because substantial portions: of the oulstanding |
amounts are due fram govemmental agencies supportive of the Organization’s mission. ’

. Investments are made by diversified investment managers whose performance is
monitred by the Figcal Committee of the Board of Directors. Although'the fair values of -
investments are subject to fluctuation on a year fo year basis, the Fiscal Committee
believes that the investment policies and guidelines are prudent for the long-term welfare
of the Organization. - ' . s

New Accounting Pronouncements . - o
{n May 2014, FASB issued-ASU 2014-09 (Topic 606) — Revenue from Contracts with
Customers. The ASU and all subsequently issued clarifying ASUs replaced the existing
revenue recognition guidancé in U.S. GAAP. The ASU also requires expanded -
disclosurés relating to the nature, amount, timing, and uncertainty of revenue from cash
flows arising from conbracts with customers. The Organization adopted the new
standard effective October 1, 2020, the first day-of the Organization’s fiscal year using
the modified retrospective’ approach. The adoption did not result in a change to the
accounting for any of the applicable revenue streams; as such, no cumulative effect
"adjustment was recorded. . :

Revenue Recoanition Policy : T )
" The Organization derives revenue primarily from services provided to their clients.

Service revenue is teported at the amount that reflects consideration to which the
Organizat'iop expects to be entitled in exchange for providing services. “Thase amounts
are due from.clients and third-party payers. Revenue-is recognized as performance

obligations are satisfied. L . '

-

. ‘12
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- GRANITE STATE INDEPENDENT LIVING

. NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 36, 2021 AND 2020

Al

Performance ob!rgalfons are determmed based on the nature of-the services proyided

by the Orgamzatton and the contract with the chent or thrrd-parky and are satisfied when
the service ts performed.

The Organization determines the transaction price based on stan‘darcf charges for -
goods and services provided as well as the state contract rate with third-party payers.

Performance Obligations and Contracts Assets and Liahilities

The performance obligations relaled-to the services provided for the Organization are
satisfied at a point in time. Revenue from performance obligations satisfied af a point in
time consist of contracts wilh the client or third-party. Contract liabilities at September
30, 2021 and 2020 were $298,018 and $317,409, respectively. )

LIQUiDITY AND AVAILABILITY T 3 v

The following represents nts the Org: Organization's financial assets as of September 30:
. " . o 2020
Finantial assets at year end: . R
Cash and cash equivalents - .8 2817201 $ 4,692,672
. Accounts receivable, net . 3,876,814 1,702,466
Investments 1,167,570 1,025315
Total financial assets 7.861.585 | . ?-,420345.;5 ..
Less amounts not available to be used
within one year: -
Net assets with donor restrictions: '
Time and purpose restrictions nol expected :
to be met in less than one year . -(30,912) (34,942)
Perpatual endowment ] {197.787) - (196 487)
Total amount not available within one year __ (228,699) - (231,429}

Financlal assets available to meetgenéral * - -

- expenditures over the next twelve months $ 7632886 $ 7,] 89,024

»

Endowment funds consist of donor-restricted endowments. Income from donor—resmcted
endowments is available for general use. The portion of endowment funds that are
perpetual in nature are not available for general expenditure.

13



GRANITE STATE INDEPE&DENT LIVING wo

+" 7 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - .
FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTENBER 30 2021 AND 2020

The Organization regularly moniters liquidity requlred to mest rts operating needs and

other contractual commitments, while also stnvmg to maximize the investment of its .
" available funds. in addition to financial assets available to meet general expenditures over
the next year, the Organization operates with a balanced budget and anticipates collecting

sufficient revenue ta cover general expendltures nol covered by donor-restncted
resources. '

As part of the hquidlty management plan, the Organization also has a $1 000,000
revolvmg iine of credit available to meet cash flow needs. See Note7.’ ‘

4

_RESTRICTED CASH
The- Organization is the fiscal sponsor for Transport NH an advocacy. orgarzizahon
currently seeking exempt status as an organization descnbed in IRC Section 501(c){(3).

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE .
Accounts recelvable consist of the following at September 30, 2021
| Accounts
Receivable Allowance - Net
Medicaid = P 936400 $ - $ 936400
Title Vi ’ 37471 - 37171
Other 2973488 . (70,243) 2903243
Total - B3847067 5 (70243). §..3876814
* Accounts recelvable consist of the following at September 30, 2020:, b
- Receivable Allowance -  Net
Meadicaid . $ 774234 § - §  7742%4
Other ) _ ' 965725 (37,493) '__ 928232

Totl . | §.173995% § (37493 § 1702456

- 14



. GRANITE STATE INDEPENDENT LIVING -~

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2021 AND 2020

5. INVESTMENTS
The folfowmg isa summary of investments at September 30:

- 2029 :
: Unrealized
Fair Value Cost Galn (Loss)
' Exchange-traded funds. - § 136074 $ 093,306 §$. 42768
Mutual funds 195,627 165,278 - 40,349
U.S. Treasury obligations . 99,158 100,000 (841)
U.S. Corporate.bonds  * | 441,230 439010.- . 2220
Convertible bonds ~ * | . 20,205 20812 (607)
U.S. Cemmon stock 275,275 190,500 B4 775 .
Tol S1167570 $ 998906 ' $ 168664
2020 .
Unrealized

?airVa!ue a “ Cost = Gain(Loss)

Exchange-traded funds $ 120524 $ - 115405 % 5119

Mutual funds . - 167,172 144,129 23,043
. U.S. Treasury obligations . 95,264 95,125 139
L.S. Corporate bonds 389202 - 389,572 9,630
LS. Common stock C - 243153 202,317 40,836
Total : $ 1,gg§,§1 $ 048548 3 78 ,Z§Z

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in-the market interest rates will adversely affect
the fair value of -an investmént. Generally, the longer the maturity of the investment, the
_greater the sensitivily of its fair value to changes in market interest rates.

The Organization's investment policy states that not more than 10% (at cost) of the
investment portfolic may be invested in the securities of any one issue, with the exception

. ofthe U.S. Government or Its agencies. The maximum amount invested in the securities of
issuers in the same industry shall not be more than 25% (at cost) of the portfotio.

15



GRANITE STATE IN'DEPENDENT LIVING

NOTES TG FINANGIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30 2021 AND 2020

-‘. -

., Components of .investmént return: : .
- 2021 T 2020

Iriterest and dividénds $ 24542 $ 26570,
Investment fees . (12,138) | {10,823} -
Gain — unrealized . 88,477 49,672 . -
Gain (loss) ~Tealized . 34,344 (21,706)

Total investment return - 135625 ‘§.__43713

PROPERTY EQUIPMENT AND DEPREC{ATION
Property, equipment, ‘and vehlcles consmted of the following as of September 30:

2021 2020

Land _ . $ 60198 $ 69,198
Buildings and Improvements -~ . 1,171,061 1,473,974
" Furniture, fixtures; and equment 1,045,689 1,045,689
Work in Process ) 54,254 -
“Vehicles : : _ 632,525 632,525
__ 2972727 3,221,386

Less accumulated depreciation (2267011} (22555619} -

Property and equipmant; riet o . 705118 &.ﬁﬁiﬁﬁl .

. Depreciation expense for the years ended September 30, 2021 and 2020 was, $171 909
and $219 619 respectively.

BANK LINE OF CREDIT ’
“The . Organization has a $1,000,000 revo!vmg line of credit agreement with a bank,
secured by all assets. Borrowings under the line bear interest at the bank's LIBOR
Advantage rate plus 3.50%, with a fleor of 5.00%, adjusted monthly. Interest only
payments are requnred monthly with the pnnmpa! payable on.demand. At September 30,
2021 and 2020, the Organization had no outstanding balance-on the line of credit and did
not draw on the line during fiscal year 2021.

CONTRACTS PAYABLE

“During fiscal year 2016, the Organization entered into a lease agreement for a new
Nashua office location. The Organization was required to make Jeasehold .
improvements which were .paid.in full by the lessor, As part of the terms of the

16



. GRANITE STATE INDEPENDENT 'LIVING

. . NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS , .
. FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2021 AND 2020

agreement the Organlzatlon is required to pay the Iessor $663 per month, in addition to
the base rent, for the improvements performed by the.lessor. At September 30, 2020
the outstanding balance was §7, 288 The balance was pald in full dunng the year ended
September 30; 2021 ‘ .

ENDOWMENT FUNDS ' ’ <
The Organization's endowment consists of mdw:duat funds estabhshed by donors to
provide funding for specific activities and general operations. New Assets associated
with endowment funds are classmed and reported based on the extstence or absence of
donor~lmposed restrictions.

The Board of Direclors has :nterpreted the New Hampshire, Uniform Prudent
Management of Institutional Funds Act (UPMIFA) as requiring the preservation of ‘the
fair value of the original gift as of the gift date of the donor-restricted.endowment funds,
unless there are explicit donor stipulations to the contrary. At September 30, 2021, there
were.no such donor stipulations. As a result of this interpretation, nel assets with donor
restrictions are classified as {a) the original value of gifts donated to the endowment, (b)
the original value of subsequent gifts donated to the endowment (including contributions
receivable net of discount and allowance for doubtful accounts), and (c} accumulations

_to the endowment made in accordance with the direction of the applicable donor gift
instrument at the time the accumulation is added. Donor restricted amounts nol retained -
in perpetuity are subject to appropriation for expenditure by the Organization in a
manner consistent with the standard of prudence prescribed by UPMIFA, The following -
factors were considered in making a determmatlon to.appropriate or accumulate donor-
restricted andowment funds: o -

The duration and preservation of the fund.
" The purposes of the Organization and the donor—restncted endowment fund.
Generaj economic candifions.
The possible, effect of inflation and deflation.

. The expected total return from income and the appreciation of investments.
Other resources of the Organization.
The investment poficies of the Organization.

# ®» © 0 9 . -]

Investment and Spending Policies

The Organization has adopted investment and spending policies for the
investment . funds that attempt to provide a predictable stream of funding -for
oparations while seeking to maintain the purchasing power of the investment
assets. Over time, long term rates of retumn should be equal to an amount
sufficient to maintain the purchasing power of the investment assets, to provide
the necessary capital to fund the spending potlcy, and to cover the costs of
managing the investment funds. The target minimum rate of retum is the .
Consumer Price Index plus 5% on an annual basis. Actual returns in any given

7
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. NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEFTEMBER 30, 2021 2021 AND 2020

- . year may vary from this amount. To satlsfy this long-term rate-of-return objective, -

the investment por‘tfol:o is structured on a total-return approach through which . -

investment returns are achieved through both capital appreciation {realized and .
unrealized) and current yield (interest and dividends). A significant portion of the
funds ‘are invested to seek growth of principal over time "or unless the
Orgenization needs to access for immediate need, with Board approval.

The investmenl fund spending-rale formula is used to determing the maximum
amount to spand from the investment fund edch year. The rate, determined and .
adjusted from tims to time by the Board of Directors, is applied to the average fair
value of the investment fund investments for the prior 12 quarters at December
31 of each year to determine the spending amount for-the upcoming year. In

- sglablishing this policy, the long-term expected return on the investment fund’
was considered, the rate set with the .objeclive of maintaining .the purchasmg
power of the investment fund over time.

Funds with Deficlencles -
_Due to market conditions, the fair value of assels associaled with individual donor
"restricted endowment funds may fall below the level that the donor or UPMIFA
requires the Organization to retain as a fund of perpetual duration. There were no
deficiencles at September 30, 2021 and 2020.

Changes in endowment net assets for the year ended September 30, 2021 areas
follows: ‘

Perpetual -
Endowment

Endowment net assets, beginning of year . $ 196487
Contributions - 1,300

Endowment net assets, end of year - 2 197787

Changes in. endowment net assets for the year ended September 30, 2020 are’ as
follows:

.
1

Perpetual
' Endowment
‘Endowment net assets, beginning of year $ 195642 .
Contributions _ ] e 845
Endowment net assets, end of year : 3136487
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»

"NOTES TO FINANCiAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2021 AND 2026

. FAIR VALUE'MEASUREME'NTS

FASB Accounting Standard Codification 820 "Fair Value Measurements® provides a

definition of fair value which focuses on an exit price rather than an entry. prica, -
_establishes a framework In generally accepted accounting principles-for measunng fair

value which emphasizes that fair value is a markét-based measurement, not an entity-
specific measurement, -and requires expanded disclosures about fair " value
measuréments. In accordance with FASB ASC 8§20, the Organization may use valuation
techniques consistent with market, income and cost approaches to measure fair value.
As a basis for considering market participant assumptions in fair value measurements
ASC Top:c 820 establishes a fair value hierarchy, which prioritizes the inputs used in
measuring fair values. The hierarchy gives the highest. priority of Level 1 measurements
and the lowest priority to Level 3 measurements. The-three levels of the falr value
hierarchy under ASC Topic 820 are described as follows:

Level 1 - [nputs to valuation methodology are quoted prices available in- actlve
markets for ldenllcal investments as of the reporting dale

Level 2 - lnputs {o the valuation methodolégy are other than quoted market

prices in active markets, which are either directly or indirectly observable as of

the reporting date, and fair value can be determined through the use of modeis or
. other valuation methodologies.

Leve! 3 - Inputs to the valuation methadology are unabservable inputs in

. sltuations where there is little or no market activity for the asset or habmty and the
reporting entity makes estimates and assumptions related to the pncmg of the
asset ar liability including assumptions regardmg risk.

The following Is a description of the valuation methodologies used for assets at fair ,

value.” There have been no changes in the methodo|ogies used at September 30, 2021.

Government obligations: Valued using pricing models maximizing the use of
observable lnputs for similar securities.

Non-govemment obligations: Consist of corporate bonds that -are valued using -

pricing models maximizing the use of observable inputs for similar securities.
This Includes-basing value on yields-currently available on comparab!e securities
of issuers with simltar credit ratings.

Common sfocks Valued at the closing market price on the stock exchange:

where they are traded (pnmanlyr the New York Stock Exchange).

19
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GRANITE STATE INDEPENDENT LIVING

_ NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS _
FOR THE YEARs‘gﬂDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2024 AND 2020°

NET ASSETS WITH DDNOR RESTRICTION

. Net assets with donor restrictions are comprised of the foliowing at September 30, 2021

and 2020 L
_ 2021 ' 2020 - ¢ -
Time and purpose restricted , T
Access modification program . $ 7,045 $ 10,395 .
Advocacy aclivities ’ 5,661 ) 5,661
Community economic development program . 6,790 6,780
IMPACCT program ) 11,418 12,095 -
Totat time and purpose restricted - 3912 34942
“Perpetual endowment ' ~ 197,787 196,487
Total L_ﬁﬁééﬁg &_25.1.&22

Net assets were released from donor restrictions by Incurring expenses satisfying the
restricted purpase or the occurrence of the passage of time as follows for the years ended,
Septeniber 30, 2021 and 2020:

»

- Subject to expenditure for specified purpose: ' i
Access modification program __ $ 6814 § ' 18,016
IMPACCT program 679 .22

Total time and plipose restricted LL&_Q LJ_.Q?_Z

RETIREMENT PLAN ’

The Organization provides a tax-deferred annuity plan quahf led under Sectlon 403(b) of
the Intemal Revenue Code. All. salaried employees working 30 or more hours a week and
are 21 years of age or older may participate in the plan. The Organization matches up to
100% of employee contributions to the plan, to a maximum of 6% of salaries, depending
on the years of service. The Organization contributed $92,363 and $82,171 for the years
ended September 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively.

OPERA'HNG LLEASES »

The Organization leases office space under the terms of non~cancellab|e Iease
agreements that are scheduled to expire at various times through 2024, The Qrganization -
also rents additional faciliies on a month to month basis. Rent expense under these
agreements, which is included in building occupancy in the Statement of Funclional
Expenses, totaled $190,307 and’ $173 090 for the years ended September 30, 2021 and
2020, respeclwely
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GRAN]TE STATI::E INDEPENDENT LIVING

" NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS i =
FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30 2021 AND 21 2020

© "The Organrzation also leases office eqmpment under non-cancellable lease agreements_

that' are scheduléd to-expire at various times through 2022, Equipment rental expense,
which is included .in equipment lease and maintenance in the Statement of Functional
Expenses, totaled 336,364 and $45, 715 for the years ended September 30, 2021 and

- 2020, respectively

i Estimated future minimum lease paymer}ts'_c.m the above leases are as follows: .

3l

. YearEnding )
September 30 - A'mount .
Y. 2022 $ 169,845
. 2023 . ©-112514
2024 1Q3,358_ '
2025 ‘ : . 37,638
. 2026 20025
Total ' o f..452.201 -
CONCENTRATIONS OF RISK

A material part of the Organization's revenue is dependent upon government sources, the
loss of which would have a materially adverse effact on the Organization. During the years
ended September 30, 2021 and 2020, Medicaid accounted for 72% and 70%,
respectively, of total revenues and 24% and 46%, respeclively, of total accounts
receivable. The State of New Hampshire confracts. with managed care organizations to
réimburse the Organization as a provider of services rendered.

LONG TERM CARE STABILIZATION PROGRAM

In response to COVID-19, in April 2020, the State of New Hampshire established the Long ,
Term Care Stabilization {LTCS) Program to provide stipends to certain front line Medicaid
providers. The program was developed to incentivize these direct care workers to remain
in of rejoin this critical workforce and continue to provide high quality care to vulnerable

_ persons during the pandemic. Under the program, the New Hampshlre Department of
" ‘Employment Security (NHES) would distribute $300 per week in stipends to eligible full

time front line workers and $150 per week in stipends t6 efigible part time front line
workers, The funding for the LTCS Program was provided through the Coronavirus Relief
Fund. During the year ended September 30, 2021, the Organization received grant.
revenue of $455,100 and expended $455,100 under the grant through payroll and fees for
service, Dunng the year ended September 30, 2020, the Organization received grant
revenue of $1,123,800 and expended $1,123,800 under the grant through payroil and fees :
for service. .
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GRANITE STATE INDEPENDENT LIVING L
. NOTES TO FINANGIAL STATEMENTS
" FORTHE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2021 AND 2020

REGLASSIFICAT!ON : ,
Certam amounts and accounts from the pnor years financial statemenis were reclassnﬁed :

to enhance comparablllty with the current year's financial statements. i

k) "

OTHER MATTERS
The 1mpact of the novel coronavirus (COVID 19) and measures to prevent lts spread are

- affecling the QOrganization. The significance of the impact of these disruptions, lncludmg

the éextent of their adveise impact on the Organization's finahcial and operahona! results,
will be .dictated by the length of time that such distuplicns continue and, in turn, wil
depend on the currenlly unknowable duration of the COVID-19 pandemic and the impact
of governmenta! regulations that might be |mposed in response to the pandemic. As of
Decernber 23, 2022, due to the measures put in place to prevent the spread of COVID-19
we are pnable to estimate the future performance of the Organization.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
Subsequent events are events or transactions that occur after the statement of ﬁnancral

position date, but before financial statements are available to be issued. Recognized

subsequent events are events or transactions that provide addjtional evidence about’
conditions that existed at the statement of financial position date, -including the

" -estimates tnherent in the process of preparing financial statements. Nonrecognized

subsequent events are events that provide evidence about.conditions that did not exist
at the statement of financial position date, but arose after that date. Management has
evaluated subsequent events through December 23, 2022, the déte the financial
statements were, avanabla to be issued.
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NOTE 1

NOTE 2

'NOTE 3

NOTE4

" 'BASIS OF PRESENTATION |

SUMMARY CF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES:

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDiTURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS -

, FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2021 o :

i

The accompanying schedule of expendltures ‘of Federat Awards (the Schedule)
includes the federal award activily of Granite Stale Independent Living under

programs of the federal government for the year ended Septernber 30, 2021, The

information in this Scheduls is presented in accordance with the requirements of
Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requ:rements Cost Principles, and Audit Réquirements -for Federal Awards
(Umform Guidance)."Because the Schedule presents only a selected portion of

-the operations. of Granite State Independent Living, it is not intended to.and does

hot present the fi nancial position, changes in net assets, or cash flows of the

" Organuzat:on

iow

Expenditures -reported on the Schedule are reported. on the acerual basis of i
accounting. Such expenditures are recognized following the cost. principles
contained in the Uniform Guidance, wherein certain types of expenditures are not
aliowable or are limited as to reimbursement.

INDIRECT COST RATE

;Gramte State Independent Living has elected not to use the ten percent de , .

mmlmls indirect cost rate ai!owed under the Uniform Guidance.

DONATED PERSONAL PROTECTIVE EQUIPMENT (UNAUDITED)
_Granite State Independent Living received the fair market value of personal
“protective eguipment of $2,500.
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c - ‘ ' . STROTHAM
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
%+ REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON
. - ANAUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED :
+ IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING §TANDARDSV

To the Board of Directors of : b e o
Granite State Independent Living B L T

-

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained In Government
Auditing Standards Issued by the Complroller General of the United States, the financial
staternents of Granite State Independent Living (a New Hampshire nonprofit organization),
_ which comprise the statement of financial ‘position as of September 30, 2021, and the related
“statements of activities, functional expenses and cash flows for the year then ended, and the
related notes to the financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated December
23, 2022 : ) . b
" Internal Control Over Financlal Reporting

In planning and perfarming our aldits of the financial statements, we considered Granite State

", Indépendent Living’s internal control over fi nancial reportsng (internal control) as a basis for

de5|gn|ng the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of -
expressing our oplmon on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing .an
opinion on the effectiveness of Granite State: Independent Living's internal control. Accordingly,
we do not express an opinion on the efiectiveness of Granite State lndependent Living's
intemal controI

A deficiency In internal confrof exists when ihe design or operation of & control does not allow .
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned.functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A maianial weakness is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented,
or detected and comected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is & deficlency, or a -
combination of deficiencies, In intemal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

' Our consideratlon of intemal control was-for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control
that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during
our audits we did-not identify any deficiencies in internat control that we consider to be material
weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.
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Compllance and Other Mattars
As part of obtaining -reasonable assurance about whether Granite- State Independent Living's:
" financlal statemeénts. are free fram material misstaternent, we perfoimed tests of its compliance -

. " with certain provisions -of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements,’ noficompliance

with which' could have a direct and.material effect an the financial statements. However,

providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audlt‘
and accordingly, we do not.-express such an cpinion. The results of our tests disclased no
instances of noncomplignce or' other matters that are requ:red to be reported under
GovemmentAudrtmg Srandards ‘

Purpose of this Report ‘

The purpose’ of this report is solely to descrlbe the scope of our testing. of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testmg. and not to provide an opinion on the effecttveness of
‘the Organizatlon s internal contrel or on compliance. This report is an integral part of'an audit
performed in accordance with Gavernment Auditing .Standards  in conSidenng the

.Organization's internal control and campliance. Accordmgly, this commumcatlon is notsuitable  °

for any other purpose

K eons, mobmuwtz + Rohente ng,mm,o*n,al OMawa:twm

Dover New Hampshire
Decembe;23 2022 -
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, . : DOVER » GONGORD
e STRATHAM.
INDEF’ENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE. '
FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL..
OVER COMPLIANCE RE REQUIRED BY THE THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

To the Bpard of Directors of
_Granite State Independent Living”

. Reporton Compliance for Each Major Federal Program
We have audited Granite State Independent Living's compliance with ihe types of compllance
requirements described in the OMB 'Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and
. material effect-on each of Granite State Independent Living’s major federal programs for the.
year ended September 30,2021, Granite State Independent Living's major federal programs
are identified in the summary of auditers' results section of the accompanying schedule of
‘findings and questioned costs.

. Managemant’s Responsibility
Management is responsible’ for compliance with the requirements of laws regulations,
contracts and grants apphcable to its federal programs.

Auditors’ Responslblllty
Our responsibility is fo express an opinion. on compliance- for each of Granite State .
- Independent Living’s major federal programs based on our audit of the types of compliance:
requirements refeired to above. We conducted our audit .of compliance in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U:S. Code of
- Federal Reguiations Part 200, Uniform Adminisirative Requirement, Cost Principles, and Audit -
Reqwraments of Federal Awards {(Uniform Guidance). Those standards and Uniform
Guidance require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about -
whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to -above that
could have a direct and material effect on a major federa! program occurred. An audi includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence about Granite State Independent Living's compliance with
‘those requirements ‘and performtng such other procedures as we considered neoessary in the
cireumstances.

.We believe that our audit provides a feasonable ‘basis for our opinion on comphance for each
major federal-program. Howaver, our. audit does not provide a legal determination of Granzte
State Independent Living’s comphance



" Opinlonon Each Major Federa! Program I "y

In. our. opinion, Granite State Indépendent Living complled in all materlal respects wnth the

. types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect
on each of its major federal pregrams for the-year ended September 30 2021

- Report on Internal Control Over Comphance ' R
Management of Granite State [ndependent L:vmg is responszble for estabhshmg and
maintaining effective initernal control over compliance with the types of compliance
requirements referred' to above. In planning and performing our audit' of éompliance, we .
_ considered Granite. State Independent Living's internal control over compliance with the types

" of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to -
determine the audltmg procedures that are appropnate in the circumstances for. the purpose of
expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on
_ internal control over compliance in accordance with Uniform Guidance, but not.for the purpose
of expressing an'opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly,
we do not express an opinion on.the effectweness of Gramte State lndependent Living's
intemal control aver cornpllance ‘

A deficiency. in intemai conlrol over comp!r‘anoe exists when the design or-operation of a
confrol over compliance-does not allow management or employees, m the normal course of
performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a
type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in
internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficlencies, in internal
control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibiity- that material .
noncomphiance with a type of compliance reguirement of a federal program' will' not be
prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant defi c;ency in Internal
contral over compfiance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, In internal control
. over campliance with a type of compliance. requirement-of a federal program that is less severe
than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit
attention by those charged with governance.

Our cons:deratlon of internal oontrol over comphance was for the limiled purpose described in
the first paragraph -of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in intemal

conlrol ovar compliarice that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies, We did =~ -

not identify any deficiéncies ininternal control over compliance thatwe consider to be material
weaknesses. However, malerial weaknesses may exist that have not been Identified. -

The purpose of this report on internat contral over compliance is solely to describe the scope of-
our testing of internal control aver compliance ‘and the results of that testing based -on the

L requirements of Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for. any other

. purpese.

Sione, Mehonnstt < Robarta Progessionat Ouecoeiation
Dover, New Hampshire ' ' .

December 23, 2022
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" SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND. QUESTIONED COSTS
" FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2021

A. SUMMARY OF AUDITORS’ RESULTS

1: The audilors’ report expresses an unmodified opinion on whgzthé} the financial
sGtgfgrgents of Granite State Independent Living were prepared in accordance with

2. No’ significant deficiencies relating to the audit of the financial statements are -
~ reported in the independent Auditors’ Report on Internal Control Qver Financial
. * Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matlers Based on an Audit of Fipancial
Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards. No
material weaknesses are reported, -

3. No inslances of noncompliance material to the financial statements of Granite Staté
- iIndependent Living, which would be required to be reported in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards, were disclosed during the audit.

4. No significant deficiencies in internal control over major federal award programs are -
-reported in the Independent Auditors’ Report on Compliance .for Each Major
 Program and on Intemal Control Over Compliance Required by Uniform Guidance.
. No material weaknesses are reported, i
5. The auditors’ report on compliance for the major federal award programs for -
Granite State Independent Living expresses an unmodified apinion on ali major
. federal programs. ' : -

" 8, There were no audit findings that are required to be reported in accordance with 2
" . CFR 200.516(=a).

7. The program tested as a major program was: U.S. Department of Health and
Human Services, ACL Centers for Independent Living, ALN 93.432.

8. The threshold for distingui§hing between Typa A and B programs was $750,000.

- 9. Granite State Independent l.iviné was. determined to be a low-risk auditee.

. B. FINDINGS -~ FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AUDIT

None

C. FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS - MAJOR FEDERAL AWARD PROJG&AM“N.M

None
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G TE INDEPENDENT LIVING _
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS S
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2021 S

T i N

There'w'éfga no ﬁndings o'r'-questto‘ned costs that were required to be reported In the Schedule of
. Findings and Questioned Costs for the year ended September 30, 2020.
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" [Warcia Baglei Chigf Program Officer ] . $130,000 20%

« |Brianna Smith. . _|Director of Education Services  -| - 364,818 80%
[Debbie Cortes +|Manager of EQucalion Services | $58,545 80%
Kelly Jones v Lead Transition Specialist $50,182 | ., 85%

.-|Amanda Chase Lead Transltion Specialist $50,626 95%
Denise Neskorik Lead Transition Speclalist $650,182 95% -

[Patrick Bemnard Cead Transition Specialist $49,858 | - 95%

Jessica Thernault Lead Transition.Specialist . $48,091 95%

= ITBD Transition Specialist - . 345744 | 95%.
Sarshiane Irizarry Transition Specialist $45,226 }- 85%

TBD Transition Specialist $44,954 | - 95%
Christy Silfeni . Transition Specialist $45,000 | 95%
Meg n Ballard Trangition Specialist $48,000 95%
. Transition Speciaﬁst - figater $44 954, 100%
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- Amanda Chase

,“-Objecﬂve. To make a career change in Irne with fny expenence and skills.
. Educaﬁem ., | .. R

~ Utah State Unrversrty M 8., 1997 :

) M.S., Psychology with emphasrs in school couneelrng
Unlversity of Vermont, B.A,, 1891 : :

Major: Psychology; Minor: English

Certification: New Hampshire k-12 Guidance Certification -

Experience - J | )

19 - presenf : Au Gramte State Independent lelng, Concord, NH
Leed Transition éoordmetor IMPACCT Academy '

(] Teach students with disabilities various competency-based ELO topics, transrtlon and
. Independent Living skills.
e Recruit and monitor business partners for student work-based Iearnmg and ciassroorn
, . presentations
Recruit students from and mamtam year-round retationships with over 12+local school d istricts
- Create curriculum (Career Exploration, English, Health, Consumer. Science, Personal Finance)
Maintain accurate re¢ords on student achievement and convey to stakeholders
Create progress notes for parents, schools and reporting, track student credits .
-Facilitate monthly advisory board meetings
(_Jommumcate with former students to traick progress with goals

s 9 & @ 00

4

8/16-7/2018 - ) John Sfark xRegfonal High School, Weare, NH
School-to-Career Coordmator ’ :

e Arranged and monitored students in job- shadows mternsh:ps work study, community service

experiences and recruited businesses for such activities gt

¢ Provided career counseirng .

Secured guest speakers for groups of students dunng popular 'Ftex trme Career Speaker
Series - . R
Coordinated and super\nsed career-related field trips '

Taught workshops in career assessment, job acquisition and retentron for high school students
Contributing member of K-12 Counse!mg Curriculum Team and PLC Team. '
Extra-curricular Envolvement Freshman Class Advisor; Official Home Basketball Bookkeepcr .

. -

N L



11/99-06/2016 ’ _— Kgaarsai'éé Reg!onal High Schodl, North S‘utton, NH
School—t&Career Coordmator . ) : ’

¥t

@ Arranged and monitored students in jOb shadows, mternshlp, work study, community serwce

experiences and recruited busmesses for such activities -

o Ptanned and codrdinated middle and high school career days
Collaborated with 5 other high schaools for annual-Career Expo
Communicated with business peop!e regardmg expectatnons for,students in work—based
experiences . o con

"Provided career guidance for students L ' )

Concord Regicnal Techmcal Center program Iraison

Facititated NH Scholars Program

“Taught career guldance course, classroom actlvrtres summer school and KADP classes
.Extra-curncu[ar Aciwltxes Kyar-Sarga Yearbcok Advisor

-

¢ o 0 0 o

¥

© 497 199 - - _-‘ “Tween School “n Home, Hopkinton, NH

Director, After School Program-

o Responsible far daily programming of activities,
s . Facilitated parerit and staff meetings/training, hiring
o Overall supems:on of 50+ students aged 5-12 and 6 staff members

%mmunﬁy lnvalvemenﬁ
2003-2012  Gir! Scouts of the Green & White Mountains .
Girl Scout Leader

o Guided girls in grades 1-9 in self-esteem bunldmg activities through goal semng. fundraising -
and commumty service

o Planned trips and coordlnated troop and town-wide campmg weekends
2002.2015 Hopkmton PTA, Project Graduerzon Committee and HOpkmton Booster Ciub Secmtaty
2008-2011 Map!e Strest School Volunteer ‘ '

o © Created student yearbook “The Mapie Leaflet”

[ Orgamzed students to work on book, taught photography/journalism basics to students
grades 4-6 . '

PN

References available upon request ' ~ , -



BrIanNA C. SMITH -

Db;echve .
Yo.obtain a position within the field of émployment and. education Thc:t Wl]i enhance
professional growth and utiize st{qng ‘organizational and interpersonal skills.

Experie-nce:
Director of Education Services» February, 2023~ Present
Granite State lndependenl meg * Manchester, NH

« Oversee our education team 1hroughout New Hompshlre inimplementing
Pre—EmponmentTronsmon Services . |

» Collaborates with New Hampshire Vocational Rehcbnhtahon in ensuring
sustainable tunding !or boih IMPACCT and Earn ond Learn Oppor’runmes
Program - > . . ‘

* lLead consuifant for managing federal Department-of Health and Human
Services Independent Living funding, Department of Labor reguluhons and WIOA
grant complionce cnd reporhng

. Facnlltote regtonol stakeholder advisory boards throughout the stale with the
Department of Education, school pariners and employers to provide technicdl
ossistance for program growth and odvoncemem v

'« Collaborate with ihe Community College System of New Hompsh:re and
negofiate to offer career pathways and occupational draining through post
secondary educohon

* Responsible for recruutmeni hiring and supervising all siaff member ihroughout
" New Hampshire which also includes focilitating quarterly professional
.development seminars: °

Assoclate Director of Education Services: May, 2018 - February, 2023
Granite State independent Living « Manchester, NH

. » 'Oversee our educalion team in the Manchesier area in implementing
Pre-Employment Transition Services ¢



C. Lead consuitonf for managing federal Depanmeni of Heglth and Humon
Services Independent Living fundmg Départment of Labor regulairons and WIOA
grant comphonce and reporiing

4t by

+ . Facilifate regional stakeholder od\)isory boards in the Manchester area with the
.Depariment of Education, school pariners and employers 1o prowde techmccl
ossusionce for progrom growth and advancement

. Collaborate with Monchester LCommunity College to offer ccreer pcnhwoys and
occupahcnol trgining through post secondcry educahon =

'« Responsible for recruitment. hiring and supervising four staff members In -
Manchester prograrms which also includes fccthfchng quortedy professmnal
' devetopment semingrs . .

+  Manage and devetop sustainable busmess pcrtnershaps for employmeni
oppodumhes :

Lead Transition Specialist- June, 2016- May, 2018
-Granite State Independent Living + Manchesier, NH
+ Responsible for daily insiruction of Pre-Employment Transition Services for
. vnderservad youth in New Hampshire's largest city

. 'Overse_e-progrqmming in developing paid work experiences for students and
families i '

. Conduci monthiy siakeholder advisory board fo refine programming

+ Lsad ﬁaiﬁon for the foster grandpdrenf program to bridge employrhén_t servicesin
crealing an organic approach for purposetul relationships

‘4

Delivered wropafoqrid services for the foster grandparent program and students
through the provision of Independent Living services:

Transitian Speciatist- June, 2015 June, 2016

Gronite State Independent Living- Manchester, NH
' . Provided vocational classroom instruction to youth between the ages of 16-21 1o
. earn high school ogodemic credit and employment pcihwd_ys skills

=,

* Responsible for studeni recruitment with area high schools-
Developed employment opportudities for individuals to gain paid empldyment

« Built relationships with communily partners for-students to experience internships
and access local resources

- "



K-

school Program Team Leader: June, 2009 — June, 2015 .
- Work Opportunifies Unlimited - Manchesier, NH . . :

+ Counseling individuals fo provide education and vocational guidance .
«  Providing skills, ravel kraining and direct support for studenis within the progrom

*- . Assistin working with-team on tronsi_ﬁéning students out of high’s;f.hool by
counseling with community resources and the school district

= Develop IEP goals o conduct Tri:n.siﬁon plar for future pathways

* Resbonsible- for team njemberé_dcily schedule, job objeciives and activities for all’
students in school program :

Teacher Asslstant « August 2007-January 2008
Alpha Bits Learning Cenlers Manchester, NH

+  Assisted with pldnning daily rqutines for the preschool classroom

. Develbp fesson plans for child;en-‘s goals including intellectual stimulation and
: .language activifies '

« " Praised children for accomplishments along with guidance in learning.

“Skills: ’ . ’ .
» Lead consultan! in crecting programming in school disticts and businesses throughout
New Hampshire : '

« - Spearhead federal, state and foundation grant management that includes reporting -
and compliance responsibilities

‘«  Assist with onbouarding. managing and overseeing numerous team members and
assisting with staffs- day fo ddy operations ‘

. éeliab_!e. hard working.individuol contributor and team player
= Highly organized wiﬂi an person centered approach '

« Strong Cbmmunicclion skills with employeérs, area c;gencies and school districts

» Create lesson ﬁ{ans for students and guide with goals and objectives related to IEPs

.= - Proficientin Microsoft Office, XP, Excel, Powerpoint along with Mac OS and Google _
Piatforms ) : ‘



Education: -

Southern Néw Hampshire University -
* June, 2009 Completion ..

= Sociol Sciencé, Bachelor's Degres

*

= Psychology, Minor Degree

¥ '

References Available Upon Reques.t



OBJECTIVE Seeking a position wuh an agency dedlcated to positive mdw:dual fam:llal
social and commumty change ' .

WORK EXPERIEN CE:

Transition Specmhsl (February 2022- Pre.sent) Gramle Sta!e Independent. meg- Manchester,
NH

. » Deliver smndardlzed IMPACCT curriculum to students {ages 16-22), including instruction in
“work-readiness, self-advocacy, goal-setlm and independent living

* Recruit, organize and implement curriculum prcsentexslwérkshops on specific topics

+ Recruit students from each high school, and serve as the IMPACCT Academy's point person for
parents and school pcrsonncl

*'Support students in identifying and utlhzmg communny resources to increase their independent
living skill development, greater personal and economic mdepcndencc Support students'
reintegration to sending schools : R ‘

*Maintain accurate student records and provide monthly update reports on studcnt progress to°
schools, parents, and GSIL Leadership Team Provide monthly reports on enrollment, school &
business outreach, and overall progress to GSIL Leadership Team .

Residential Counselor (August 2018 to March 2019) Spaulding Youth Center- Northfield, NH

« Responsible for caseload of behaviorally-challenged students (ages 4 to 21), with neurological
impairments, including autism, inteliectual disabilities, emotional disorders, and those who have
experienced significant trauma, abuse, or neglect

+ Providing dirccet care, support, and supervision to studcnts during the non-school hours by
implementing residential objcctwes and behaworal support plans

* Teaching daily living skitls, community lntcgranon and SOClallZatlQn as well as pamclpaung
and engaging students in-all residential activities

_Activity Coordinator & Summer Camp Counselor (April 2014 io June 2016) Girls Inc - Concord,
NH o ' .

. Cmtiné,‘organizing, and implementing engaging, educational, and theme-based acti\;itics for
girls (ages 5-13)

a

« Supervise children; maintain safety, problem solve, and control difficult behaviors
» Maintain sanitation, organization, and cleaning

"« Establish/follow curriculnm. rules; and regulations of after-school/surmer camp



.t
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EDUCATION: . . _

3

“* Bachelors in Hun;an Services Springfield College - Manchester, NH 2015 -
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Quahﬁcatmn nghlzghts ' "
o Good Atdmde © e DealwithDifficslc ° <° o Value Education
® Cdtical Observer - situations _ "o  Empathetic -

'y Flcxtb!c . ) e Think Ouside the ¢ Highly Organized

Related Skills - ;7

CLASSRDGM MANAGEMENT: .

e Mmaged 2 da.ssroom of 10-25 studerts. @ Commumcatcd effectively with smdctzts,
¢ Organized activitles for students and -+ _ - ‘teachers and parents.
" . individuals with JEPs/ ISPs. ) "o Critically observed student progress ‘and

& Continually e.ncoumged childeen to be
undersanding and pal:cnt with othets.

Coupu’r&x Smu_s

© o Ablew troubluhoot commoh. Computr:x
issues

o Experienced in Audjof_Visu:ﬂ equipment

-

BILINGUAL 7 + S,

provided leaming materal nccdcd w help
students succeed.

s Proficent in Word, Excel, Powchbmr,

Google Classroom, Imagine Leaming, Aspt:n .

X2, Smartér Balanced Testing

o Effectively comeinicate verbally and in wiiting in Spanish
¢ Can understand and pamaily comrnunicate in Pormguese,

'Expenence K
Granite State Independent Living, Lead Transition Specialist Nashua, NH 10/2018-Present
Granite Statc Independent Living, Transition, Coordinator - Nashua, NH - 8/2017-10/2018
Nashua School District; Para Professional Nashua, NH 10/201 4-07-2016
TILL, ING; Residential Mt_maget . Dedham, MA 01/2013.09/2014
TILL INC; Reaidential Seaff . Dedham, MA 09/2011-01/2013
Atlaatic Union College; IT Sectetary - South Lancaster; MA 08/2007-05/2011
Atantic Union College; Maintenance South Lancaster, MA 08/2007-05/2011
Adantic Union College; Audio/Visual Tech South Lancaster, MA 08/2007-05/2011
_Education .o ; o _
Nashua Community College; Educator chpmauon Nashua, NH ” 5/2017 -
.Associates Degree . o R
Adantic Union College; Biology 9/2007-5/2011

' 72 Credits

South Lancaster, MA



© 2000
1993

© 2023-Present

2{}15- Present

2017-2019

2015-2017

2003-2015

1998-2003

1996-1998

DcnlseIreneNeskonk A g o

~ Ediication-Walla Walla College.
BS Speech Communication (emphasw-publlc spealung)
BA Elementary. Education .
Minor in Health

Work Exg enence..~

Granite State Indcpendent Livlng- Lead Trarnsition Specialist
Experienc e- Instructs daily académics for studénts, maintaining

"academic rigor. Supervises extended learning actmues for students.

Supports work site activities when rieeded.

- Self Employed -Uber

Customer rating 4.95 and hxgher, Current Ratmg 5. 0

Ross.SterIiug Middle School - Humble, TX
Experience; I[dentified specific skills, developed and implemented a
remedial plan to increase testing scores for at risk students.

. Adventist Christiari Academy of Texas :Conroc. X

Experierice: 5% & 6* grade teacher, HS choirdirector, HS Health, HS

. Computer. Developed and implemented cumculum for a HS life skills

class. .

Sprlng ISD-Pat Reynolds Elem. - Houston, TX

.Experience: Regular Education and ELL Teacher (2 langusge ]eamcrs)

3" grade and 5% grade for Language Arts/Socizl Studies .
Leadership positions: 5% grade Team Leader; Social Studies Distriet
Representative; TRIBES trainer (team building), Student Council 5% .
grade sponsor, Spetling Bee Coordinator, Microsoft trainer for
Educators. ,

Humble ISD- North Belt Elem - Humbie, TX
Experience: Regular Education 3% and 4* grade

- Child De-velopment Services US Army - Babenhausen, Germany

Experience: Assl. Director for Army daycare, Scheduled and
supervised 15-20 workers including cook, secretary and teachers;
maintained an age-appiopriate quality educational environment for
infants, toddlers and preschoolers; NAYAC certification was processed
and approved during this time; in charge of daily running of center in all
areas including paperwork, inspections, and finances.



*.Jessica Therriault "

I

*" ‘Educator and -facilitator passronate about supportmg all leamers Eﬁectwe at working mdependently and
jas a tearn Respect for dwersaty and cultural rnciusrwty in all’ aspects of . life- and |eammg

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE .

Granite State Independent Lrvlng | Dover, New Hampshlre o April-zttzs.-Pres-ent
" Lead Transition- Specialist for IMPACCT Academy. -

xl -
P
3

]

Manage all aspacts of a 16-week academic program f from recrmtment to matrlculatron including:
pamclpatmg in and directing staff in recruitment, mtake and progresston through the program
experience and back to school and other appropnate semvice.

Recruit a full class of 16 individuals from over 19 regional schools and placements three times yearty

‘ through -email campaigns, advisory meetings, meet-and-greéts at schoals, observatron days for-

administrators, and meetings with students, school staff, and parenfs.

Serve as lead instructor for academic pregramming in career exploration trarmng in soft and hard skills.
Evaluate student progress and provide mastery-oriénted feedback for competency-based learning.
Establish and maintain student expectations in the classroom and at the waorksite, :
Adapt to academic and social situations in the classroom using researched, evidence-based stratégies.
Contact local businesses to establish relationships and amange worksite internships for students' based
on industry and student needs and interests.

-Support {ocal worksites and student interns throughout the cohort, including observing, direct on-the-job
Jraining, and new skills training.

Establish and maintain.clear communication with stakeholders including program drrectors schocl
administration, case managers, transition coordinators, and parents to ensure student success.

Coordinate and facilitate monthly Regional Advisary meetings to work with Pragram Administrators and

stakeholders to continually review and evaluate all aspects of the program — assess process
effectiveness and full academic rigor.

Maintain effective records through data recordlng. monthly update reports and day-to-day observatlons
and communications. .

Maintsin professional knowledge and skills by reviewing professional literature, conducting independent
résearch, and attending workshops and trainings.

Support and uphold GSIL. policies and pracedures, workplace regulations, and safety practtces

Newmarket JrJSr High School | Newmarket, New Hampshire ) "~ -August 2018 - July 2022
Teacher and Grade Level Coordinator

® ¢ & &0 5 3 O 09

Established trust and credibility with students through advising and relattonshlp bullding.

Maintained effective communication with stakeholders via émails, phone conversations, and meetings.
Presented to audiences of up to 200 individuals using established public 'speaking capacities.
Facilitated events for between 30-100 participants with a focus on inclusivity and adaptivity.
Independently created and implemented a Grade 7 ELA curriculum to increase testirig scores by 22%.
Utilized technological tools, including video and audio editing platforms to create Ieamrng content.
Analyzed gualitative and quantitative data to develop reports and make informed policy decisions.
Coordinated a grade-level team to ensure that goals were met in a timely manner.

Reviewed deliverables for up to 90 learners at a time, responding with mastery-oriented feedback
Simultaneously managed implementation projects in MTSS Intervention, SEL, STEAM, and ELA.
Conducted outreach with local partners to establish and'build a middle schocl STEAM program.
Analyzed baniers related to equity and inclusion to ensure equitable expetiences for all. :

Universat Design for Learning Facilitator/Coordinator

Coordinated a UDL implementation.project from exploratton to teacher leammg, to classroom use.
Lead ottreach and relationship building to bring in prospective new teachers and triple our partlctpants
Used jterative'design techntquas to credte accessible cumiculum frameworks and materials.

px
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Lol Communl'fyf’Leadershlp : R

Amerlcan lndependence Museum ] Exeter New- Hampshire ’ 2022 — Present’ Lo T

Educational Prograny Managemeént Vo!unteer Field Trip Curriculum DeVelopm enr J
o Delérinine and write learning outcomes for museum-specilic programming. -
e Design'program matrixes, standard operating procedures, and templafes for activity planning

.- = Collaborate with a tearnt of educalors-to redesign @ comprehensive field trip for up to 40 paﬂtcnpants at a t:me
. Datermme and pre-design publlcatmns and exira—curncu!ar matenals .

- -

Green Acres Stables |. Madbury, New Hampsh:re : . -t - 201'0 - Present .
Voluntoer Event Coordinator, Secretary, Scorer . o : .
. -Bulld relationships with valunteers and manage valunteer. schiedutes to ensura flawless evanl delwen/
» Maintaln and analyze records and spfeadsheets té score events and ensure financial success. :
. Commumcate clearly to. pamc:pants to ensure that all rules and regulahons aro followed on the day of the event,

'EDUCATION AND CERTIFICATIONS  * = ° ~ . . .

. " University of New Hampshire ] Dover, New, Hampshlre
Masters in Education’- Secondary Education (GPA 4. 0)
Bachelor of the Arts - Engush Teaching (GPA4.0) o L

. NH Department of Education Experienced Educator License - Grades 6-12 Engﬂsh!Language Arts
- CAST Universal Design for Learning Associate Level 1 Certifi cation. -
- Alfred Ernest Richards Award for Excellence in English Teaching

TECHNICAL PROFICIENCIES
Goagle Suite | Microsoft Office Suite | Ouliook | Zoom | Trello | Asana -



Joshua Serard _

L
3

. - 1have ten years of experience in the physical services field, five years asa Lead -
Residential Counselbr.and 1 am currently a Transition Spectalist, My passion is being a motivational leader and
organlzational problem solver. Jn'my work life [ have advancéd supervisory, team buildihg, and customer service

" sidlls, My practice desires are utilizing my experience gained'in the development and execution of the programs '
created for individuals with specific needs. I am highly innovative and explicitly client focused as & staff member
and a supervisor. 1 have a sustained record of achlevement in all aspects of the operatlons of the business I am-
serving. Delivering the requirements of thé Supervisory board.and supervisory.staff. 1also am proficientin the
staff recruitment and all aspects-of the hiring process. [ can think creatively and adapt to the multitask .
environments we create In support of my team initiatives and the goals for tlie student. that I am working: Lam .

_self-motivated with astrong willingness to learn new tasks in a fast<paced environment. My proven customer
service skills-are-exceptional, especially with parents and school staff. ] have a proven reéord of accomplishment
and communication. ) . i

- v
- «

University of Maine = Orono : Bachelor's Degree Kinesiology and Physical Education  May 2015 .
NH Institute of Therapeutic Arts | School of Massage Therapy Massage Therapist . Junezo0m1
NH Technical Institute Course Work - : September 2009 ~Dec 2009,
Bow Hlgh Schiool High School Diploma < June 2009
" additional training: skills/Abilities; . -
* MANT Training/Safety Care Training . Proficient with Google applications and PC/Microsoft Office Suite

RBT Tralning Behavioral Support Experlenced in both Apple and PC platforms .

CPR and Flrst Ald certified Knowledgeable with staff and direction of clients . X

Wilderness Response certlfled | . Extremely skdlled with Microsoft word, excel program and PowerPoint

“w

Granite State Independent Living ‘

_ Lead Transition Specialist - : " . July 2023 — Present
" & Serves as lead instructor of the day-to-day academic activities ’ S
¢ Oversées the development of the new ELOs (extended learning opportunities) to respond to identified
student needs : :

& Directs staff in recruitment, (ntake, and progresston through the program experience and back to school
and other appropriateservice  ° - -
. 4. _Works with Program Administrators and stakeholders (Regional Advisory Group) to continually review
and evaluate all aspects of the program - assess pracess effectiveness and full academic rigor -
<. Responsible for establishing and maintaining student expectations
& Provide support to work site activities as needed
¢ Completes all the necessary program reports with high quality and in a timely manner

Transition Spéciallsi ) ' Decernber 2022 - July 2023

" Responsible for carrying out day-to-day acadernic activities with flexibility and focus on goals
Establish, develop, and maintain student expectations while being able to quicldy make decisions
Provide support to worksites of students and ensure task understanding and improving soft and hard
skills {n a work environment ailowing the students to create their learning style “s

» Efféctively communicates with all parents, school personal, student teams, and other comrmunity

partners : . '

o> L%
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& Teach daﬂy lessons with mulﬂple rnodalities to target varlous learning styles and student presentations
o Assess progress of all students throughout the term and offer diverse ideas for academic levels
& Provide dally and monthly reports on updates, issues, concerns. - | .
o Bulld, dévelop and malntaln connections with businesses x
- & Provide job site assessment and training In coliaboration with a vocational rehabilitation counselor
¢ - Refer students to community résources for financial, medical, educatwnal and rehabilitation services
»  Working knowledge of IEP/504 accommodatlons and modification includi ing meeting attendance
¢ Complete knowledge of gaogle ‘suiteand Microsoft office
Morniadnock Developmental Services - Prograni Manager February 2021 - December 2072
<. Manage the schedules of Staff and cur Clients’ . » . -
& Provides support to OQur Disabled Clients and management of time N
- ¢ Leader to drive the misslon-of success to accomptlish our goals
. ¢ Communjcations with all Parents of. Clients, Emp!oyers and Clients _
% Scheduling the daily operations and staffing patterns.
¢ Training job coaches (10n1) on the daily tasks for clients needed for their job requirements
" ¢ Providing data for entry of program hours for each client program.
< - Manage time siips, mileage reports, and expense reports bl-weekly- -
+ Data entry and review of 2ll documentation and scheduling to provide seryices
¢  Making sure that every cllent continiies to succeed every day in their assigned programs .
¢ Ensu re dafly operations are followed by employers, staff, 2nd clients
Crotched Mountain Rehabilitation Center . ' July 2015 ~ November 2021
(COVID Shut Down) : . S

Residentlal P:ograrn Manager
Act as lialson, advocate, and coordinator for consumer involvement [n self-advocacy, vocational programming, integrated
community activities, and learning independent living skills.

¢ . Monitor stzff performance management, Including evaluations and developmental plans, dlsolpllnary actions, etc. for all
program staff as scheduled,.

& Arrange and schedule all training for all program staft.

4 Ensure completion/submission of all required dally, bi-weeldy, monthly, quarterly and annual reports as scheduled

< . Coordinatefattend as needed al] consumer related meetings; ensure all necessary follow-up is comp leted.

Iy

‘ Residential Counselor Il o '
Supervisor of an assigned house; everydayopcrauonal funcnons .t
Ensures complance with apphcab!e state regulations "
Trains staff members on daily routines to safeguard the patieats, pladng a hlgh priority on dignity and respect .
Time management: dally s::hedulmg and supervision of support staff, prioritizing workloads and available resources
effectively to meet deadlines
Responsible for sefzure protocols to ensure réscue outcome
Accornplishes implemnentation of IEP and therapy options
Influence pojicies and procedures, exchange meaningful information and |deas throughout the workplace
Completes/monitors medication sign out sheets, daily student logs, adherence to behavior program including data keeping
. Fulfills food requisitions according to established menus, ensuring balanced meals, eversee all speclal diets under
supervision of Program Manager
Lialsan between the school and residential deparcments; helps Improve team communicat:on
Attends trainings and seminars as requilted; pursues areas of development and training that will enhance job performance
Supports the team of direct support staff in their growth and development |
Develops and maintains pasitive working relationships with'co-workers by belng punctual, keeping personal
communication to a minimum, and maintalning a pleasant work attitude
Accepts constructive criticism [n a professlonal manner

PEOd LR LD

L

Self Employed ‘Independent Contractor . .
Massage Therapist (continues to provide services for all clients) January 20'10 -~ Present

VOLUNTEER: Orgamzmg/(Jversee.mg small and large sports-based tournaments, Intramura]
Coach/Captam Soccer/Intramural Referee/ Official.
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Skills Profife

CPR/AED Certified -
CP) Certified | ‘
Stalf Development Expericace
Commanication Skills '
Caordinator Skills :
Htustrated Leadership Ability . -
- Bachelor’s degree [n healthcare management

.
. -
9 @ 8 9 e

Emp!oymeht History
. Transition Specialist -

Granite State Independent Living, Nashua; NH

CER i
1

Delivered curricalum,
Recruit students o

. Bulld relationships with schools and foster them,
Find business-pariners for student.worksites. .

&

Spe'cﬁialuEdﬁcation Paraprofessional ‘

Milford School District, Milford, NH

Y

Program Associate -

1:1 Paragducator

Processed and delivered curriculum.
* Wellness Coordinzator

* & & &

1
¥

" Human Resource Office - Peer Tutor &
Academfc Support Center

s

Mount Wachusett Comimmity Cﬁllege, Gardner, MA.

» -Development and implementation of tutoring program
¢ Organization of Schedules .
o Oversight of the luach program
s Data entry using Excel and Word
Education : . .

_ Mount Wachusett Community College Gardnef, Ma.

R o' Completed 2o associste degree in human services in 1999
¢ Cumulative GPA 32 *

i

- May 2023- present

2003 - May 2022

1997~ 2002

a

1997-1999



Fitchburg State College Fitchburg, Ma.- | . o 20012002

<. Worked toward B.S. in Soclology
» -Cumulstive GPA 3.6

B

-

-Granite State College, Concord NH. - .  2021-Jupe 2022
. B.S.in Hcalthcarc Management ) ) .
‘s Cumulative GPA'3.8 . . . i
Community Service .
" ‘Lion's Club . .
*» Souhegan Valley Lacrosse Club- league game schedulcr 0
»  Milford Commiunity Athletic Adsociation ' .
‘s Best Buddies
Awards and Accolades o . .

- & Lionof the Year 2010



-~ *  Marcia Bagley = -

coE v » 4 - .
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i e - ; ﬂofesslon.:rfi’;omc o : — - —

"':“'3”" twanusicotar. .1 ses yoa . Enthusiastic and energedc Administrator who is cager w suppore mdmdmls with d:ffcnng

abilities, staff and families o ensure all mdmduala are pmvtdcci cqual acerss'to opportunities

being a special eelusation director = within thcir communitics.
a """ﬁ good P *  New Hampshire Certificate in Spccxal Education Adrm.mstmt:on andd. Educator
. - Cr.-:uﬁcntc in Genera) Special Education and Elemensary Education. :
Janice Martin, Former e Wel vctscd in the New Hnmpslu:c Standacds for the Education of Chddtm w;;h
* Director of Special Education . Disabilides and IDEA requirements. LA -
Nuhu;l Schog] Distdct ) “ s Chairand Vice Chair of the Board of Directors for the Pucn: ]nfommuon Ccntct oa
: Special Educadion (PIC), 2012 = 2021. . . N
) . +  PIC Volunteer Advoeate for Special Education. | i
’ o +  Named New Hampshire Special Educadon Administrator of thc Y:ar for2022.
"\, dfectizely addressedbarriers § © Education .
’ . n' § » . 5’! . . . R V ) .
related o implesenting Sransition 20022004 ! McDaniel College
and child find equinmmts, | Master's of Smm . o | Wescmiaster, MD
T . Master’s of Sc:cncc in Human Scmcf.s Management in Special Edueanon wath Y
thinking ereatively white fecping the _ concentration in Applicd Behavior Analysis (ABA). : &,
needs o]' fantilies and children et the 1997 — 2002 \faryw ood Uniiversity
' forpont " Bachelor's of Stienc : Sc:mmn PA
. . . Bachelor's of Science in Special and Elementary Educnuon.
Michelle Lewis, Exccutive ‘
Digector, PIC )
' : Employment *

2023 - presenr Granite State Independent Living (GSIL) ;. Concerd, NH

*

"..seorks through any berdies | Chief, Progmm Officer

*  Oversce the coordinadon and delivery of all programs, contencts and services promoting

rurergfully weaking sire that each collaboradve relationships in the pursuit of independence foc individuals with disabilidies.
s Coordinate with CED and cxecutive team to creare and maintsin overal prognm )
“ehild’s needs arvrel, " development and management across multiple sites and depactments. '
. s : Represent GSIL with external commuaity parthers.
SusanAngc.L Former s Directly supervise four program ditectors.”
ﬁgﬁ:‘;ﬁg;\stx:' . ir:mv;::s support 2 high performing culeuré amongst all programs thar 2lign. with GSIL's

" e Monitor emerging aceds among key stakeholders such as-consumers, government and
other funding services.

2007 2022 Nashua School Distiet " Nashua, NH
. | Directar, Special Education 2018- 2022
adminiirator who cen truly maks &°\ 4 seistant Director, Special Eduvcation 2016-2018

difirnce” || Preschool Coordinator 2007 - 2015

"....-zkfd!wfrd and bumbie...

- ' . ¢ Dizectly supervised a team of ninc administrators and adminiserative support seaff
Simonne Peery, Teacher to support the goals and vision of the Nashua School District.
o Oversaw and supervised 500+ special education staff, ensuring ell 2000+ scudents’ 1EPs
. ' . were. fulflled in accordance with Federa! and Swaré law.
. . e Facilitated the District’s resposse to the COVID-19 pandemic, proyiding gmdancc and
‘ 10ols to s22ff to best support students during wemote and hybrid learning:
s . Created and manage budget for spedial educstion department (zpproximarely

$12.2 million). '
s Provided technical assistance to teams to problem solve unique issues,

maineain compliance, and meet studeats” unique needs.




s
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.. Dasthe albilig 10 bunenizy

whai can be an ounﬂhbl‘ing process |,

Jor parents. . extrenmely
. profescianal_abwyt positiv..\”
Kyl'c Langjlle, Former

Pnnc:pal, Nashua School
" Distrdct’

W

it o really bend snding fbine]

10 schoo! at such @ young age., b

" fres axr finet IEP meeting, yon *
mads 1t ferl 30

congfortabl. - Parents are lucky to
 Bave romeone like you belp vith this
* initial Ironsition....”

Cheryl B, Parent

s the Presebool departmens,
unditr the leadership of M .:rm'a
B.ﬂgfg,‘ bas conve leaps and
bowedr. .. she pears mary, mamy
bats avd does o fabulous jeb.... "

Sarah Almeida, Speech
Pathologist

D _Caﬂabbm':d with sentor Ir:adcrshtp.buliril ng administrators and. othes admmlsmwrs (5]
ensure all students had équal access tohlgh quality.cducational opportumucs. )

+  Processed and respond o pacent ccmphrms, OCR complaints and due pmcus rcq-ucsrs.

s  Fuacilirated ream 2nd dcpattmcnr meetngs.

»  Created and conducted trzinings for Nashua School District staff,

»  Dirccted and coordinated the Nashua E.:.rlg Edueation Program (NEEP), inclusive of the
tuiton-based Play Pals program. .

. Supm'lscd the Speciil Education process for all referred students ages 2.5 -5,
avenaging 215 per yeat.

"¢ . Developed Preschool Procedures, Peogram Descriptions 2nd Cumcuium for the
Washua School District in comphmcc with the New Hampshire Rules for the
Education of Children with Disabilitics. Nashua Preschool procedures have been uacd
" a3 exemplacs for school districes th mughou: New Hampshire.

e Collaborated with all team members including parencs, advocates, principals, teachers,
and service providers to tesolve issucs 2ad provide students with ¢ frée and approprisee
publie educadon (FJ\PL*) .

2006-2007  TheBirchtce Center
Special Education Case Coordinator

Devcloped srudeats’ Individualized Education Plans. Prepared: quam:dy progress

repors,  Admisiistered standardized and eriterion-referenced evaluations. Coordinsted and
facifitated afternative forms of stace testing, Assisted in the development and xmplcmcntauon
of curriculum and related mamedals, Implemeated students’ IEP-goals within the classroom in
.one-to-onc setrings. Modeled teacking of srudents’ academic programs in the classcoom,

Portsmouth, NH

2004, ~,2006 - Sheppard Pratt -The Forbush School Temple Hills, MD

Special Education Teacher

. Provided dircer instruction m scudcnts with Aotism in a non-public twelve-month scho-oL

Responsible for the development, implementation and supervision of Individvalized Education
Plans and Behavior Management Plans. Prepared quanterly- progress ceports. Cotlecred and
analyzed data. Planned, creared, and inmoduced group and individual lessons and macerials
wailored to- 1EPs and cuericulum. Prepared and fmhmcd alternative forms of stzndardized
testng: Supervised Teaching Assistants.

;7.001 -2004  Target Community and Ed. Secvices, Inc.  Westminster, MD

‘Commanity Living Manager

Delivered direct care to aduits with developmental disabilides. Collabomcd in che opening of
8 new akemative living unit Organized all required paperwork, coordinared inspeetioas,
oversaw the hising, scheduling, and training of swuff, and managed the houschold budger.

i
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+  Eventplanning
«  Tour guiding

‘+ ' Sales management .
. Team leadership

. +  Program development

»  Museum management
+ * Data input

+  Historical analysis

»  Curriculum

_development
+  Proficient in Microsoft,
Google applications,
- and Outlock
»  Cultivating
. relationshigs
~ VOLUNTEER
EXPERIENCE

R e e LT o

VOLUNTEER TUTCR »
DECEMBER 2020 - JUNE 2021
1 gave tutoring lessons twice a
week to a student in the 10%
grade. We worked on various
subjects and developed their
skills in time.management &
organization.

TRANSITION SPECIALIST+ GRANITE STATE IN DEPENDENT LIVING .

-MAY 2023 - CURRENT

My role as a fransitiorvspecialist mcludes teachmg work-readmess
education to students with disabilities through an ELO program

called IMPACCT Academy and providing follow- up services.to, those
gtudents upon graduation from the program. I am also responsﬂ:le for ‘
cultivating and maintaining relationships with school personnel,

" parents, business & community partners, and local resources to help

students on their pathway to life. afiér high school. Curriculum is
delivered in the form of worlk-readiness trau:ung, self-advocacy, goal-
setting, and mdependent living.

SPECIAL EDUCATION PARAPROFESSIONAL « DOVER MIDDLE
SCHOOL * OCTOBER 2021 - MAY 2023

My position as a paraprofessional involved working with high needs
students at Dover Middle School in their sistism resource room. As a
para | assisted students with academic needs.and structural support.
Breas of need/stralegies to assist ave determined by student IEP
guidelines and case manager recommendations. Data tracking and
reporting was completed da:ly I also pnonnzed the digriity, health,
and-safety of the students.

MUSEUM EDUCATOR » ALBACORE PARK+« JUNE 2022 - SEPT 2022 -
I worked as a temporary Museum Educator for Albacore Park,
agsisting the team in creating end imptementing a robust schedule of
education programs. | was also responsible for training a small staff
of volunteers toxun daily programs. My responsibilities were to
develop lesson plans for current and future programming, deliver the
programs during events and daily operations, design an educauon
brochure, and collect visitor feedback.
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BACHELOR OF ARTS IN PUBLIC

HISTORY WITH A MINOR IN

- TRAVEL & TOURISM *» MAY
2018 + SALEM STATE
UNIVERSITY

Graduated Magna cum laude
with a 3.7 GPA and lifetime
membersliip in Phi Alpha
Theta, the national honors
society for historians. _

-

: VISITOR SERVICES & SALES MANAGER .+ OLD NORTH CHURCH &

HISTORIC SITE AUGUST 2018 ~ AUGUST 2020

_1was respons:ble for the complete on.boardmg and management of

the visitor services team. I worked directly with thousands of visitors
every year. My most frequént clients were school groups, Boston

" walking tours, and cruise liners, looking to arrange feld trips or | -

private events. Additional responsibilities included data input,
revenue reportmg. website aditing, donor ratention, and i mvmcmg

" EDUCATOR « OLD NOR'I’H CHURCH & HISTORIC SITE «-APRIL 2018 -
_ AUGUST 2018.

1held a dual position as an educator and a first-person interpreter. I
was responsible for teaching visitors and school groups the process
used by the colonists to ¢reate colonial-style drinking chocolate. The
demonstration used props to show cultivation and creation from
“hean to beverage". The position included wearing historically
aceurate clothing and memorizing a multitude of facts and
information from the 17% & 18 centuries. .-

" YOUR GUIDE & MUSEUM INTERN '.THE HOUSE OF THE SEVEN

GABLES * MAY 2017 - AUGUST 2018

My undergraduate internship ellowed me to explore ray interest in
nan-proﬁts specifically in museums. Iworked on social media
management and surveying visitor experience. I also worked closely
with the archival teem to catelogue and input notable ‘objectainte
PastPerfect: At the end of my internship, | was hired as a tour guide
giving educational and historical tours of the mansion to groups and
school groups. Tours covered the archilectural, familial, and
maritime history of the site. : .

]
[
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+

ADM]SSIONS AMBASSADOR * SALEM STATE UNIVERSITY . MARCH

2015 - MAY 2018 -

While an admissions ambassador I gave daily tours'of the umve:rsu'y
campus o prospechve students and their families. M¥r posmon was
also responsible for hiring, séheduling, and training ambassadors I
also worked in the oiﬁce, mpumng/convemng grades from -
prospective student apphcahons using the programs Onbase and
Peoplesoft.

.

RIDES TEAM LEAD + SIX FLAGS NEW ENGLAND » APRIL 2012 —,
OCTOBER 2016

As a team lead, | oversaw a dwusmn of the park t th.at composed ofup
to thirty employees from April ~ Octobar each year. My duties "

" included operating theme park rides, managing a break schedule,

employee training, daily paperwork, saIety,ixnp{ementation. .
addressing guest concerns, and cleaning tasks,




. Highly organlzed ‘and detail-onented individual w;th over a decade of classroom expenence with
diverse student populations. Ability'to work'in a fast-paced environment; with individuals and’ groups
frorn diverse cuitural backgrounds as a team member or independently. Strong Ieadersh!p abllities,
adaptablea, resilient and able to effect:vely solve problems in stressful situatlons, .

Coordjnated and diligént activity coordinator skilled.in student behavior management and redlrectlon.

Support.s faculty and .classroom needs with proactive and. d:iigent approach, Passionate about helping

students and offers proven skills developed over ten years of related experience. Versed in school | .
-standards and strategles to opnmlze learning for any students needs.

-

Work Ex'peri'ence

2

" Lead Transition Specialist
Granite State Independent Living - Manchester, NH
August : 2023 to Present

s *

» Serves as lead lnstructor of the day- to.day academic activities, .
« Oversees the development of the new ELO's (extended learning opportunities) to re5pond to Identif‘ ed
student needs. :

» Directs staft in recrultment, intake and progression through the prograrn expenence and back ta schaol
‘a2nd other appropriate service.

* Works with Program Administrators and stakeholders (Regional Advisory-Group) to- cantlnually review
and evaluate all aspects of the program - assess process effectiveriess and full academic rigor.

instructional Assistant/ Reglsted Behavlor Tech
SAU8 School District - Conord, NH
March 2018 to Present

¢ Supported student !eammg ob]ectwes through pe:sona!:zed and smalf group assistance.

= Provided support to help students with special needs learn and grow.

» Provided support during classes, group lessons and ¢lassroom activities., '

+ Delivered cumicuium in both one-on-one lessons and group learning environments, '

» Used behavier modeling and specialized teaching techniques ta share and reinforce social skills. |
» Pravided support during classes, group lessons and classroom activities

» Assesseq student assignments to check quality and completeness before submission for grading

»

1

Freelance Writer.
Freelance - Concord, NH
July 2005 to Present

* Wrote and po'sted content for company blog, keeping customers updated and engaged
"= Wrote and edited long- and short-form copy for blogs, websites, social media, presentations, tr‘ammg
"matenals and more

« Wrote in several styles and volces for website, print and internal documents

&
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» Shaped :he strategic directlon of copy by col]aboratmg with marketing and retail parmers

" .« Prioritized workflow'and managed schedules to deliver completed projects under cieadhne

Residential Counselor and Instructlonai Asslstant -
Spaulding Youth Center - Northfield, NH ’ _ J;
March 2014 torAugust 2015

< Counseled students with menta[ health disorders such as emotionally handncapped Ieamlng disabled

*neuro- behavigrally impaired, autistic, mentally challenged or delinquent boys and girls or adolescents

« Supervised residential and day treatment children during class and on field trips

. Supported student leaming objectwes through personalized and small group assistance,
« Provided support to help students with speclal needs leain and grow,

+ Counseled clients to help them understand and overcome personal; soclal and behavioral problems

= Consulted with other staff members regarding treatment plans as deemed appropriaté by team leader,

.

Substitute Teacher . '
Manchester School District - Manchester, NH :
September 2007 to June 2015 |

e Instructed up to 35 students individually and in groups

+ Adapted teaching methods and materials to meet students’ varylng needs and interests

++ Set up lesson materials, bulletin board displays and demonstrations

+ Encouraged Students with: special académic interests to fully pursue those subjects
» Worked one on one with students with special needs,

“ . Upheld classroom routines to support student environments and maintain consistent schedules

- Followed classroom plans 1éft by class teacher to continue student education and reinforce core

" concepts.

* Repeatedly requested as subst{tute teacher by teachers based on excellent past referrals and trusted
perforrnance.

Education S . :

Master of Arts In Creative Writing : . . .
Southern New Hampshire University - Hooksett, NH

+ August 2007 to 2009

Skills

* Managing classroom for diverse populations Exper{ise in Creative Writing !
. Exp-ertise in English and special-needs classrooms Diverse classroom settings
+ Experlence with special-needs students Strong collaborator

. Posntwe remforcementTeaching!tutoring

Creatlve imagination stimulation Creative questioning . -
s Student motivation Critical think!ng ) ) )
Adept at workmg with special needs children 0utstandmg social skills . .

-

Special educatlon Classroom discipline
¢ Curriculum-Based Lessons -



. d

. B . v . ) '
¢ Creating & Safe Learning Environment : ' : ]
.. Certifications and Licenses .- . ' ' : '
" CPR Certification " ) : oL T
o ; ; .
: ‘ ,
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CAREER BRIEF " T

. Dynaxmc ‘and creative paraprofessnoual with 20+ years of experience workmg wnh students of all agesina
myriad of settings. Flexiblé, enthusiastic, team player with-leadership skills and ability to engage in open
minded collaboration. Enjoys developing innovative, hands-on curriculum with differentiated instruction for
unique leaming expériences. Well versed in supporting students and dedicated to instilling confidence and self-.
esteem. Committed to building strong connections and positive relauonslups with students, parents, coworkers
and the community. Excited to foster an atmosphere that engages and inspires. .

- SKILLS _ ] . .- ’
o Professional and dependable e  Excellent interpersonal skills e Strong leadership qualities

-e Innovative and optimisic = e Proven writien and oral skills e " Enthusiastic motivator !
o Ambitious and eager tolearn ¢ Eff'ective communicator ® Versatile and compassionate

APPLICA BLE AND RELATED WORK L'XPLRILNCE

Granite State. Independent Living, IMPACCT Academy, Transition Specialist, Concord, NH' (2021 -Present)
» Establish and support post-secondary transition goals for students with disabilities
~e. Inspire students to actively engage in their education and understand the relevance to future career goals
». Create, develop and maintain relat:onshtps with local school district staff, adolescents, parents and
. service providers-
e Build and foster commu:uly connections and relationships with local business

Hapkmton Middle Htgh School Inclusion Facaittator/lns:ruct:onal Assistant, Hopkinton, NH (20!8-2021 ).
o Engaged with Special Education Department team members to plan for/assess student learning

Used knowledge of unique leartung styles to create measurable goal oriented instruction

Wore many hats (1v1, general classroom 1A, Special Ed. Para, substitute, field trip planning etc. )

Had direct input and worked: collaborauvely on wntmg/develo;:mg IEP’s and curriculum

Established rapport with parents/guardians to facilitate communication and academic progress

L

Henniker Community, School, 548" Special Ed Literacy Paraprofessional, Henniker, NH (2014-2018)

e Differentiated instructional design within programs to engage diverse student learning needs
Assisted students in literacy development and academic endeavors in a variety of settings
Worked collaboratively with teachers and other staff to implement student academic/behavior plans.
Managed student behaviors to ensure the best possible learning environment

Dynamite Sound Productions, Disc Jockey and Company Pariner, New England Area (Aug '04-Fresent)
e Coordinate a vanety of productions to meet individual and group needs and expectauons
e . Serve as primary pomt of contact between clients, including facilitating meetings and planning
e Work under pressure; improvise, plan}ma.nage timelines, control flow of important events,
¢ Maintain high reviews and posnwc experiences to foster satisfied customers and repeat clients ™
¢ Responsible for all aspects of running a small business and fostermg an impeccable reputation

-
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The. Villager Newspaper, Bi-weekly Columnist/Feature Writer Hillsboro, NH (Sept 09-June 10)
e Responmble'for generating story pitches and composing and editing my own column -
o - Successfully planned, navigated and facilitated numerous interviews ‘
e Buiit contacts with many local citizens, programs, and orgariizations :
' Hand]cd prcss coverage, penned entertainment stories, and mearched and wrote feature articles

Penn Yan Mrddle Schoo!, Teacher/Facilitator for 21 Centwy Program Penn Yan NY (Aug 02-Dec 03)
. Successﬁllly developed and implemented after school program activities
s Adapted various motivational strategies to engage students academically and keep them on task
s Generdted contact leads for new programs and networked with contacts to actualize programing
¢ .Acted as one-on-one memor support for several stirdents, wnh focus on goal complcuon

Fi mger Lakes Parent Network Juvemle Re.sp:!e Worker, Pénn Yan, NY (Aug 02-Dec.03)
" Planned numerous children’s group and individual outings, in-héme respites, and on-site funcnons
s Learned how to facilitate an environment conducive to students’ emotional growth
" e . Adapted group management and pro gram planmng appropriate for children of diverse: abllmes

Pat's Peak Ski Area, PSIA Lv] Certified Skl Instructor, Henmker, NH (Dec 99-April 2010)

Tauglit an averageof 6-8 lessons per day to children, teens and adults of al] ages

Instructed school program lessons, responsible for 50-75 adolescents. daily

Designed and implemented a variety of lesson plans to meet learners’ needs

Variegated instruction for d:fferent learning styles, with attention to skill mastery and enjoyment

Mount Royal Academy, Acczdemac Tutor, Ski Program Coardmaror Substitute, Sunapee, 'NH (2008- 2011 )
- @ Worked with teachers and parents to determine individual student needs for tutoring :
o Plaoned and facilitated appropriate tutoring sessions in a range of subjects and levels,
o Coordinated group of 68 students 1*-12® grade and all parent chaperones for Ski Program
e Responsibilities included sat‘ety of all involved, smooth running of 6-week program, delegating tasks,
handling emergencies, ensuring completed paperwork and financial transfers, communicating
effectively with all involved agencies incliding MRA, Ski Mountain, tmn‘sponation and parenrs

Richard E. Byrd Academy, In(emshrp in 8" Grade Multi-Level C!assroom Ch:cago IL {Jan 03-March 03)
¢ Navigated and gained knowledge of challenges facing students and teachers in urban cldssrooms
o Tailored lessons to meet the needs of the-students
® Nurtured and inspired students 1o reach for their dreams

EDUCATION AND CERTIFICATIONS:

. Keuka College, Keuka Park, NY (Sept 00-Dec 03)
« o Three completed years - Major in Secondary Enghsh Education . :
.o Education courses including: Educational Psychology, Foundations of Education, Early Human
Development, Study of Ch.lldrens ‘Literature, Diverse Learners

Bishop Brady High School Concard NH (96—00)
" e College prcparatory studies, Honors Diploma

Youth Development Praclmoner NH (October 2022) . : .
Para II Certification - NH {April 19} ~ ) -
" CPI Certification (Non-violent Crisis Prevention and Intcrventwn) NH (Sep! ‘19)



- Frank Edetblut

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T: Sununy

W

Christine Brannan
Commissionar . ‘Boputy Commbssloner -
- STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMENT QF EDUCATION
25 Hali Stree!
Coneerd, N.H, 03301
TEL. (603} 271-3495 . . -
FAX (603) 271-1953 !

November 6, 2023 , o oy

and the Honorable Counc‘il' .

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

#

. ) .REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Education, Bureau of Vocational Rehabilitation (VR) to enter into a
retroactive sole source contract with Granite State Independent Living (GSIL), Concord, NH,

. {vendor #155330), in an amount not to exceed $1,272,040 to continue to providé the “Inspiring

the Mastery of Postsecondary Achievement in College” (IMPACCT) program in five regions of
NH, effective upon Governor and Council approval for the period of October 1, 2023, through

. September 30, 2024 with 2n oplion to renew for one additional year. 100% Fedéral Funds.

Funds are avai!ablé in account titled VR Field Programs-Federal for FY2024 and FY2025 with the
authority to adjust encumbrances between fiscal years within the price limitation through the |

., Budget Office, if needed and justified.

06-56-56-565010-25380000- . . |
603-504150 . FY2024 . FY 2025 Total’

VR Clients . ) $954,030 ~$318,010 $1,272.040
Lo EXPLANATION

P

This contract is retroactive due to department tumover which extended contract negotiations. The
contract is sole source. When initially implemented, the IMPACCT prograr was awarded through
an RFP process. Since that time, GSIL has continued to rim the successful student pprogram. This”

" request is to continue-funding the “Inspiring the Mastery of Postsecondery Achievement in

College” (IMPACCT) Pre-Employment TransitionService (Pre-ETS) program, which is a.
collaboration between the Department of Education, Bureau of Vocational Rehabilitation and

_ Granite State [ndependent Living, The program was developed and implemented in 2016 after the
‘Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act was reauthorized, that required VR to set aside 15%

of Federal funding to provide Pre-ETS to potentially eligible students.

TDD Accass: Relay NH 711 .
EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER- EQUAL EQUCATIONAL OPPORTUNITIES



His Excelleucy, Govemor Chnstopher T. Sununu S : - L

. and the Honorable Councﬂ ‘ . ) -

' Page2 of2 . i ' R 3

Since 2016 the program. has contmued in the north country (Berlmeutieton) .Nashiva,
Portsmouth, Manchester and Concord. The program, which is a 14 week {fall and sprmg) and 5
week (summer) comprehensive Pre-ETS program that provides the five required services: job
exploration counseling, work readiness training, work-based learning experiences, counselmg on
post—secondary training opportumnes and self-fadvocacy : .

'Studenrs that attend’ the program also eam hlgh school credit for the program and have ¢amed
5,240.5 extended lcammg opportunity have been completed, with 3,526.25 academit credits’
obtarned After completing the program 221 students graduated immediately, 48 students attended
altemative education and 757 students returned to high school The average student attendance
rate is 90% and 81.4% of students in IMPACCT have an IEP, as weli a3 14.7% have a 504 plan.

. HB4, when appreved in'October 20!9 allocated $400, 000 in Gcncral Funds to be allocated toward
program costs. This funding was ellocated to-the program in FY20 ,

The program was originally developed through a request for proposal (RFP) process in 2016 and
GSIL was the choscn vendor to provide. the program in the state. VR and GSIL are looking to
continue this partnership to enhance the provision of Pre-ETS in the state.

ReSpectfully Submrtted

Frrmk Edelblut

Commissioner of Education

TDD Access: Relay NK 71 ’
EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER- EQUAL EDUCATIONAL CPPORTUNITIES
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FORM NUMBER P-37 (version 2/23/2023)-

L{g_tggg ‘This agreement and all of its attachmeats shall become public upon submission to Govemor and .
" Executive Council for upprovai Any information that is private, confidential or proprietary musl
be clea.rly identificd’to thé agcncy and ogroed to i writing prior to signing the contract..

. AGREEMENT
The State of New Hampshzrc #nd the Contractor hereby muneally agree as follows:
: GENERAL PROVISIONS :
1. IDENTIFICATION: . ° - & .
i 1 State Agency Nnme - . .| L2 State Agency Address -
Ncw Hampshtrc Dcpaﬂmcnt of Education 1 25 Mol Street - y
(N HED) ) Concord, NH03301 - : )

Granite State. Independent Living.

1.3 Contractor Name

1.4 Conlraclor Address
21 Chenell Drive

‘ Concord, NH 43301
1.5 Contractor Thoiio 1.6 Account Unitand Class | 1.7 Completion Date TT8 Price Liniitation
Nomber - - . -
603-228-9680 : " | See Exhibit C .| 904 .| 81,272,040

1.9 Contracting Officer for Stats Agency
on Sabolcvskl

1.10 State Agency Telephone Number
603-717-5194 .

111 Conlractor S1gnalurc

Date: fdﬁt ’9‘

1.12 Name and Title of Contrctor Signstory -
Deborah Ritcey, Chief Executive Officer

5 [

L13 Slata Agcncy S:g:natum
m 11108/2023

1,14 Name and Title of State Apency Signatory
Feank Edelblut, Commissioner

By:

¥

LIS Approval by the N.H. Department of Administration, Division ancrsannel (' if opplicable)

Director, On:

By: ﬂimbemam%m(/lme 4

1.16 Approval by the Attorney General (Form, Substance and Execution) (i applicable) ’ !

' &' w 11/08/2023

G&C Rem number:

‘117 Approval by the Goverrgn.nd Executive Council (ifapplicabls)

G&C Meeling Date:

Page 1of4

Date.

Contractor lniﬁals.Cl{L/

H a3

’
1 4 s i 28

e A WA o et by b
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2. SERVICES TQ BE PERFORMED. The State of New
Hampshire, scting’ lhrough the ngency ideatified in block 1.1
(“Statc™), cngages contrictor jdentified in block 1.3 (“Contractor”)
.o peiform, and the Contractor shall perform, the work or sale of

goods, br both, identified and more particulerly described in the-

sttached EXHIBIT B which is incorparated hertin by reference
("Scmws") . )

a. EFREC’I'WE DATE!COMPLETIOV OF SERVICES.

X Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject fo the approval of the Goveroor aud Executive
Council ‘of ‘the State of New Hompshire, if applicable, this
Agreement, and nll obligatlons of the parties hérounder, shall
become effective on the date the Governor and Executive Council
gpprove this Agreement, ‘unless no such approval [s required, in

. which case the Agréement shall become effective on the date the

- Agreement is signed by the State Agenéy ns shown in b!oc:k 1.13

.+ (“Effective Date™). .

L3216 the Contenctor comraences the Services prior to the Effective
Date, ell Services performed by the Contractor prior o the
EfTective Date shall bp pesformed at the solé cisk of the Contructar,
ond in the event that this Agreement does not becomeé effective, the
State shall have no liability to the Contraclor, ircluding.without
limitation, any obligation to pay the Contractor for any cosis
Incurred or Services performed.

3.3 Controctor must complete all Services by the Completion Date

- specified in block 1.7,

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwithstanding any proyision of this Agreement to the contrary,
all obligations of the State hereunde, including, without limitation,
the continuence of puyments hercunder, arc contingent upon the
nvallnbﬂny dnd continued appropristion of funds. In no event shall
the State be lizble for any payments hercunder in excess of such
available spproptiated funds. In the event of a reduction or
termination of appropmtcd funds by any state or federal legislative
 or executive action that reduces, climinates or othierwise modifics
the appropriation or aveilability of funding for ﬂl,is Agrecment and
the Scope for Services provided in EXHIBIT B, in whole ar in part,
the State shall have the right fo withhold paymeat until such funds
become available, If ever, ond shall have the right to reduce or

terminate the Services under this Agreement immedintely upen .

giviag the Centeactor notice of “such reduction or termiination. The
Stz shali not be required (o transfer funds from any other account
or source to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the event funds
In that Aceount are reduced or unavailable.

5, CONTRACT ‘PRICUPRICE !..IMITAT[ONI PAYMENT.
5.0 Thbe contract price, method of payment, and terms of payment
are identified and niore paruculnrly deseriped in EXHIBIT C wtuch
is incorporated herein by reference.
5.2 Notwithstanding any provision in-this Agreement to the
contrary, end notwithstanding unéxpected circumstanced, in no
_event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actusally made
hereunder; exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block 1.8, The
payment by the State of the'contract price shall be the only and the
complete reimbursement to the Contracter for all expenses, of
whatever natore incurred by the Contractor in the performence

*
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hcrcof. and shali be the only and the comp[cte compmsnuon to the
Contieclor for the Services,

33 The State reserves the right to offset from any. amounls
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreemen! those
liquidated amounts required dr pcrmn‘lcd by .NH. RSA 30:7
through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law.

5.4 The State’s Hability under thi§ Agreeavent shall be limited to
monetary démages not to exceed the tolal fees paid,  The Contractor
agrees that it has an adequate remedy-at law for any breach of this
Agreement by the State and hercby waives any right o speeific
performance or other equitable remedics agalnst the State.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS AND *
REGULATIONS/EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the peiformance of the Services, the

Contruclor shell comply with ell opplicable statutes, laws,
regulations, and orders of fedoral, Siate, county or municipal
authorities which impose ony ‘obligation ‘or duty upon ‘thz
Contractor, including, but not limited to, eivil rights and cqual
cmploymenlopponunuy laws-and the Governar’s order on Respect
and Civility in the. Workplace, Executive order 2020- 01, In
addition, if this Agresment is funded in any part by monies of the
United Slates, the Contractor shell comply with ell federal
executive arders, mies, regulations'end statutes, end with eny rules,
regulations and guidefines as the Statc or the United States issuc to
implement these regulations. The Contractor ghall also comply
with all epplicable intellectual property laws,

6.2 During the tefm- of this Agreement; the Commctnr shall aot
discriminate against cmployccs ar opplicants for employment
because of nge, sex, sexuul orientation, race, color, marital status,
physicel or mental disability, relrgmus creed, national origin,

: gcndcr identity, or gender cxpression, and will lake affirmative |

action to prevent such discfimination, unless exermpt by state or
federal law, The Cootractor shall ensure any subcontractors comply
with these nondiscriminalion requiremenis.

6.3 No paymen(t or transfers of value by Contractor or its
representatives in connection wilh this Agreament have or shall be
made which have the purpesc or effect of public or commercial
bribery, or acceptance of or ecquiescence in cxtortion, kickbacks,
or other unlawfid or improper means of ablaining business.

6.4. The Contractor agrees to permit the State or Usited Statos

aceess 10 any of the Contracior’s books, records and accounts for
the purpose of ascertaining complinnce with this Agreement end ell
rules, regulations and orders pertaining to the covenants, terms and
conditions of this Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense pmvude all personnel
necessary 1o perform the Services. The Contractor warrants thet all
persennel engaged in the Services shal{ be qualified to perform the
Services, and shall be properly licensed and otherwise authorized
to do so under all applicable laws.

7.2 The Contracting Officed specified in block 1.9, or eny
successor, shall be the State’s pomt of contact pertamms fo this

Agresment.”

: :Con;.ractor hu']t)i:!s { &g"‘—"
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8 EVENT OF DEI"AULTIREMLD]ES

P O R

8.1 Any one or morc of the Tollowing rets or omiss:ons of the
Contractor shelt constitute an svent of default hcreundu' ("Evmt of
Del'auh”)

8.1.1 foilure toperfon the Services sntlsfactoraiy ar on schedule;
8.1.2 failure to'submit any report required hereunder; andior

8.1.3 failure to perform any ather covenant, term or condmcn of
this Agreement,

8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, ihc State may
ke @y one, or more, or all, of the following actions:

8.2.1 give the Contrablor n written notice speclfmng the Evenl of
Defuult and requiring il 10 be remedied within, in the absence of &
greater or lesser’ specification of time, thirty. '(30) calondor days
from the dats of the nofice; and if the Event of Default is not Umcly
cured, lerminate this Agreement, effective swo (2) cs!endar days
after gwlng the Contractor natice of termination;

8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of

* Defaull and suspmdmg all payments to be made under this

Agreement and ordering that the portion of the cofitract price which

* would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the period from

the date of such notice until such time-as tho State determines that

* the Contractor has cured the Event of Defoult shall never be paid

to the Contractor;

- 82.3 give the Contractor a written notice spectfymg the Event of

Default end set off against any other obligations the State may owe
to the Contractor eny damages the State suf‘fers by teason of any
Bvent of Default; and/or

8.24 give the Contractor a writien noticc speclfylng the Event of
Defaull, treal the Agreement as breached, tenninete the Agreement

. and pursue oy of ifs remedics at law oria equuy, or both,

- .. 9. TERMNATIO\I

9,1 Notwithstzndiog paragraph 8, 'the Stale may, at ils sole
discretion, tenninate the Agrwnem for any reason, in whole or in
part, by thirty (30) calendar days wrilten notice fo the Contractor
that the State is cxercising its aption to terminate the Agresment.
9.2 In the event of an early termination of this Agreement for any
reason: other than the completion of the Services, the Contractor
shall, et the State’s discretion, deliver to the Conlmeling Officer,
not later than fiftecn (15) caleadar days ofter the date of
termination, a repart (“Termination Repoit™) degeribing in detail
gll Services pefformed, and the contract price eamed, to and
including the date of terminstion. In addition, at the Siale’s
diseretion, the Contractor shall, within fifteen (15) calendar days
of notico of carly termination, develop and submit to the Stato a
transition plan for Services under the Agreement,

10. PROPERTY OWNERSRIP/DISCLOSURE.

10.1 As used in this Agreement, the word “Property” shall mean
all dnta, informahon and things developed or oblninted during the
pc:formancc. of, or scquired or developed by rcason of, this
Agresment, mcludmg, but not limited to, ll studies, reports, files,
formulae, ourveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial mpmdncticns. drawings, analyses, graphic
representations, computér programs, compuler pnntoutx notes,
letters, memorande, papers, and documeats, nil whether finished or
unfinished.

: . Page 3 of d

102 All date and eny Property which lias been rcccwed from the |

State, or purchased with funds provided for that purpose under this
Agreement, shail be the property of the State, and shall be returned
to the State upon demand or. upon lermmahon of this Agrecment
for any reagon.

10.3 Disclosure of dafa, information and other recards shalt be
govemed:by N.H. RSA chapter 91-A and/or other gpplicable law,
Disslosure requires prior writien approvat of the-State. ’

11. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE. Inthe
performance of this Agreement the Conirnctor is in all respects an

independent contractor, and is neithier 2n agent nar tn employee of

the State. Nelther the Contractor nor eny of its officers, employces.
agénts or members shall have authority to bind the State or receive
any henefits, workers™ compensation or othér emoluments
provided by the Siate to iis employees. .

72. ASSIGNMENT/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS.

12.1 Contmctor shali provide the State written nolice at least fifteen
(15),cetendar days before any pmposed nssignment, delegation, or
other transfer of any interest in this Agmment. No such
assignment, delegation; or other transfer shall be effecnve without
the written consent of the State.

12.2 Por purposes of peragraph 12, a Change of Contro! shall
constitute assignment. “Change of Conirol” means () merger,
consoiidation, or a transaction or series of related transactions in

which a third party, together with its affiliates, becomes the direot’

or indircct owner of fifty percent (50%) or more of tho voling
shares or similar equity interests, or combined voting power of the

Caontractor, or {b) the sale ofa]l or substam:a]!y all of lhe assets of .-

the Contrzctor,

12.3 Mone b the Services shall be subcontracted by the Contractor

without prior written notice and.consent of the State,

124 The State is catitled to copies of all suboommc!s nnd
m|gnmcnt egresments aud shall not be bound by any provisions
contained in 8 subcontract or an assignment agreement {o which :l
is ot A party. y

13. lNDEY[NI[‘ICATION The Contmctor shall indemnify,
defend, and hold hermless: the State, its officers, and employess
from =nd egainst all acticos, claims, damages, demands,
judgments, fines, labilities, losses, and other expenses, including,
without limitation,. reasonable attomeys’ fecs, arising out.of or
relating to this Agn:emem directly or indirectly arising from death,
parsonal  injury, property damage, intellectnat property,
infringement, or other claims asserted against the State, its officers,
or employess caused. by the acts or omissions of negligence,
reckless or willful misconduct, or fraud by the Contraclor, its
employees, agents, or subconteactors. The State shall not be liable
for any costs incurred 'by the Coritractor arising under this
peragraph_ 13, Notwithstanding the forepoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute & waiver of the State’s
sovereign immunity, which immunity is heréby reserved to the
State, This covenant in paragraph 13 shall survive.the termination
of this Agreement.

.

o Contractor Initials Ji
‘ Date 11 4
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14. INSURANCE.

“14.1 The Contractor shall, at ils sole expense, obtain nad

continuously. maintain in-farce, and shall require eny subcontraglor
or gssignee 1o obtai and maintain in force, the fol!owmg insurance:

. 14.1.1 commercial general liability jnsurence egainst atl claims of
. bodxty injury, death or propery damage, in smounts 6 not less than
$1,000,000 per occurrence and $2,000, 000 aggregate or excess;.

and
14.1.2 special ciwse of loss covernge formi covering all Property
subject to subparagraph 10.2 herein; in an amount not [css than

- B0% of the whole replacement value of the Property.

14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shail be on

“policy forms znd endorsements approved for usein the State of

New Hampshire by the N.H. Departmenl of Insurance, and ;ssucd
by insurers licensed in the State of New Hamgshire.

143 The Contractor shall fumish to the Conlracting Officer

identified in block 19, or any successor, a certificate(s) of

* insurance for ali insurance requtired under this Agreement. Al the
_, request of the Contracting Officer, or sny successor, (e Contructor
shall provide cetificale(s) of insurance for all rencwal(s) of

insurance requived under this Agreement The certificale(s) of
insurance end any renewals thereof shall be attached-and ere

- incorparated herein by refercnce. -

15. WORKERS* COM‘PE:ﬂSATlON. :
15.1 By sighing this agreement, the Contracior agrees, certifics and
wamrants that the Contractor is in compliance with or exempt from,

" the requirements of N4 RSA chapter 281-A (“'Herkers’

Compensation”).” .

15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the requirements of
N.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall maintain, and requite
any subcontractor or asmgz\ee to secure and maititaln, payment of
Workers' Compensation in connection with activities which the
person propases (g underteke pursuant to this Agrecment. The
Caoatrector shall furnish the Contracting Officer identified in block
1.9, or any, suceessar, proof of Workers” Compensation in the
manner, described in-NH, RSA chapter 281-A and any applicable
renewal(s) theeeof, which shall be attached end are incorporated
herein by reference. The State shiall not be rcspons:blc for pryment
of any Workers' Compengation premiums o for any other claiin or

. benefit for Cormactor, or any subcontrector or cmployee of

Controctor, which fight erisc under applicable State of New
Hanpshire Workers' Compensation laws in connection with the
performance of the Services undcr this Agreement.

18, AMENDMENT, This Agreement may bé emended, waived or

discharged only by an instrument in writing signed by the pames
herelo and only afier approval of such amendment, waiver or
discharge by, the-Governar and Exccutive Council 6f the State of
New Hampshirc unless no such approval is required under the -
circumstances pursuant to State law, rule or policy,

19. CHOICE OF LAW AND I*ORUM
19.1 This Agreement shall be govemed interpreted and oonsh'ucd
in accordance with the laws of the Stafe, of New Hampshire except
where the Federal supremecy clause’ requires otherwise. The
wording used in this Agrecinent is the wording' chosen by the
parlics to cxpress their mutual intent, and no aule of construction
shall be applicd agalnsl or in favor of any party.

19.2 Any actions atising out of this Agre:mem Including thc
bresch ar alleged breach thereof, may not be submitled to binding
arbitration, but must, insiead, be brought and maintained in the
Merrimack County Superior Court-of New Hampshim which shall
have exclusive jurisdiction thercof,

-
&

20. CONFLICI’ING TERMS. In the cveni of a conftict bclw'ee'n :
the teems of this P-37 form (as modified in EXHIBIT A) and any
other portion of this Agreement including any.attachments thereto,
the terms of (he P-37 (as modified in EXHIBIT A) shall control.

21, THIRD PARTIES. This Agreement is being entered into for
the sole benefit of the parties hereto, and nothing herein, express or

“implied, is intended to or will canfer any legal or equilable right,

benefit, or remedy of any nature upan any other person.

22. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement arc for’
rcfer,cnca purposes only, and the words contained therein sha_ll in
no way be held to explain, modlﬁ' amplify or aid in the’
interprelation, constructidn or meaning of the provisions of ‘this -
Agrccment. " C
23, SPECIAI.. PROVISIONS, Additional or modifying
provisions set forth, in the attached EXHIBIT A are incarporated-
herein by reference.

24. FURTHER ASSURANCES. The Contractor, elong with its
egents and affiliates, shall, atits owh cost and expense, execute any.
additionnl documents and take such furiher actions-as may be
reasonebly required to ceny out the provisions of this Agreement
and give effect to the ransactions contemplated hereby.

16. WAIVER OF BREACH. A State's faifure to enforce its' nghts ’

" with respect 1o any smgic of continuing breach of this Agreement

skall not act as & waiver of the right of the State to Ister enforce any

_ such rightsor to enfnrce any other or any subsequent breach,

17. NOTICE. Any notice by s pany hereto to the other party shall
be deemed to hnve been duly delivered or given al the time of
maifing by certified mail; postage prepsid, in a United States Post
Office nddressed to the parttes 2 the addresses given in blocks 1.2
end 1.4, herein,
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25. SEYERABILITY. Inthe cvent any of the provisions of thls
Agreement are held by o coust of competem Junsdlcuon to be
contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining provisions of this
Agreement will reraain in full foree and-effect. -

26. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which moy be
executed in a number of countermarts, cach of which shall be
deemed an original, constitutes the eptire egreement end
understanding  belween the partics, ond supersedes all prior
agreements and understandings with respect to the subjact matter’

hereof.
Conlractor Inma!sd/('/
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<" EXHIBIT A ‘
SPECIAL PROVISIONS -. A :
Additional exhibits D-G. . |
F'federf;l Cert'if:ic_ation 2 C'FR_'200:415

Required certifications include: (a) To assure that expenditures are proper and in -
accordance with the terms and conditions of the Federal eward and approved project
budgets, the annua! and final fiscal reports or vouchers rcqucsung payment under the
agreements miust include a certification, signed by an official who is authonzed to legally
bind the non-Federal entity, which reads as follows:

_ By signing this report, ] certify to the best bf my knowledge and belief that the report is
true, complete, and accurate, ard the expenditures, disbursements and cash receipts are for
the purposes and objectives set forth in the terms and conditions of the Federal awerd. [ am
aware that any false, fictitious, or fraudiilent information, or the omission of any material
fact, may subject me to criminal, civil or administrative penalties for -fraud; false

_ statements, false claims or otherw:se (U.S. Code Title 18, Section 1001 and Tlt!c 3],
Sections 3729-3730 and 3801-3812).

Pt

L]

Subject to-Governor and Council approval, authorize the Department of Education to include a
renewal option on this.contract for one additional year, subject to the contractor’s acceptable
performance of the terms therein,

Renewal date Octobér 1, 2024, through September 30, 2025

Contract between Granite State Independent Living
and the New Hampshire Departient of Edvication

; T Pagelofd . .' le
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EXHBITB" -
SCOPL OF SERVICDS
Gramte State Independent Livitg (GSIL) will provndc the followmg services {o the New

Hampslnro Department of Education, Burcau of Vocational Rehabilitation (VRINH), effective
. upon Governér.and Council approval for the pcnod of Octobcr R 2023 through Scptembcr 30,

T 2024:

The contiactor, GS IL, shall prowdc thta fwe (5) required Pre-Employment Transxtmn Services
(Pre-ETS), as outlined in'the WIOA and in the VR Fédernl Regulations by providing the
“Irispiring the Mastery of Postsecondary Achievement in College, Careers and Treining
(IMPACCT)" program in five locations around the state (North Country) Berlmleleton
Concord, M&nchester, Nashua, and Portsmouth.

. The contmctor, GSIE, will utilize the culmmatlon of the IMPACCT Academy program
evaluation (June 2023) report developed by a third-party consultant and IMPACCT evaluation .
fidelity review completed by IMPACCT, to hightight the.return on investment and value of the
IMPACCT program, This evaluation shall be ulilized to establish agreements with school

- districts for.a port:on of the sustainability. of the program after this contract ends.

The IMPACC'! program is a 14-week (fall and spring) and 5-week (summer) comprehensive

program that provide all five required Pre-ETS services (job exploration counseling, work
readiness skills, work-based leamning opportunities, counseling on post-secondary education

' opportunities and self-advocacy) to students who ase eligible or potentially eligible for VRNH . -

services: The following are the modules provided to students for the program and may mclude,

* but not limitedto examples listed:

l Job Exploratton Module .
' i Complete an interest inventory
ii. Complete a self-report assessment
[iii. Complete a career ladder
iv. Listen to employers spesking about the day-to- day operations and cxpet.tatlons
. of the workplace
v. Listen to émployers speaking about possible positions within a company
2. Work-Based Leaming Experiences Module
L Identify what types of work-based learning experience they already hnve
completed
ii. Identify workplaces in which they might like to have an experiefice
ili. Identify transferable skills
iv. Participate in a work-based learning experience
3. Counseling on Post-Secondery Education Opportunities . . !
. i. Receive labor market information
Receive information on how to use public transponatton
iii. Receive information on budgetmg

Contraci bcnm:n Gronite State Independam Living S L ]
and the New Hampshive Department of Edvication

Page2of 8 _ ]
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-iv. Receive information on health management
v. Receive information on healthy recreational activities
- vi. Reccive information an NHVR services and how to apply for semccs

vii: Receive exposure'on potcntlal post-secondary options like:

1. “Rapidly growing careers ;
.+ - 2. Community colleges
3. Trade schoolsftechnical schools
" 4. Four-year colleges

4, Workplace Readiness Training Module

a. Students receive information on'social skxlls and- mdcpcndcnt hvung skt!ls

- b. Employers and students experiencé mock interviews

¢. Students reccive feedback on interviewing skills .
d.” “Students receive training regarding professional prescn{at:on and appearance
e. Students produce a resume, cover letter and thank you notes '

.5, Self- Advocacy Module

GSIL Shall:

L.

a. Students'receive information and training rcgardmg personalized planmng to learn how .
to advocate for themselves independently and in the presence of support throughout the

transition process’
b. Students receive trammg on'’how'to ldentlfy posnwe supports
Students identify positive adult supports
Students identify positive peer supports

e o

DELIVERABLES AND TIMELINE

Provide a signed registration form for each studeril enrolled no Jater than 14 days prior to
the start of the cohort.

Ensurce there is written authornzahon per individual, received from VR prior to the stert °
of each cohort.

Provide the module programming in five areas of the stntc (Bcrlmf[,lltlcton, Concord,
Manchester, Nash ua, and Portsmouth.) , .

?rowda.an Academy experience, via the GSIL IMPACCT Program, which will consist of
three ¢ohorts per year of students in cach of the awarded regions. Each cohort will
contain up to 15 new students and to the extent possible will be held at a re.glonal
commumty college or other designated iocation. .

The structure for the Academy expericnce will be training room/classroom time, work
experience, and remote learning, adapted as needed based on the ngeds of the students,
schools, and work environment in each awarded region. Each cohort will provide at a
minimum of 12 direct services hours to the student weekly. This docs not include the
hours of services for work-based learning opportunities. GSIL will provide & 40-hour

work-based learning experience at an approved Department of Labor (DOL) business sxtc ‘

in the community to cach student participating in the Acedemy cohort. -

Coniract ber_we_en Graniia State Independent. Living
and the New Hanipshire Department of Education
Poge 30f8
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5. Each student can gét further assistance with the academic, carecr, independent living,

. . credential opportunities, and other needs as possible and appropriate. Ensure that those:
participating in ‘the Acedemy cxperience have the opportunity to carnacadeimic credits by
mastering the necessary competencics through Extcnded Learnmg Opportunities (ELO’S)
related to'the 5 Pre-ETS services.

This can include but is:not limited to: - SR

A The Na!ionai Career Readiness Certificate

i, Online credit recovery and remedial education L
.iti.  High School Equivalency Test (HISET) preparation tools

iv.  Peermentoring '

v. Job shadows i

vis Job tours

vii.  Information intervicws

viil. | Inteinships

6. Ensure that transportation arrangements are made with the participating schools in cach
region for participating students to get to and from the program cach day.

. 7. ldentify a ‘point person’ at each participating schoo! who will serve as the contact person
for the IMPACCT Academy and assist-with eppropriatc on-site administmtivc tasks.

", Ensure that curriculum vsed for the Academy appropriately and solcly addresses the f‘ ve
‘n:qunred Transition Serwces idéntified in WIQA.

9. Adhereto VRNH’S standard monthly student progrcss note reporting format, monthly
reports to.be reccived by the 10™ of the follow:ng menth.

10. Engage, coordinate, and facilitate VRNH designated representatives al the following
stages of the program cohorts (referral with school district, new'cohort orientation,
workshops, coordinate & scheduled time for VRNH to provide VR Overview of services,
GXIt Intecviews, and graduation). .

GSIL will work in tandem with NI-IVR to cnsure:

L.. Work in coliaboratlon with VR offices to de.tcrmme if there are any students who are
inferested in bcmg part of a cohort prior to filling spots.

T2 IMPACCT will nssist in the collection of the identified documentation requirements for
© . eligibility.

[

3. As defined by Workforce Innovations Oppomlmty Act (WIOA), all students with a
dnsabdlty, who are eligible or potentially eligible, will meet the required crxterla

Contractor Inili als%{:
Date [a' ‘ }2) .

Contract between Gmm!c State Independent Living.
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4 “The dcvelopmcnt marketmg, and presentation of the requ:red Pre-Employment
_'I‘mnsmon Services and gl aspects of the pmcess are effective and accessible.

5. Tra'g!itionally underscrved populations are identified and provided equal opportunity to '
’ participate, such as students who are in all levels of placements, students who arc deaf or
hard of hearing and students who arc in, and/or from rura! settings. '

6. Appropriate collaboration-with local high schools and Special Education professionals to-
- coordinate provision of services to students with disabilities:

7. Ensure the employersare appropiiately involved in the delivery of Pre-Employment
Transition Services being sure to include; Presenting information about their specific .* .°
industcy, opportuinities within the industry and/or the employers® specific organization-
such as, after school opportunities, trazmng opportunities, and other types of
opporturiitics, prescnting a basic everview of workplace expectations such as, soft skills,
appropriate verbal ¢ommunication, gppropriate electronic communication, appropriate
customer interactions, appropriate conflict resolution, and appropriate overall workp]nce
bchav:or .

8. Any and all marketing materials used to promote the specn‘ic services hsted above shall
prominently display the VRNH logo and communicate clearly that the services are being
provided at the request of VRNH and as'a result of dlrcct funding by VRNH and the
Départment of Education.

9. GSIL and VRNH personiiel will both participate in the provision of specific services (i.e.
VRNH will present on how to apply for VRNH services, attend exit meetings, etc.).

REPORTING

GSI1L shall provide, not later then fourteen (14) days prior to the start of the program, a
registration form approved by VRNH containing the required data elements signed by the
‘student, school official and parent or guardian, if applicable; if changes to enrollment of students
happen due to unforeseen circumstances; GSIL must connect with VRNH T rans:t:on
Cnordmator as soon as circumstance erises for approval of change,

Upon completion.of the program, VRNH will receive an electronic copy of the.siudent’s
portfolio; documenting what was completed during the program. Documents should inélude

* resumes, detailed information about the student’s work-based learning experiences, work logs,

_ Interest inventories, and other docume.nts heipful to the VR plannmg process.

GSIL shal prowde a report, at the end of each cohort by the IO”‘ of the following month, and one -
report that summarizes the following data: .

»  Cohort statistics (number of students, schools represented, disability infonnatio.n);

Contract between Granite State Independant Living
and the New Hampshire Departmen! of Education
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Number of different employers providing student expcnences and their names;
Nimber of students with pert or full time’ employment at the end of IMPACCT;
Number of students returning to school that may have dropped out; and
With assistance from VRNH, thie number of students who are VRNH customers
Schedule for reporting is - '

o -Spring Cohort — By the 10 of July

" o Summer Cohort — By the 10" of September
o Fall Cohort-—— By 10™ of March :

.
- a A
e o o 's ® »

GSIL will conduct an annua] IMPACC’I Academy ﬁdellly reyiew foilowmg cach contract year, *
for all sites, : .

Caniract between Granite Siate independent Living
. . and the New Hampskire Department of Education
. Page G of 8

Confraclor!m’n'aisd'{/‘"
A Datefi ‘? l‘ 2

Number of credits.attained and in what spectalty; = - : oo



EXHIBIT C

- MLTHOD OF PAYMENT
FY2024 . | FY2025 “Total
Salaries and Wages* $432,523 $144,174 | | $576,697
Payroll Taxes & Fringe Benefits $164,359 - ' $54,78§ - $219,145.
Subtotal-Compensation Expenses $596,882 $198,961 . |  $795,843
| Transportation ' $5,023 $1,975 [, $2.900
Insurunce 311,475 33,825 v 515,300
Mileage Reimbursement . $7019 32,340 $9,359
Occupancy Expense $113,085 - $37,695 . . $150,780
Stakeholders/Partners - $5,625 $1,875 57,500
Office Expenses!Supprs ) 34,185 31,395 35,580
| Telephone- $3,510 $1,170 © $4,680
Advertising/Recruitment $4,455 - 81,485 $5,940
Computer Costs $26,250 $8,750 $35,000
Student $tipcnds $51,000 $17,000 $68,000
Student Costs/Graduations/Meetings $180 - $60 $240.
Subtotal-Direct Expenses T $232,710 $77,570 $310,280.
Indirect Bxpense at 10% $124,439 $41,480 $165,919
| Total Expenses $954,030 - 3318,016 §1,272,040

Limitation on Price: Upon mutual agreement between the state contracting officer and the
contractor, line items in this budget may be adjusted one to .another, but in no.case shal! the
contract exceed the price limitation of $1,272,040.

Funding Source: Fundsare available in account titled VR Field Programs-Federal for FY2024
and FY2025 with the authority to adjust encumbrances betweén fiscal years within the price
limitation through the Budgct Ofﬁcc, if needed and justified.

06-56-56-565010-25380000-

FY 2025
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‘ Method of Paymeat: Payment will bc méade upon the submntta[ of an invaice for complctcd Pre- '
ETS ‘modules and programming-completed, which is supported bya summary of actiyities that
have taken placein accordance with the terms of the contract, per student. If otherwise correct

and acceptable, payment will be madc for 100% of the expenditures listed. A final invoice, shell
be sent to the Departmenl wnthm 30 days of the end of this contract:

Inyo;ccs and reports shall be submitted to!

_ ' Joy Sabolevski L - ‘.
- ¢ Joy.P.Sabolevski@doc.nh.gov ) '
. : - . Ce Wll!:am G.Gaffney@doe.nh.gov .

2
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.. EXHIBITD ;

L. Conlrucfor Obl!gutions
*Confracts In excess of the simpl:f ed acqursuion threshold (currenﬂy sel af $250,000) musl oddress
administrative, contractual, oriegal remedles Ininstances where ihe contracters violaie or breach
caniract terms, and provide for such sanctions and penallies as appropriate. Reference:

2 CFR. § 200,326 nd 2 CF.R: 200, Appendix ll, required contract clauses.

The confractar acknewladges that 31 US.C. Chap. 38 {Administrative Remedies for False Ciaims
1and Siaiemenfs] appiles to the corilractor's actions perialning 1o this confracf

the Coniraclor cerlifies and affims the truthiuiness and accuracy of each siatemerit ol is
certificatjon and disclosure, If any. In addilion, the Contractor undersiands and agrees that the
provisions of 31 U S.C § 3801 et seq.. apply to 1hls ceriificalion and disclosurs, If any.

Breach ) ’ : .

A breach of the coniract clauses above may be grounds for lermination of ihe.coniract, and for.

debarmant ¢s a contracior and subeontractor as provided in2? CF.R.§ 512

Fraud cmd False Slalemenfs

The Contractor understands thal, it the project which is the subject of this Conircc! is finasiced in
whole or in part by federal funds, thal it the undersigned, the compony tha! the Cenlractor
represenis, or any employee or agen! thereof, knowingly makes any false stalement,
" representation, reportor claim as to the character, quality, quantily, or cost of maleral used or to
be used, or.quantity or quality work performed or to be performed, or makes any false slatement
or representatlion of a molerial tacl in any statement, cerfificate, or repart, the Conlractor and

"L oany compony that the Conlractor represenis may be subjec! to prosecution under the provision:

of 18 USC §1001 and §1020,

Envlronmcn!al Proteclion
{This clause is ‘applicable If this Conlrac! exceeds $150,000. 1t applles to Federa!-uld confracis
only.)

. The Contraclor Is required.fo comply with ali opplicable siondords, orders or requiremenfs issued
under Sechion 306 of the Clean Air Ac! {42 U.S.C. 1857 [h), Section 508 of the Clean Water Acl (33
U.S.C. 1368), Execulive Crder 11738, and Environmental Prolection Agency (EPA) tegulations {40
CFR Part 15) which prohibit the use under non-exempt Federal contracts, granls or loans of
facilfies included on the EPA List of v|olchng Facliities. Violations shall be reported to the.FHWA
and to the U.S EPA Assistont Administrater for Enforc:emem .
Procurement of Recovered Materials N
In accordance with Section 6002 of the Sofid Wcsle Dlsposal Act {42U.5.C. § 6962) Stcie agencles

. and ogencies of a poiitical subdivision of a state thal are using appropriated Federal hunds for

.. procurement must procure items designated in guidelines of the Environmental Protection.

Agency (EPA) al 40 CFR-247 that coniain the highest perceniage of recovered materals
praclicable, consisten? with maintalning o satisiaciory level of compelition, where the purchase
price of the item exceeds $10,000 or 1he value of Ihe quanlity acquired in the preceding fiscal
vear exceeded $10,000; must procure salld waste management services In @ monner that
- maximizes energy and resource recovery: and must have established an affimative procurement
program for prOcuremenI of recovered materlals [dentified In the EPA guldellnes

. | Coniroclor Whr;::m:a\’};}"
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. The Conlracior shall provide immediata wiilten notice 1o the DO, al-any fime,

Exhlbit E

Federa[ 6ebarmen! and Suspension -

a. Bv slariature on this Coniroct the Canlraclor certifies its compllance and the compliance

of Ifs Sub-Conlractors, present ar fulure, by staling that any person ossociated therewith In
the capacily of owner, pariner, director, officer, princigol Inveslor project director,
manager, cmdlior, or any poslllon of authorily. mvo!ving federal funds:” .

1. Isnot currenﬂy under suspens!on debarment voluntary exclusion, or deIerm!natton of
ineligiblily by any. Federal Agency. . .

2. Doesnol have a proposed debcrmenl pend[ng.

3. Haos nof been suspended debared, voluntarlly excluded or deiermfned Inellglb!e by

any Federg! Agency within the p051 three (3) years; and

4, Hos not been Indicted, con\ncfed or had a ciljudgment rendered against the fim
by a courl of competent jurisdiction in any matter mvo!wng frcud or offcncl mlsconduci '

within the past three (3) years.

) Where ihe Conlractor ar ils Sub-Contractor ls undbla to.cerlity o Ihe sialemant in Section
a.l. above, the Confracloer orits Sub-Contractor shall be declared neligitle to enter Fnlo_

Conlraci o padicipate in ihe project.

. Where the Contracter or Sub-Conjracior is unable to cerlify fo any of the statements as

listed In Seclions a.2., a.3., or a.4., above, the Contracior or lis Sub-Contractor shall submit
a willlen explandafion lo the DOE. The certification or explonation shall be considered In
connection with the DOE's determination whether to enterinto Coniract.

the Contractor of its Sub- Contrcclor leam thal its Debarmem and Suspension

~ cerlificalion has becorne eroneous by | regson of chcnged circumsiances.

' .
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Exhibit F

Anli-lobbying

'L ‘.

The Confractor dgrées fo comply with the provisions of Section 319 of Public Law 101- 121,

" Government wide Guidance for New Resliicions on Lobbying, and 31 U.S.C. 1352, and further

agrees to have the Controcior s representalive, axecyte the tolowing Cerification:-

The Conlractar cemﬂes. by signing cnd submzll:ng this contraci, to the besi of hxsfher know1edge
dnd beligt, that: - '

" a. No federal approprialed funds have béen poid or shall be pold by or on behal! of the

undersigned, to any person for infiuencing or ailempting i influerice any officer or .~

employee of any State or Federal Agency. a Member of Congress, an officer or employee
of Congress, or an employee of @ member of Congress In connection'with the awarding
of any Federal contract, the making of any tederal grant, the making of any federat loan,
. 1he enlering Into any cooperative agreement, and the extension, continuation, renewdl

agreement.

b. iItany funds other than federally cpprophcléd funds'have been paid or shall be paid to -

any person for influencing or allempling o inffuence an officer or employee of any

Federal Agency, a Member of Congress, and officer or employee of. Congress, of an

employee of a Membaer of Congress in conneclion with thisFederat contract, grant, loan,

or cooperative agreement, the undersigned shall compléte and submit the "Disclasure of

Lobby!ng Activifies”  “form in ccccrdcmce_ with Its instructions
H .qov nis ll

+ - ¢. Thiscerfificationis a mciericl represenrqhon of fact Upon which refiance was placed when

this fronsaction wos fmadse of entered into. Submission of this ceitification Is o prerequisite

for making and enfering into this lransaction imposed By Section 1352, Title 31 and US.

Code. Any person who fails 1o file the required cerlification shall be subject 10 a civil

penally of nof less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for each such failure.

" d. The Conlracior also agrees, by slgning,lhE contract ihat it §hc1ﬂ require that the language
of this cerlification be included in subcontracls with all Sub-Coniroctor(s) and lower-lier

Sub-Coniractaors which exceed $100, 000 and that all such Sub-Contractors and lower-fier '

. Sub-Confraciars shal cerhry and disclose degordingly.

e, The DOE shal keep the fim's cerlification on flle as par of its origina! contract. The

Centractor shall keep individual cerlifications from oll Sub-Contraciors and lower-tier Sub-
Contractors on file, Cerlification shall be retained for three (3) yeaors following corripletion
and acceptance of any given project,

P
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b : Exhlbll G " .

Rights to Inventions Made Undera Contract: Copy Righls and Confldentialily

Righls to Inventlons Made Under a Contract or Agreement : . .
Contracts or agfeements tor the performanca of experimental, developmental, or research work .,
shall provide tor the rights of the Federal Government and the reciplent in any resulting invention

in accordance with 37 CFR part 401, "Righls fo Inventions Made by Nonprofit Organlzations and
sma Business Firms Under Govemmen! Granls, Conlracts and Cooperative Agreements," and

any implementing regulations lssued by the DOE.

" Any discovery of inveniion that orises during the course.of the contract shafl be repeorted to the

DOE. The Conlrdctor Is required to disclose inventions prompily {o the conlracting officer {within 2 ]

months} after the inventor discloses It in wriling 1o contraclor personnel responsible for patent ’

" matters. Thé awarding agency .shall.determine how rights in the Tnvention/djscovery shall be -
allocated consistentwith "Government Palent Poflcy" and Tille 37 C.F.R. § 401. .

Conlidentialily : .

All Writlen and ora! Information’ and materals disclosed or provided by the DOE under [his
" agreement constitules Confldential Information, regardiess of whether such information was
provided before or atter the date on this agreement or how it was provided, '

The Contraclor and representatives thereof, acknowledge thal by making use of, acquiing or
odding Yo information about matters and data reloted 1o this agreemeni, which are confidential
to tha DOE and its partners, musi remain ihe exclusive praperty of the DOE. -

Confidential Infomation means ol data and information related 1o he business and operation of..
Ihe DOE. Including but not limited fo ol school and student data conlained in NH Tille XV,
Education, Chaplers 184-200. ' ) )

Confidentiat information includes but is not limiled fo, student and school distici data, revenue -
and cost Information, the source cede for computer software and hardware products owned in -
part of in whole by the DOE, financial information, partner infermation{including ihe Idenfity of
DOE partners), Contractor.and suppller information, (inciuding the identity of DOE Contracters -
and suppllers); and any information that has been marked “confidential” or “proprietary”, ¢t with
the ke designation. During Ihe term of fhis contract the Contractor agrees to ablde by suchtules -
as moy be adopted lrom timé to time by the DOE to maintain the secuilty of all confidential
information. The Corilracior further agrees tha! it will always regord and preserve as confidential
Information/data received during the performance of this coniract. The Contrector will not use,
copy. make notes, or use excerpls of any confidential information, nor will It give. disclose, provide
access to, or ofherwise make available any confldenliafinformation to any person not ernployed

. or contracted by the DOE af subconiracted with the Contractor. * ’

‘ -
1

ownership of Intefectual Prdperty " ) .
The DOE shall retain ownership of all source data and ofher Intellectual property of the DOE
provided to the Conlracter in arder fo complete the services of this agreement. As'weil the DOE
will refain copyight ownership for-any and all materials, patents and intelectual property
produced, Including, bu! not limited to, brochures, resource direclories, protocols, guidelines,
pasters, or reports. The Contractor shall not reproduce ahy materiols for purposes other than use
for the terms under the contract without prior written approval from the DOE, :

N Coniraciot fnmqkdl‘ —
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.7 Certificate of Authority »

1, Llsabntt Solsky Stevens hereby c,ernfy that T am a duly appomtcd representative of Gramte
* State Independent Lmng I'hereby certify that Deborah Ritcey, is President & Chief Exccytive -

Officer authortzed to execute contmcts on behalf of Granite State Independent Living and may bind
the organization thereby B ) C

K

I Incre.b); certify that said 'nuthority has not t;ccln emended or rcpéalcd and remains in full i‘orce and effect
as of the date of the contract to which this cetificate is attached. This authority remains valid for thirty
(30) days 1 further certify that i it is understood that the State of New Hampshire wili rely on this cestificate
88 evidence that the person(s) listed above currently ocoupy the position(s) indicated and that they have fall
uthonty to bind the corpomtlon To the extent that there are any limits on the authority of any listed
individual to bind the corporation incontracts with the State of New Hampshire, aII such limitations are

exprcssly stated herein.

Dated: |1 %> Tw Lg | Attest Q %\W”'{L}K/

Nnme& I:ile -
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ER | Sta_te. of New Haxzhpshire .
‘ DEPartmént-of State-

]
~

CERTIFICATE - : i

N . -
-

I, David M. ‘Scanlan, Secretery of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby centify that GRANITE STATE INDEPENDENT
LIVING is a New Hampshire-Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire an J;muaiy 29, 1980.1°
further certify that all fecs and documents required by the Secretary of State’s office have been received and is in good standing as

far os this office is concerned.

"Business D: 63257
Certificate Number: 0006195416

IN-TESTIMONY WHEREOF, _

[ hereto-sct my hanci and cause to be affixed
the Seal of the Siate of New Hampshire,
this dth day of April A.D. 2023. '

David M. Scanian
Secyetary of State
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ACORD,. - CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE o P

-

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT' AFFIRMATNELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THEPOLICIES .
BELOW. THIS GERTIFICATE OF INSUWCE POES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRAC"I' BETWEEN THE ISSU!NG INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER

EMPORTANT: If the'cartificats holder Ts 6n ADDTTIONAL INSURED. tha policy(ios) must havo ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions of bo nnﬂannd
IFSUBROGATION 19'WAIVED, subject to the torms and conditions of the polley, certain policles may mqulm an andoraament Astateriont on
. this certificalo does not confaf any rights 10 tha sortificate haldor In llou of guch endorsomantis). - .

FRODUCER : .. ; v R Brenda Buck CPGU, CIC, CPIW : . .
usl Insuranca Servlces LLe S : [ETR"E, £om; B55 874-0123 ™ N
3 E:;ecutlve Park Drive, Sulte 300 . .o ENAL bronda.buck@usi.com . .
.-|Bedtord, NH 03110 _- T . _ - " DSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE ) Nac ¥
855 874-0123 . pesunen 4 ; Philadaiphia tndsmnity Insurance Co. . 18058
INSURED : - . INSURER B ; Oranito State Heslthcare & Human SveWG NONAIC
" {Granite State Independent Living . i e——— — . 7
A 21 Chanell Drive . . a7 e— : —
Concord. NH 03301 : S P !_' 7 ,
. ) ) INSURERF: . - = - 7 ) =~
COVERAGES - CERTIFICATE NUMBER s REV]S[ON NUMBER:

" THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POUCIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FORTHE PQUICY PERIOD '
INDICATED, NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDICN OF ANY CONTRACT OR QTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT, TO WHICH -TH!S
CERTIFICATE MAY. BE iSSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE PCLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TE.RMS
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

o

iﬁa - TYPE OF INSURANGE ﬁu& o POLICY NUMBER | Ry 5&'}‘9“&%5, . uums
A | X| coreERTIAL GENERAL LIABIITY i ’ nammozs 020112024 eacoccurrence _ -{31,000,000 -
T ) ewnmensoe [ X] ocown *; . : ’ o [PAMIRRIRASEES . [5100,000
|| . ) ‘ MED EXP [Any one persen) | $5,000
HE - v . .- | perscwas s aovenury 31,000,000
| GENL AGGREGATE UMIT APPLIES PER: ) . GENERAL AGOREGATE 53,600,000
|| pouey D JECT E Lo - _ | PRODUCTS - COVPIOP AGD 53,060,000
GTHER: . [}
A | AuTouoBRE LiABLITY . ] D2/0172023|02/01/2024) o oo e LAY |04 000,000
X| are arro : : - BODILY MIVAY (Per parsen) {6°
|| oy SCHEOULED . : | BODILY NAURY (par ecriden) | §
| X Aoy [X RS0 | . S e |
S| A | x| uwsRELALIAB | X | occur - i 02/01/202302/01/2024] 2acH occurRENce “{$5,000,000
EXCESS UAB CLAIMSMADE AGGREGATE 45,000,000
peo | X| reTeaions$10K . . : : $ . ’
B R o w1 i 0170112023|01/04/2024 X I8, [ [SHH] .

" | AT PROPRIETORT. EWWE NIA ) et eacuaccoent - 131,000,600
(Mandxtony th HH) L . EL. DISEASE - £ EMPLOYEE| $1,000,000 °
w&mpmnmsbm ; : [ &1, DisEAgE - PonEY un | 51,000,000,

A (Profossiona! . g . 02101/202302/01/2024 $1,000,000 Ee. Incident '
Liability L v $3,000,000 Aggragatoe

DESCRIFTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS ] VEMICLES [ACORD 101, Mdn’.'eﬂ.l.l ‘Remarns Sd'uduh. may be etisched If mors spaca Is requlred}
Additional Insured Status Is Provided When Required By.Contract with respect to the Commerclal Gengral
Liability -

. [ .

Evidence of Insurance’

CERTIFICATE HOLOER CANCELLATION ~

Nhed o ' SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRINED POLIGIES BE GANCELLED HEFORE

. THE EXPIRATION DATE YHEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN'

25 Rell Strest ACCORDJ\NCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS. -

Concard, NH 03301
- . Aumogxzsu REPRESENTATIVE

1 : : 9? -~ 9""17
. © 1938-2015 ACORD CORFORAT!ON. Al Hghts reserved.

ACORD 25.(201 B/G3) - ' 4 of1 The ACORD name ard logo are mglslaud marks of ACORD
. . ¥538084605/M38939947 . K SAFZR



.. Concord Maia Office
) .21 Chenell Drive
Cooord, MH 03301

800.826.3700°
603,225.3304 {fax}
wwsv.gsilorg.
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Mission Statément - -

"

- . Granite State Independent Living (GSIL) is a
statewide nonprofit organization whose mission is to
* promote quality of life with independence for people
with disabilities through advocacy, information,

' educatlon support and transition services. -

603.228.9580 °
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INDEPENDENT AUD]T(.)RS'- REPORT" PROFSSIONA, ASSICLATON

CERTIEIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANIS
 WOLFEBORO » NORTH CU‘:'W.\Y_

. DOVER * CONCORD -
To the Board of Birectors of STRATHAM

' . Granite State Independent Living

.*'We have audited the accompanylng financial statements ‘of Granite State Independent Living
{a New Hampshire nonprofit organization), which ‘comprise the statement of financial position’

. as of September'BO 2021, and-the related statement of activities and statement of functional '

~ expenses for the year then ended, and the statement of cash flows for the’ years ended.
September 30, 2021 and 2020 and the related notes to the financial statements.

* - Management's Responsiblllty for the Financiai Statemenbs

Management -is responsibie for the preparahon and fair presentatlon of these financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
Ameérica; this' includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant
to the preparation and fair presentation of financial slatements that are free from malerial
misstaternent, whether due fo fraud or error.

Auditors' Responsibility

. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial stalements based on our audits.
We conducted our audits in-accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the.
lUmted States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Governmernit Audifing Standards; issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.
.Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits lo oblain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free from materlal mlsstatement

An audit involves performzng ‘procedures to obtaln audit emdence about the amounts and .

disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors'
. judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant. to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the

financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are .appropriate in the -
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the -

entity's internal control: Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also inciudes
. evaluating the. appropriateness of accounting policies used and' the Teasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
g presentatlon of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and approprlate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion. :

e - L Leone-
e s McDonnel]
' - ' & Roberts



>, Opinion . . : g

-‘a

I our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, -
the financial position of Granite State Independent Living- as of September 30, 2021, and thé
changes in Its net assets and Its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Report on Summarized qupara_-ﬁ've Information

We - have previously audited- Granite State Indépendent Living's financial statements as of

. September 30, 2020, and we expressed an unmodified audit opinion on those audited financial
* -gtatéments in our report dale January 31, 2021, In our opinion, the summarized comparative

information presented herein as of and for the year ended September 30, 2020, is consistent, in

" all material respects, with-the audited financial statements from which it has been derived.

Other Information | _ Lo

" Our audit was. conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as

a whole. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as required by Title 2

. U.S. Cods of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Faderal Awards is presented for purposes of additionat -

analysis and is not a required part of the financial statements. Such information is the’
responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the financial stalements. The information has
been subjected fo the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial staterhents and
certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to
the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the
financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is

-fairly stated, in all material respects, in refation to the financial statements as a whole.

Other Rep’qrﬁing Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance wWith Government Audiling Standards, we have also issuéd our re{nor’t dated”

. December 23, 2022 on our consideration of Granite State Independent Living’s internal control -

over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, |
regulations, contracls, and grant agreements and other malters. The purpose of that report is
to describe the scope of our testing of internal contro! over financial reporting and comptiance

. and the results of that testing, and nat to provide an opinion on internal contiol over financial
* reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral pait of an audit performed in accordance

with Government Auditing Standards In considering Granits State independent Living's internal -
contro] over ﬁpancial reporting and compliance. .

| ione TYlehonnett & Robente Prwg,omm,& Oeaceiation

. Dover, New Hampshire
Decernber 23, 2022
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

.

. SEPTEMBER 30, 2021 . .
VITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS AS OFf SEPTENBER 10, 2020}
. e, K 0 ' - -
» " + 1021 -
T Without Dends  With Donior, 2020
. Ragtrictions Bastdetlons IOTAL TOTAL

§ 2785288 S 309iE S 2897,201 . § 4692672
34381 - . 3451 CEL]
3876,814. - 876814 ° ¢ 1702468
74, - 74 66 126,558
. 6,771,620 0,512 8802832 - 6,528,080

) 869,783 197,787 1.167.570 1025215
4 705,718 . 705718 B65.857
. T 1475484 197767 1,873,286 4,891,182
. s 8447419 § 298893 5 BEIENE 5 6519262

. .
ILITES AND 5 :

PEERTTY B . § Haze1 8 BESI
47083 . 470,383 053,137
41743 - 47,743 208,118
o . 29808 . 208,018 347,409
} . - 7.288
! 930,415 . 230,435 1.780.491
oL 1516984 . 7516854 8,518,342
) Yo 30912 30,912 M,042
. 187,707 197,787 - 185,487
: 7516984 228,809 7745653 6,745,771

- §  HA4TAYY § 22WESY S BE76I18. § 6519362 °
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L STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES
: FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 10, 2021

4 .

. {WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR THE YEAR ENOED SEPTEMBER 30, 2020) - '
L o L 20m
v . - " Without Danor With Denor 2020
* ' " . . Resicictiops Bestrictlons Joial Total
- REVENUE AND SUPPORT ~ T . )
Granls . b S 3734305 $ 3483 ‘S 3737768 § 4217915
+ Public eupport - . . eg02 1300 122 * 80, M7
. Special avents, rot 62,574 . 82,574 . 59,388
" i Program foes, net- 14.604.940 - 14,504,545 15,058,022
g Inlgras), nel ' . 621 - 821 5,229
. . Mscellanaous . 22468 - 22465 | 4,239
' Gain (loss) an iale of property {28,241} . (26.241) 17.200
Imvestmen! income, net 135,825 . 135,625 - 43,712
" fist assats retesssd fom restriclons . 7403 {7483 . .
Total rz;vénua and support Lo 18,850,684 (2.730) 18,847,854 19;481,623
. EXPENSES ) v o
Program Sorvices tos ’ . . .
Long-enm cam’ 12,239,587 - 12,238,537 12,301,043
Communlty Econamic Development . 3,076,837 - 3,078,037 3,178,095 |
REM ) 100366 - 100,886 -
Total pmg;-'am services 15417280 . - 15'.4 '?.290 15.479.139
Supparting Services . :
Genergl and Adminisimive . . 1LBasN - 1,033,521 3,184,563
Fundraising . . 2N - 301231 105178
Tolal'supporting services 2.234.752 L 2234752, 3280730
Tota! expenses : 17,852,042 - - * 17,852,042 18,780,878
CHANGE IN NEY ASSETS . 998,642 730 | 995912 712,745
NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR : ' 8,518,342 231,426 6.749.77{ 6.037,026
.NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR . $ 7516984 § 228890 3 7.745.683 $ 8740771
P -
| . p :
: See Notes to Financlal Statements
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- STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS'
EOB THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2021 AND 2020

“

.o R 2021 . 2020 -
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES . A

Changa In netassels - ' : _ © 0§ 995812 §  T12,745
Adjustments to reconcile change In net assets to net S
cash ang restricied cash from operaljng actlvmes ’ .

Deprecfation . : 171,809 21.9.819'
{Galn) loss on sale of property : . 28241 . {17.200)
Realized (galn) loas on Invaestments . (34,344) 21,706
Unrealized (gain) loss eninvesiments - (88.477) - . (49,672)
Restricted contributions c (1,300 (845)
{Increase) decrease in assets: ‘
Accounts recelvable _ (2,174,348) - (197.173
Frepald expense 51,880 233,710
Incraase (decrease) in liahilitias )
Actounts payabls * . (171,250) 188,664
Accrued payroll and related Hab'lxtzes . (482,754) 143,287
Acgrued expenses (156.373; {73,874}
Deferred revenue - - {19,391 166,350
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN) OPERATING ACTMTI_ES {1,882 285) 1.347..357
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
. Sales (purchasas) of investments, net {19,434) 7,237
Procseds from sale of property . 129,804 " 17.200
Purchase of property and equipment . . § ) (69,603} {218,178
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (U§ED iN) INVESTING ACTIVITIES . 40,53‘? {193,741)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES o
Proceeds from restricted contributions e . 1,300 845
Paymenls of cantracts payable , (7.288) (7 ,950)
" NET.CASHUSEDIN FINANCING ACTIVITIES (5.988) (7,105)
NEY GHANGE [N CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS AND RESTRICTED CASH ' _(1,847,708) 1,146,511
CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS AND RESTRICTED CASH, BEGINNING OF YEAR 4,698,058 3,552 547
CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS AND RESTRICTED CASH, END OF YEAR $ 2851352 §$ 4699058

See Notes to Financial Statemer{ts



GRANITE STATE INDEPENDENT LIVING. ., SR

NOTES'TO FINANGIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2021 AND 2020

ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Granite State Independent Living (the Organization) is a New Hampshire nonprofit
. corporation providing a wide range of services to improve the quality of life for.individuals
with disabililies in New Hampshire. This is accomplished through ensuring the availability
of a broad range of services, advacacy efforts, ant the éstablishment of sodial support.
The Organization Impacls lives through two primary service areas: ' .

Long-Terrh Care Program. The Organization offers a variety of personal care service
ptograms based on eligibility. Personal care attendants provide nan-medical, hands-on
.assistance with -activities of daily living for seniors. and adults’ living with. disabllities. A
.personal care worker helps individuals bathe, dress, eat, and navigate a range of other
daily tasks. In" addition to. providing assistance with activities of daily living, persona care
workers can assist with "housekeeping chores; meal preparation, and medication
management. Personal care services can be delivered in either a private home, residential
caresefting, or an_individual's place of employment. The Organization also provides
nursing facility transition'services.

Community Economic Development Program. The Organization is committed. to -
assisting seniars and consumers with disabilities so they can function well within their
communlty and pursue personal goals, whether through employment or earning academic
credit through youth transition programs: Options are discussed through a call to-
information & Referral Program Service Coordinators, who help individuals set their goals.
Services provided can include benefit planning, transportation, ASL referral, peer support, -
and access modification. Additiona! services offered may include placement, job coaching,
and employment through the Ticket to Work Program. :

Basis of Accounting
The .accompanying financial statements have been prepared on the accrudl basis of
accounting. ' ) ' '

3

Basis of Presentation

The financial statements of the Organization have been prepared in accordance with U.S..
generally accepted accounting principles (US GAAP), which require the Organization ‘to’
report information regarding its financial position and activities according to the following
. net asset classifications:

Net assets without donor restrictions — Net assets that are not subject-to donor-imposed
restrictions .and may be expended for any purpose in performing the primary objectives of
the Organization. These net assets may be used at the discretion the Organization’s
" management and board of directors. o ’
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GRANITE STATE INDEPENDENTLIVING . '~ -

e NOTES TO FINANGIAL STATEMENTS
.- - FORTHE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER:30, 2021 AND 2020

ot

Net:assets wilh donor restrictions — Net assets subject to.stipulations imposed by denors
and grantors. Some donor restrictions are.temporary in nature; those restrictions will be
.met by actiéns of the Organization or by passage of time, Other donor restrictions are
perpelual in nature, whereby the donor has stiputated the funds be maintained in.
perpetuity. ’ ' :

. Donor_restricted contributions are reported as increases In net assets: with -donor
restriclions. When restriction expires, net assets are reclassified from net assets with -
~ donor restrictions to net assets without doner restrictions in the statement of activities.

. As of September 30, 2021 and 2020, there were donor restricted net assets of $228,699
and $231,429, respeclively. , g A

Cash and Cash Equivalents _ e
All cash and highly liquid financial instruments with original maturities of three months or

less, and which are neither held- for nor restricted by dénors for long-term purposes, are
considerad to be ‘cash and cash equivalents. Cash and highly fiquid financiatl instruments

_ restricted for permanent endowment or-other fong-term purposes are ekcluded from this
definition.
The following table provides a reconciliation of cash and restricted cash reported within -~
the statement of financial position that sum to the total in-the statements of-cash flows
as of September 30, and is comprised of the foliowing components:

2021 2020
_ Ceshand cash equivalents $ 2,817,201 $ 4592672
Restricted cash _ 34151 __- 6388
Totalcash” - , | § 2851350 $.4800058

_ Accounts Receivable . .

Accounts receivable consist primarily of noninterest-bearing accounts due fof services
and programs. The allowance for uncollectible accounis recelvable is based on
historical experience, an assessment of economic conditions and a feview of
subsequent collections. Accounts receivable are written off when deemed uncollectible.

-Revenue and Reveriue Recognhition , -
Revenue is recognized when eamed. Program service fees and payments under cost-

reimbursement contracts recelved iri advance are deferred to the applicable period in .
which the related services are performed or expenditures are incurred, respectively.
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. NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS |
FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2021 AND-2020

Jnvestmants : : ” .
The Organization carries’ mvestmenls in-marketable securities with readily determlnable

 fair values and all investments in debt securities at their fair values in the Statement of
Financial Position. Unrealized gains and losses are included in the change in net assets
In the accompanying Statement of Activities. o . ' S

Prngem and DeEraclahon !

Properly and Equipment -additions’ over $1,000 are, recorded al cost, if purchased or if
donated, at estimated fair value on the date recewed Material assets with a'useful life in
.excess of one year are capitalized. Deprematlon is provided for using 1he straight-line
method over the estimated usefui lives of the related assets ds follows, or inthe case of
capltalized leased assets or leasehold mprovements the lesser of the useful life or the
asset or the lease term:

Buildings ' 40 years
Leasehold improvements : 5 to 40 years
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 3toSyears |
Vehicles : S5years’

Gosts for repairs’ and maintenance are ‘expensed when incurred and betterments are
capitalized. Assets sold or otherwise disposed of are removed from the accounts, along
with the related accumulated depreciation and any gain or loss is recoghized.

The carrying values of property and equipment are rewewed for impaimment whenever
‘events or circumstances indicate that the carrying value of an asset may not be
recoverable from the estimated future cash flows expected to result for its use and
. eventual disposition. When considered impaired, an impairment loss is recognized to the
extent carrying value éxceeds the fair value of the asset. There were no indicators of asset
Impairment for the years ended September 30, 2021 and 2020,

B

Fair Value of Financial lnstruments
Accounting Standards Codification No. 825 (ASC 829), Disclosures of Fair Value of °
Financial Instruments, requirés the Organization to disclose fair values for its financial
instruments. The Organization’s. financial instruments consist of cash ard cash
equivalents, restricted cash, accounts receivable, prepaid expenses, accounts payable,
accrued payroll and related liabilities, accrued expenses and deferred revenue. The

canying value for all such instruments, considering the terms, approximates fair value at .

September 30, 2021 and 2020. The fair values of investments are measured using a fair
value hierarchy, which prioritizes the inputs used in measuring falr values (see.. Note E
10).



GRAN&TE STATE INDEPENDENT LIVING . ‘

NDTES TOFINANGIAL STATEMENTS L _—
* FOR THE YE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30L2021 AND 2020 "

Gontributlons

* Confributions are recognized when received. All confributions, are reported as increases in
" . net assets wiihout donor restrictions unless use of thé contributed asset is specﬁ' cally -
restricted by the donor. Amounts received that are festicted by the donor {o use in-future
periods or for specific purposes are reported as increases in net assets with donor
restrictions. Unconditional promises Wllh payments due in future yedrs have an implied
restriction to be used In the year the payment is due and, therefore are reported as net
assets.with donor restrictions untit the payment is due unless the contribution is c{eady
intended .ta support activilies of the current fiscal year. Conditional promises such as
matching grants are not recogmzed until they become unconditional, that 15 until all
conditions’on whtch they depend are subs!anllally met.

Glfts-in-Kmd Gontrlbuticms

The Organization periodically” receives contributions in @ form other than cash or
investmenfs. Contributed property angd equipment is recognized as an- asset at its
estimated fair value at the date of gift, provided that the value of the asset and its
estimated useful life meets the Organization's capitalization policy. Donated use of
facilities Is reported as contribitions and as expenses at the estimated fair value of similar
space for rent under simitar conditions. if tie use of the space is promised unconditionatly
for a period greater than one year, the amiount is reported as_a contribution and an
.unconditional promise to give at the date of gifi, and the expense is reported over the term,
of use. Donated supplies are recorded as contributions at the date-of gift and as expenses
when the donated #tems are placed into service or dlstnbuled

The Orgamzat:on benefits from personal serwces provided by a- substant:al number of

volunteers, Those volunteers haye donated signif icant amounts of time and services in the

Organization's program operations and in its fundraising campaigns. However, the

majority of the contributed services da not mest the criteria for-recognition in the financial
* statements. Generally Accepted Accounting Principles allow recognition of. contributed

services only if (a) the services crealé or enhance nonfinancial assets or (b) the services

would have beer purchased if not provided by contribution, require specialized skills, and
- are provided by individuals possessing those skills,

Grant Revenue

Grant revenue is recognized when qua[:fymg costs are mcurred for cost-relmbursement
grants or contracts or when a unit of setvice is provided for performance grants. Grant
revenue. from federal agencies is subject to independent audit under the Office of
Management and Budget's, Uniform Guidance, and review by grantor agencies: The
review could result in the disaliowance of expenditures upder the terms of the grant or
reductions of future grant funds. Based on prior experience, the Organization's
management beligves that costs ullimately dlsallowed if any, would not materially affect
the financlal position of the Organization.

o



GRANITE STATE INDEPENDENT LIVING

. NOTES TO FINANGIAL STATEMENTS .-
FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2021 AND 2020

Summarlzed Flnancial Information .

The financial statements include certain prior-year summanzed comparative information in
total-bit not by nef. asset class. Such information does not include. sufficient detail to
constitute a presentatron in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America. Accordingly, such. irformation should be read in conjunction
with the Organization’s financial statements for the year ended September 30, 2020, from
which the summarized mforrnatron was derived.

Accrued Eamed Time .

The Orgamzatron has accrued a liability for future compensated leave trme lhat its -
employees have earned-and which is vested with the employee. Accrued eamed time
amounted to $169 ?33 and $190,007 at September 30, 2021 and 2020, respectwely

Advert:lslng Costs
- Advertising_costs are expensed as incurred and are reporied in the Statement of Actwrlres
and Statement of Functional Expenses .

Income Taxes '
The Organization is exempt from iricome taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of tha ihnternal
Revenue Code and qualifies for charitable contributions - deductions.” .The Intemal
Revenuse Service has determined the ‘Organization to be other than a private foundation
within the meaning of Section 501(a).

The Orgamzat]on is required to filte a Retumn of Organization Exempt from Income Taxes
. (Form 890) with the IRS. In addition, the- Organization is subject to income tax on net
" income that is derived from business activities that are unrelated to its exempt purpose. Ip -
fiscal year 2021, the Organization was not subject to unrelated business income tax and
- did not file an Exempt Organlzatron Business Income Tax Return (Form 990-T) with the
IRS.

Management has evaluated the Organization's tax. positions and concluded that the -
Organization has maintalned its tax-exémpt status and has taken no uncerain' tax
positions that would require adjustment to the financial statements. The Organizatron is
subject to income tax examrnatrons by the United Stales Federal or State tax authorities
for three years

Estimates )
The preparation of the ﬁnanolal statements in conformrty with Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles requires estimates and assumplions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabifities and disclosurg of contingent assets and liabilities at the.
date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of reveriues and expenses
" during the reporting period. Actual resufls could differ from those estimates; and those
drﬁerences could be material.

11



GRANITE STATE INDEPENDENT LIVING

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS -
FOR THE YEARS END ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2021 AND 0

. Eunctional Allocat:on of Exnenses .

" The cosls of providing the various services and other aclivities have been summarized on’
a funclional basis. Natural expenses are defined by their nature, such' as salaries; rent,
- supplies, etc. Functional expenses are classified by the lype of activity for which expenses .
are incurred, such as management-and generai and- direct program costs. Expenses are
allocated by function using & feasonable and consistent approach that is. pimarily based
on function -and use. Expenses that relate solely to the functional categories are directly
charged, however, there are certain’ expenses that are allocated. Personnel expenses,
including. salaries and wages, employee benefits, and’ payroll taxes, are allocated based
‘on time and effori estimates. Bunldmg occupancy costs are allocated on a square footage
basis. '

Er

Financial Instruments and Credit Risk . ,

** Deposit concentration risk is managed by placing cash with financial institutions believed
to be creditworthy. At times, amounts on-deposit may exceed insured limits or include
uninsured ihvestment in money market funds. To date, no losses have been experienced
in.any of these accolnts. Gredit risk associated with receivables s considered to be limijted .

_due.to high historical collection rates and because substantial portions: of the outstandmg .
amounts are due from govemmental agencies supportive of the Organization's mission.

. Investments are made by diversified investmenl managers whose performance is

monitéred by the Flscal Committee of the Board of Directors. Although'the fair values of -
investments are subject to fluctuation on a year fo year basis, the Fiscal Committee

believes that the investment poticies and guidelines are prudent for the Iong-len‘n welfare

. of the Organization. : ‘

New Accounﬂnq Pronouncemegts . )

In May 2014, FASB issued ASU 2014-09 (Top:c 806) Revenue from Contracts with
Customers, The ASU and all subsequenlly issued clarifying ASUs replaced the existing
tevenue recognition guidance in U.S. GAAP. The ASU also requires expanded -
disclosures relating to the nature, amount, timing, and uncertainty of revenue from cash
flows arising from conltracts with tustomers. The Organization adopted the new
standard effective October 1, 2020, the first day-of the Organization’s fiscal year using
the modified retrospective’ approach. The adopllon did not result in a change to the
accounling for any of the applicable revenue stréams; as such, no cumulattve effect

"adjustment was recorded.

Revenue Recognition Pollc}g -

" The Organization derives revenue primarily from services provided to their clients.
Service rovenue is teported at the amount that reflects consideration to which the
Organization expecls to be entitled in exchange for praviding setvices. These amounts
.are due from clients and third-party payers Revenue is reoogmzed as performance
obligations are satisfied. ’

. .’12



‘GRANITE STATE INDEPENDENT LIVING o

_ NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED SE_PTEMBER 30, 2021 AND 2020

"

Performance obllgahons are deiermtned based on the nature of-the services proyided
by the Organlzatron and, the contract with fhe cllent or thlrd-pariy and are satlsf ed when .
the service 1s performed.

The Orgamzatmn determines the transaction price based on standard charges for
goods and services provided as well as the state contract rate with third-party payers.

Performance Obhqat:ons and Contracts Assets and Liab”lties

The performance obligations related-to the services provided for the Orgamzataon are
satisfied at a paint in time. Revenue from performance obligations satisfied at a point in
time consist of contracts with the client or third-party. Contract liabilittes at September

y 30, 2021 and 2020 were $298,018 and $317 409 respectively.

) LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY S .
The following represents the Org: Organization's fi nanclal assets as of Sepiember 30:

L

. . . 2021 2020
Financial assets at year end: . :
Cash and cash equivalents $ 2,817,201 $ 4,692,672
. Accounts receivable, net . 3,876,814 1,702,466
Investments 1.167.570 1,025,315
Total financial assets 7861585 . 7.420453 |
Less amounts not available to be used
within one year: s
Net assets with donor restrictions:
Time and purpose restrictions not expected
to be met in less than one year . -(30,912) (34,942)
Perpetual endowment. (197.787) - {196.487)°
Total amount not available within one year __ (228,699) ) (231,429} -

Financlal assets available to meet general - -

- expenditures over the next twelve months $ 7632886 § 7180024

Endowment fundé consist of donor-restricted endowments. Income from donor-restricted
endowments is available for general us¢. The portion of endowment funds that are
perpetual in nature are not available for general expenditure.

4
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GRANITE STATE INDEPENDENT LIVING

"NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS .
. FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTENBER 30, 2021 AND 2020

The Organization regularly monitors hquudnty requsred to mest lts operating needs and

other contractual commitments, while also striving lo maximize_ the investment of its .
available funds. In addition to financial assets available to meet general expenditures over
the next year, the Orgamzatton operates with a balanced budget and anticipates collecting

sufficlent revenue to cover general expenditures not covered by. donor—restncted
resources. .

As part of the liquidity management plan, the Organization also has a $1 000,000
revolvmg line of credit avallable {0 meet cash flow needs, See Note 7.

RESTRIGTED CASH -
The Organization is the fiscal sponsor for Transport NH an advocacy. orgamzatton.
currently seeking exempt status as an organization described in IRC Section 501(c)(3).

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE - .
Accounts receivable consist of the following at September 30, 2021:
Accounts .
Recelvable Allowance Net |
‘Medicaid - - 936400 $ - $ 936400
Title VI - - 37,471 - 37171
Other 2973488 . (70243) 2,903 243
Total - © $.3947057 & (70243 §_3876814
- Accounts re'cel\gable consist of the following at September 30, 2020:
. Recelvable Allowance °  Nest
Medicald . <% 774234 § - § 774234
Other ‘ 965725 (37,493) _- 928,232
Total $£.1730959 § (374030 § 1702466

- 14
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" GRANITE STATE INDERENDENT LIVING

' . NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS |
FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2021 AND 2020

INVESTMENTS
The fo!lowmg isa summary of investments al September 30: '

- 2021 . .

‘ . Unrealized

Falr Value - Cost Gain {Loss)

‘Exchange-traded funds - § 136074 $ 93306 § 42,768

Mutual funds = 195,627 155,278 ~ 40,349
U.S. Treasury obligations . 98,159 100,000 (841)

U.S. Gorporate bonds ~ ~ : 441,230 439,010.- 2220

Converfible bonds ~  ~ , 20,205 20812 (607)

- 1J.8. Commion stock 275,275 190,500 84775,

Towl S1167570 § 998906  § 168664

2020 »

. ~ “Unrealized

o FairValue = Cost =~ Gain(Loss})

Exchange-traded funds $ 120524 $ 115405 § 5119

Mutual funds ' . - 167,172 144,129 23,043

. U.8. Treasury obligations : 95,264 95,125 139

us. Corporate bonds ) 309,202 - 389,572 9,630

U.S, Common stock o 243,153 202,317 40836

Total $1025315 § 946548 § 78767

interest rate risk is the risk that changes. in the marke! interest rates will adversely affect
the fai valug of'an investment. Generally, the Ionger the maturity .of the investment, the
greater the senslbwty of its fair value to changes in market interest rates.

The Orgamzatlons investment. pohcy slates that not more than 10% (at cosf) of the )
investment portfolio may be invested in the securities of any one issue, with the exception

. of the U.S. Government or lts- agencies. The maximum amount invested in the securities. of
issuers in the same industry shall not be more than 25% (at cost) of the portfoho
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. Components of im)estmént return:

GRANITE 'STATE' IN.DEPENDENT LIVING

.NOTESTO FINANCIAL STATENIENTS :
FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30 2021 AND 2020._"

.. 2021 i 2020

Irterest and dividénds $ - 24942 § 28570
‘Investment fees ' - (12,138) . {10,823)
Galn — unreaiized . .~ BBATY 49672 .
Gain (loss) —realized . 34,344 {21,706}

Totalinvestment return - - $ 135,625 $ . 43713

PROPERTY, EQUIPMENT AND DEPRECIATION
Propelty eqmpment ent, and vehicles ct consusted of the followmg as of September 30:

2021 2020

Land ‘ o 8§ 69198 $ 69,198
Buildings and improvements’ . : 1,171,061 1,473,974
" Furniture, fixtures; and equipment 1,045,689 1,045,689
Work in Process 54,254 -
‘Vehicles ' ' S _ 632525 632,625
. : 2,972,727 3,221,388
Less accumulated depreciation L ‘ (2,267.01 1) (2255519
Property and equipment, et ' . ;@mmm §_E§§,.§§I
. Depreciation expense for the years ended September 30, 2021 and 2020 was $171 909
and $21 9 61 8 respecuvely
BANK LINE OF CREDIT

“The - Organization has a $1,000,000 revolving line of credit agreement with a bank,

secured by all assets. Borrowings under the line bear interest at the bank’s LIBOR

Advantage rate plus 3.50%, with a floor of 5.00%, adjusted monthly. Intereést only

payments are requlred monthlyr with the principal payable on demand, At September 30,
2021 and 2020, the Organization had no outstanding balance-on the line of credit and did

rmt draw on the line during fiscal year 2021.

CONTRACTS PAYABLE

-During fiscal year 2016 the Organization entered into a lease agreement for a new

Nashua  office Iocahqn The Organization was -required to make leasehold -
improvements which were_paid in full by thg lessor. As parl of the terms of the

16
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agreement the Orgamzatfon is requnred to pay the ]essor $663 per month in addition to

thie base rent, for the improvements performed by the lessor. At September 30, 2020 ° s

the outstanding balance was $7, 288 ‘The balance was pald in full dunng the year ended
September 30, 2021 .

ENDOWMENI FUNDS
The Organlzation’s endowment consists of individual funds estabhshed by donars o

provide funding for specific activities and general operations. New Assets ‘associated
with endowment funds are classified and reported based on the -exislence or absence of
donor—imposed restrlctlons .
The Board of Dlrectors has mterpreted the New Hampshire Uniform Prudent
Management of Institutional Funds Act (UPMIFA) as requiring the preservation of the
fair value of the-original gift as of the gift date of the donor-restricted.endowment funds,
- unless there are explicit donor stipulations to the contrary. At September 30, 2021, there
were.no such donor stipulations. As a result of this interpretation, net assets with donor
restrictions are classified as (a) the ~original value of gifts donated to the endowment, (b)
the original value of subsequent gifts donated to the endowment {including cantributions
" recaivable net of discount and allowance for doubtful accounts), and (c) accumulations
_to the endowment made in accordance with the direction of the applicable donor gift
instrument at the time the accumulation is added. Donor resiricted amounts not fetained -
in perpetuily are subject to appropriation for expendlture by the Organization in a
manner consistent with the standard of prudence prescribed by UPMIFA. The following
factors were considered in making a determination to.appropriate or accumuiate donor-
restricted endowment funds: - . ‘
The durat!on and preservatlon of the fund.
' The purpases of the Organizafion and the donor-reslncted endowment fund
General economic conditions.
The possible, effect of mﬂahon and deﬂahon :
_The expected totat return from inceme and the appreciation of mvestments
Other resources of the Organization.
The tnvestment policies of the Organization.

ooonin,o

Investment and Spending Policies ]

The Organization has adopted investment and spending policies for the
investment . funds that attempt to provide a predictable stream of funding for -
operations while seeking to maintain the purchasing power of the investment
assets. Over fime, Jong, term rates’ of return should be equal to” an’ amount
sufficient to maintain the purchasing power of the investment assets, to provide
the necessary capital to fund the spending policy, and to cover the costs of
managing the investment funds. The target minimum rate of return is the .
Consumer Price Index plus 5% on an annual basis. Actual returns in any given

A7



GRANITE STATE INDEPENDEI\IT LIVING

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2021 AND 2020

- year may vary from this amount. To satlsfy this’ Iong-term rate-of-return objective, -
the investment.portfolio is structured on’ a total-return approach thréugh which
investment retirns are achieved through both capital appreciation (realized and
unrealized) and current yield (interest and.dividends). A significant portion of the
funds “are invested to seek growth of principal over time or unless the
Organizatlon-needs to access for immediate need, with Board approval.

_ The investment fund spending-rale formula is used lo determing the maximum
amount to spend from the investment fund edch year. The rate, determined and .
adjusted from time to time by the Board of Directors, is applied to the average fair
value of the Investment fund investments for the prior 12 quarters at December
31 of each year to determine the spending amount for the upcoming year. In
- establishing: this policy, the long-term expected return on the investment fund
was considered, thie rate set with the objective of maintaining the purchasmg
power of the Investment fund over time.

Funds with Deficlencles
‘Due to market conditions, the fair value of assets associated with individual donor
“restricted endowment funds may fall below the level that the donor or UPWMIFA
requires the Organization to retain as a fund of perpetual duration. There ware no
deﬂciencles at September 30, 2021 and 2020.

Changes 1n endowment net assets for the year ended September 30, 2021 are as
follows: | . :

Perpetual -

4" Endowment

Endowmenlnet assels, begmmng of year . $ 196,487
Contributions : 1,300
Endowment nel asseats, end of year - $ 197787

Changes in endowment net assets for the year ended September 30, 2020 are'as
follows:

Perpetual

Endowment
Endowment nat assets, beginning of year $§ 195642
Contributions , o 845
Endowment net assets, end of year 5196487
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" _NOTES TO FINANGIAL STATEWENTS .
FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2021 AND 2020~ .

#

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS
FASB Accounling Standard Codification 820 “Fair Value Measurements" prowdes a

- definition of fair value which focuses on an exit price rather than an entry, price,
_establishes a framework In generally accepted accounting principles:for measuring fair
wvalue which emphasizes that fair value is a markéi-based measurement, not an entity-

specific measurement, -and requires expanded disclosures about fair “value
measuréments. In accordance with FASB ASC 820, the Organization may use valuation
techniques consistent with market; income aid cost approaches to measure fair value.
As a basis for considering market participant assumptions in fair value measurements

ASC Top:c 820 eslablishes a fair value hierarchy,. which prioritizes the: inputs .used In
measuring fair values. The hlerarchy gives the highest priority of Level 1 measurements
and the lowest priotity to Level 3 measurements. The three levels of the fair value
hierarchy under ASC Topic 820 are described as foliows

Level 1 - inputs to valuation methodology are quoted prices avallabie in actlve
markets for |denl|cal investments as of the reportmg date

Level 2 - Inputs Yo the valuation methodology are other than quoted market
prices In active markets, which are either directly or indirectly observable as of

the reporting date, and fair value can be determined through the use of models or
. other valuation methodaologies.

Level 3 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are unobservable inputs ‘in

. sltuations where there is little or no markst activity for the asset or liability and the
reporting entlty makes estimates and assumptions related to the pncmg of the
asset or liability intluding assumptnons regardmg risk.

The following is & descnptmn of the valuation methodologies used for assets at fair
value. There have been no changes in the methodologies used at September 30, 2021.

Government oblfigations: Valued using pricing models maximizing the use of
obsefvab!e inputs for similar securities. -

Non-govemment obhgabons Consist of corporate bonds that are valued using
pricing models maximizing the use of observable inputs for similar securities.

This includes-basing-value on yields currently available on comparab!e securities
of issuers with similar credit ratings.

Common stocks: Valued at the clostng market price on the stock exchange
where they are traded (primarily the New York Stock Exchange).
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GRANITE STATE INDEPENDENT LIVING

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS -
FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2021 AND 2020

" Mutual funds and Exchange fraded funds: All actively traded mutual funds. and’
exchange traded funds are valued at the daily closing price as reposted by the
fund. These funds are required to publish their daily ne! asset value {NAV) and
" {o transact at that price.  All mutual funds and exchange traded funds held by the.
Organization are open-end mutual funds that are registerad: with the Secunhes
and E.xchange Commission.,

2021
Level Level 2 Level 3 Total
Exchange traded funds -~ § 136074~ § ~ % - § 136,074
Muiual funds 195,827 .- - 185,627
U.S. Treasury obligations - 89,159 - 89,159
U.8. Corporate bonds - 441230 - 441,230
Convertible bonds. - 20,205 . 20,205
U.8. Common stock 275,275 " - __ 275275
Total investments o £.606976 8. 5800694 B o
2020
Leveld Level 2 Level 3 JTotal
Exchange traded funds. & 120,524 § -5 % 120524
Mutual funds 167,172, - - 1871472
U.8, Treasury obligations - 05,264 - 85,264
1.8. Corporate bonds - 390,202 - 380,202

U.8. Commaon stock : 243,153 . - 243,153

“Total investments

o
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. . Net assets with donor res!r:ctmns are comprised of the following at September 30 2021
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GRANITE STATE INDEPENDENT LIVING

L . NOTES TO FINANGIAL STATEMENTS .
" FORTHE YEARSENDED SEPTENIBER 30, 2021 AND 2020

NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTION

" and 2020: ' )
. i 2021 - 2020 -
Time and purpose restricted . A L
Access modification program _ - $ 7045 % 10396
Advocacy aciw:ttes : ’ : 5,661 ) 5,881
Community economic developmenz program . 6,790 6,780
IMPACGT program 11416 12,005 -
Total time and purpose restrcted - 30,912 ) 34,942
 Perpetual endowment : 197,787 166487
Total : L:ZAQQ&Q w.é&%

Net assets were releasad from donor restricions by incurring expenses satlsﬁnng the
restricted purpose or the occusrence of the passage of ime as follows for the years ended
Septemiber 30, 2021 and 2020:

. 2021 2020
Subject to expenchture for-specified purpose _ _
. Access modification program $ 6814 $ 18,016
IMPACCT program : 679 e 221

Total time and purpese restricted $ 7,493 §._ 18237

RETIREMENT PLAN '

The Organization provides a tax-deferred annuily plan qualified under Section 403(b} of
the Intemal Revenue Code. All salaried employees working 30 or more hours a week and
are 21 ysars of age or older may participate in the plan The Organization matches up to
100% of employee contributions te the plan, to a maximum of 6% of salaries, depending -
on the years of service. The Organization contributed $92,363 and $82, 171 for the years:
ended September 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively. .

OPERATING | EASES :
The Organization leases office space under the terms of non—cancellable lease
agreements that are scheduled to expire at various times through 2024, The Organization -

~ also rents additional fadiliies on a month to month basis. Rent expense under these

agreements, which is included in building occupancy in the Statement of Functional
Expenses, totaled $190,307 and $173 090 for the years ended September 30, 2021 and
2020, fespectwely .
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* FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2021 AND 2020

.
[l
»

- The Organization also leases office equipment under mon-cancellable lease -agfeements.

that are scheduled to-expire at various times through 2022. Equipment rental expense,
which is included .in equipment lease and maintenance in the Statement of Functional
Expenses,-totaled $35,364 and $45.715 for the years ended September 30, 2021 and

© 713520, réspectively.

- Estimated future minimum Jease payments on the above leases are as follows:

Year Ending L
September 30 . Amount
2022 | $ 169,845
2023 : © 112,514
2024 o 103,368
- 2025 : ¢ 37538
. 2026 29025
Total o 5452291
CONCENTRATIONS OF RISK

* A material part of the Organization's re(renue is dependent upon government sources, the.

loss of which would have a materially adverse effect on the Organization. During the years
ended September 30, 2021 and 2020, Medicaid accounted for 72% and 70%,
respectively, of total revenues and 24% and 46%, respectively, of total accounts
receivable, The State of New Hampshire contracts.with managed care organizations to
reimburse the Organization as a provider of services rendered.-

LLONG TERM CARE STABILIZATION PROGRAM

- In response to COVID-19, in Apsil 2020, the State of New Hampshire estabiishecl-me",Long

Term Care Stabilization (LTCS) Program to provide stipends to cerlain front line Medk’:a{d
providers. The program was developed to incentivize these direct care workers to remain
in or rejoin this critical workforce and continue to provide high quality care to vulnerable

persons during the pandemic. ‘Under the program, the New Hampshire Department of

Employment Security (NHES) would distribute $300 per week in stipends to eligible full
time front fine workers and $150 per week in stipends to eligible part time front Tine
workers. The funding for the LTCS Program was provided through the Corohavirus Relief
Fund. During the year ended September 30, 2021, the Organization received grant.
revenue of $455,100 and expended $455,100 under the grant through payrall and fees for

‘service. During the vear ended September 30, 2020, the Organization received grant

revenue of $1,123,800 and expended $1,123,800 under the grant through payroll and fees
for service. - -
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. to enhance comparablhty wrth the current year's financial statements.
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GRANITE STATE INDEPENDENT LIVING

. NOTESTO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2021 AND 2020

RECLASS!FICATION ) - " :
. Certain amounts and accounts from the prior years financial statements were reclassmed

A s

OTHER MATTERS )
The impact of the novel coronavirus (COVID-19) and measures to prevent its spread are

- affecting the Organization. The significance of the impact of these d:smptlons tncludmg
- the extent of thelr adverse.impact on the Organization's financial and oparahona| results,

will be dictated by the length of time that such distuplions continue and, in turn, will
depend on the currently unknowable duration of the COVID-19 pandemic and the impact
of governmental requlations that might be imposed in response to the pandemic. As of

_December 23, 2022, due to the measures put in place to prevent the spread of COVID-19

\.(re are unable to estimate the future performance of the Organlzailon

¥

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS T
Subsequent events are events or transactions that occur after the statement of ﬁnanctal
position date, but before financial statements are available to be issued. Recognized

- subsequent events are events or transactions that provide additional evidence about

conditions that existed at the statement of financial position date,- including” the

" -estimates inherént in the process of preparing financial statements. Nonrecognized

subsequent events are events that provide evidence about condltions-that did not exist

“at the statement of financial position date, but arcse after that date. Management has

evaluated subsequent events through December 23, 2022, the date the financial

statemen!s were available to be issued.
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NOTE 1

NOTE 2

NOTES .

"N‘OTE 4

""BASIS OF PRESENTATION
-The accompanying schedule of expendutures of Federal Awards {the Schedule)

NOTE_S TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS -

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2021

1

LI

includes the' federal award activity-of Granite State’ Independent Living -under

programs of the federal government for the year ended September 30, 2021, The
- information in this Schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of

Tile 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requ:remenrs Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements. for Federal Awards
(Umform Guidance).-Because the Schedule presents only a selected portion of

-the operations of Granite State Independent Living, it is not intended to.and does

not present the financial posmon changes in net assets, or cash flows of the
Orgamzanon

SUMMARY OF. SIGNIFlCANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES.
Expendntures reported’ on the Schedule are reported. on the accrual basis of e

accountmg Such expenditures -are recognized following the cost principles

- contained in the Uniform Guidance, wherein certain types of expenditures are not

allowable or are limited as to reimbursement.

INDIRECT COST RATE
Granite State Independent Living has elected not to use the ten percent de . -

_ minimis indirect cost rate allowed under the Uniform Guidance.

DONATED PERSONAL PROTECTIVE EQUIPMENT (UNAUDITED)
Granite State Independent Living received the fair markeét value of personal | .

pratective equipment of $2,500.
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iNDEPENDENT AUDITORS” REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
; REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON

. AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED '

"IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

i 1 -

To the Board of Directors of : IS : B
Granite State'lndgpendﬁent Living ’ - : )

‘We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United
- States of América and. the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Governiment
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller Genaral of the United States, the financial
statements of Granite State Independent Living (a New Hampshire nonprofit organization),
_ which comprise the statement of fi nancial pasition as of September 30, 2021, and the related
statements of aclivities, functional expenses and cash flows for the year thén ended, and the
related notes to the fi nancral statements, and: have issued our repor! thereon dated December
23, 2022 : : . :

" Internal Control Over Financial Réporting o
in planning and’ performing our audits of the financial statements, we considered Granite State

T Independent Living’s internal control over financial reporting (internal cantrof) as_a basis for

desngmng the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of '
expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing .an
opinion on the effectiveness of Granite State Independent Living's internal control, Accordingly,
we do nof express an oplmon on the effectiveness of Granite State Independent Living's
: mtemal contml .

A deficiency in intemal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not aflow .
management or employees, in the normai course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A malerial weakness is a
deficiency, or & combination of deficiencies, In intemal control, such that there Is a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financiaf statements will riot be prevented,
or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a -
combination of deficiencies, In internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet
lmportant encugh to merit a!tent:on by those charged with governance.

' Our consideration of intermal controt was for the fimited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control
that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during
our audits we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material
weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified, '
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Compliance and Other Matters ‘ o
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Granite- State independent Living's:

.. financlal stateménts are free from matarial misstatement, we parformed tests of its compliance -

with certain provisions -of laws, regulations, contracts, and. grant agreements, noncompliance
with which' could have a direct and material effect on the financial statements. However,
providing an opinion on compliance with- those provisions was not an objective of our audit,
and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The rastits of our tests disclosed no
Instances of noncomplignce or. other matters that ara required to be reported under
Govarnment Audifing Standards. ' ' '

" Purpose of this Report - . ' _
The purpose of this repert is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that tssting, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of -
“the Organization's intemal contral or on compliance. This report s an integral part of an audit
performed in  accordance with Government Auditing . Standards in considering the
Organization's internal contral and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable
_ for any other purpose. .

“+

A eons mc/})amwﬁ S Roheonta wam W Lation

Dover, New Hampshire
December 23, 2022
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON COMPLIANCE. )
"FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL. -
OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE -

Ta the Board of Directors of
_ ‘Granite State Independent Living”

.. Reporton Compliance for Each Major Federal Program
We have audited Granite State Independent Living’s compliance wiih the types of compliance
requirements described in the OMB: ‘Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and
. material effect on each of Granite State Independent Living's major federal programs for the.
year ended September 30, 2021, Granite State Independent Living's major federal programs
are identified in the summary of auditors’ results section of the accompanying schedule of
“findings and questioned costs. .

- Management’s Responsibility : o . :
Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grants applicable to its federal programs. - . :
Auditors' Responsibility : g _ ' :
Our responsibility is to express ari opinion on comptiance- for each. of Granite State .

. independent Living's major federal programs based on our audit of the types of compliance-
requirements referred to abave. We conducted our audit .of compliance in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the -
Comptrolier General of the United-States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of
Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirement, Cost Principles, and Audit
Requirements of - Federal Awards {Uniform Guidance). ‘Those standards and Uniform
Guidance require that we plan and perfarm the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about.
whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that
could have a direct and material effect on a major fedaral program occurred. An audit.includes
examining, an a test basis, evidence about Granite State independent Living's compliance with

'those requireménts and performing stch other procedures as we considered necessary in the

circumstances. ' ' o

‘We believe that our audit provides a feasonabie basis for our opinion on cohp[ian,ce for each

.major federal program. However, our:audit'does not provide a legal determination of Granite
State independent Living's compliance. :
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. Opi'nion on Each Major Federal Program -

In. our- opinion, Granite State Indépendent Living complied, in all material respects with the
" types of compliance requiremenits referred o above that could have a direct and material effect
- on each of its major federal programs for the: year ended September 30 2021,

Report on Internal Ccmtro! Over Comphance

" Management of Granite State. [ndependent meg is responsuble for establlshmg and
maintaining effeclive iriternal control over compliance ” with the types of comphance
requirements referred to above. In planning and performing our audit of compliance, we .
considered Granite. State Independent Living's internal control over compliance with the types
of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to -
determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of
expressing an opinian on compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on -

. intemal control over compliance in accordance with Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose
of expressing an"opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly,
we do not express an opinion on.the effectweness of Granite State Independent Living's
internal control over compliance .

A deficiency., in mtamaf control over compliance emsts when the desngn or operallon of a
control over compliande does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of
performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a
type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A materiaf weaknass in
internal control over compliance is a deﬁciency, or combination of deficiencles, in-internal
control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility- that material -
noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal prog:am will not be
prevented, or detected and corrected, on @ timely basis. A significent defi czency in infernal
control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combmatmn of deficiencies, in internal controf
. over compliance with a type of compliance requirement-of a federal program that is less severe
than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to ment
attention by those charged with govemance

Our consnderatlon._of internal control aver compliance was for the limited purpose described in
the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify alt deficiencies in internal
conirol _._oyer'“' compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did
not identify any deficiéncies in.internal control over compliance that we consider to bé materiat
weakniesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. -

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of:-
our testing of internal control aver compliance and the results of that testing based on the

requirements of Unifoorm Guidance. Accardingly, this report is nol suitable for. any cther
purpose.’ t '

O?p Lone mobmué Y P.o-huu!w Pws.mcmal Qmo-wa:t»ow

Dover, New Hampshu'e
December 23, 2022
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" SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
"FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2021

&

o

A. SUMMARY OF-AUDITORS' RESULTS ~ .. R
1; The auditors’ report expresses an unmodified opinion-on,vﬁhethe‘r the financial-
: .étitgmenls of Granite Stats Independent Living were prepared in accordance with
AAP, , . ‘ ; :

2. No significant deficiencies relating {o the audit of the financial statements are

reported in the Independent Auditors’ Report on Internal Conlrol Over Financial

. ' Reporling and on Compliance end Olher Malters Based on an Audit of Financial

Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards. No
materlal weaknesses are reported. o . ' .

3. No inslances of noncompliance material to the financial statements of Granite State
- Independent Living, which would be required to be reported in accordance with
Govemment Auditing Standards, were disclosed during the audit.

4, No significant deficiencies in internal control over major federal award programs are
-reported In the Independent Auditors’ Report on Gompliance for Each Major
Program and on Infemmal Control Over Compliance Required by Uniform Guidancs.
No material weaknesses are reported.

5. The auditors’ report on compliance for the méjo‘r federal award programs for
Granite State Independent Living expresses an unmodified opinion on all major
federal programs. i . ‘7

6. There were no audit findings that are required to be reported in accordance with 2
" CFR 200.516(a). |

7. The progtam tested as a major program was: U.S. Depariment of Heaith and
Human Services, ACL Centers for Independent Living, ALN 93.432,

B8, The threshold for distinguiéhi’ng 'betwejeh Type A and B programs was $7-50,000.

,,_

8. Granite State Independent Living was determined to be a low-risk auditee.

. B. FINDINGS - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AUD[T

None

C. EINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS — MAJOR FEDERAL AWARD -PROGRAIVI‘AUDIT

None

30 -



G I D'ENDE'L G

' . SUMNIARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS -
: : FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 390, 2021

Tk

There were no f ndings or questioned costs that were required to be reported in the Schedule of
. Findmgs and Questroned Costs for the year ended September 30, 2020.

4
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KEY PERSONNEL

NH Department of Education

" " - ¥
- L.

) Contractor Name: . Granite State, Independent lelng.-

Name of Program:  IMPACCT .

.

A m-‘ )
4l PERCENTRAIDY
S ANNUALS Bl Fgg;glﬁ?l-.ils
AME: 3 -FIT ek S AR b ‘SALARY'!_e ECON CT.»

* [Marcia sa’gley ] Chief Program Ofrcer ’ $130,000.- 20%
Brianna Smith . . |Director of Education Seqvices  -| - $64,818 90%
Debbie Cortes +[Manager of Education Services | $58,545 80%

Kelly Jones . Lead Transition Specialist . $50.182 | . 95%

. [AmandaChase -  |Lead Transition Specialist $50,626 95%
[Denise Neskorik [Cead Transilion Speciafist $50,182 95%
Patrick Bernard Lead Transition Specislist $49,858 | - 95%
Jessica Therriault Lead Transition.Specislist $48,091 95%

TBD - Transition Specialist $45.744 | = 85%
Sarshjane Irizarry Transition Specialist - . 945226 | 95%
TBD Transition Specialist . $44,954 | - 95%
Christy Silfani . JTransition Specialist 348,000 95%
Megan Ballard Transition Specialist $46,000 95%
TBD .. Transition Specialist - fioater $44.954 100%
TOT AL SALARIES PAID FROMETHIS. CONTRACT R %ﬁ"né*’%—*«uﬂr T R R

-
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bﬁ' Independently .

. : FY23 BOARD OF DIRECTORS’

Chair

Interim ist Vice Chair
Larry Smukler (2025-2) . © .

2™ Vice Chair -
Eric Schlepphorst (2025-1)

Treasurer & Secretary
Geoffrey Souther (2023-2) | -

GSIL Board of Directors 2022-2023



Iris Polley (2022-1)

i ',

n Ennis (2025-2)°
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Dave Qualey (2(522.—1)

s

Board members receive no salaries

GSIL Board of Directors 2022-2023
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' GSIL BOARD OF DIRECTORS
‘" STAFFSUPPORT =

Deborah Ritcey
~ CEO .
s, n ]

: ritce sil,o

" Jill Bille -
CFO

bille@gsilorg

Krsytyi Jenkins
Executive Asslstant

GSIL Board of Directors 2022-2023



_._Educaﬂon

- Am:einda'él‘rase_ |

.
i

. Objective: To make a-careéf change in fine with my experience and skills.

_ Utah State UmverSIty M S. 1997 a
M.S., Psychology with emphasis i m school counse!mg C
Urnilversity of Vermont, B.A,, 1891 .~ - ' g
Major: Psychology; Minor: English . ’ .

Certification: New Hampshire k-12 Guidance Certification -

Experience S

"1/19 - present . - Granite State Independant LIvIng, Concord, NH
Lead Transition Coordrnator IMPACCT Academy ‘

.» Teach students with disabilitjes various competency-based ELO topics, transmon and
. Independent Living skilis
.  Recruit and monitor business partners for student work-hased Iearmng and classroorn
presentations
Recruit students from and marntam year-round relationships with over 12+local school drstncts
- Create curriculum (Career Exploration, English, Health, Consumer, Science, Personal Finance)
Maintain accurate records on student achievement and convey to stakeholders
Create progress notes for parents, schools and reportlng, track student cred:ts
-Facilitate monthly advisory board meetings
Communrcate with former students to track progress with goals .

* & & & & 0.

8/16-7/12018 - o John _Siark 'Regl'onal High School, Weare, NH
School-to-Career CoordmatOr ) '

s Arranged and monitored students in job shadows rnternsh:ps work study, community service
experiences and recruited businesses for such activities . .

¢ Provided career counselrng .

¢ Secured guest speakers for groups of students during popular “Flex trme Career Speaker
Series - \ . ;

¢ Coordinated and supervised career-related field trips '

o Taught workshops in career assessment, job acquisition and retentron for high school students

e Contributing member of K-12 Counselrng Curriculum Team and PLC Team-

|

Extra-curricular Involvement: Freshman Class Advisor; Official Home Basketball Bookkeeper



ErR
oy .

11/99:06/2016 . Kearsarge Regional High Schoo!, North S‘u_tton, NH
Schoo!—to— Career Coordmator ) . .

g Arranged and monitored students in jOb shadows 1nternsh|p work study. commumty sennce
+  experiences and recruited busiresses for such activities -

o Planned and coordinated middle and high school career days

o~ Collaborated with 5 other high schdols for annual Career Expo

Commumcated with business people regardlng expectatmns for.students in work based

experiences : . .
Provided career guidance for students
Concord Regional Technical Center program hatson
Facilitated NH Scholars Program
Taught career guidance course, classroom actwmes summer school and KADP c!asses
,Extra-cumcuiar Actwnhes Kyar-Sarga Yearbook Advisor

e ¢ & 8 ©

| 49711198 - E '‘Tween School nHome, Hopkinton, NH )

. - -

Director, After School Program-

¢ Responsuble for daily programming of activities,
o Facilitated parerit and staff meetings/training, hiring,
e Overall superws;on of 50+ students aged 5-12 and 6 stafl members

community Involveraent
2003-2012  Glrl Scouts of the Green & White Mountains
Girl Scout Leader

o GUIded girls in grades 1-8in self-esteem bunldmg acfivities through goal setting, fundraising T

and community service
. Planned trlps and coord[nated troop and town-wide camplng weekends

| 2002-2015 Hopkmton PTA, Project Graduat:on Committee and Hopkrnton Booster Club Secretary
2008-2011 Maple Strest School Voluntesr
o Created student yearbook “The Maple Leaflet’

o Organized students to work on book, taught photographyf;ournal:sm basics to studenls
grades 4-6 , . -

References available upon :;equest



Brianna C. SMITH -

Ob] ective: - ' oo *
To-cbtain a position within the field of employment and educchon fhoi will enhance
professional growit and utilze sirqng organizational and interpersonal skills.

-Expe;iehce: .
Director of Education Services- February, 2023'- Presenf
Granite State Independent Living * Manchester, NH

*+ Oversee Qur education team throughout. New Hampshlre in mplemenhng
Pre—Employment Transition Services "

¢ Collaborates with New Hampshire Vocational Rehcbzhto'hon in ensuring
susfcmob{e funding for both IMPACCT and Eam and Learn Opportunilies
Program - .

+  Lead consultoni for managing federal Department of Heo!th and Human

- Services Independent Living funding, Department of Labor regulations and WIOA

grant compliance and reporling

+ Facilifote regional stakeholder advisory boards throughout the stale with the
Department of Education, school portners ond employers to provide: iechnscal
assistonce for program growth and cdvcncemeni : :

s Collaborate with the Community Ccllege System of New Hompshtre and
negoi!afe to offer career pathwoys and occupational training through post
secondary education

« Responsible forrecruitment, hiring and supervising oll staff member throughout
" New Hampshire which also includes facilitating quarterly professional .
.development seminars :

Associate Director of Education Services- May, 2018 - February, 2023
Granite Stote Independent Uving « Manchester, NH

.+ Oversee our education teom in the Manchester area in implementing
Pre-Employment Transition Services



te Lead consuﬁcnt for managing federal Depqriment of Health and Human
Services Independent Living fundmg Deparimem‘ of Labor reguloi:ons and WIOA
grant compliance and repoiting I

.. Fccili!cte regionol stakeholder advisory béards in the Manchester area. with 1he
‘ .Deporimeni of Education, school partners and employers to provnde technical
assistance for program growth and advancement

. 'Conaborc?e with Mcnchester Community College to offer career pathways 6nd
occupational fraining through post secondary education .

.*+ Responsible for recruitment. hiing and supervising four staff members in
Manchester programs which clso includes 1ccnzlf0hng qucﬂeriy profess:onol
development seminars ;

+  Manage and develop susiomuble business parinerships for employment
opportunities

lead TransHion Specialist- June, 201.6- May, 2018
Granite State Independent Living « Manchester, NH
« Responsible for daily instruction of Pre-Emplayment Transition Services for

underserved youth in New Hompshire's lorgest city

. 'Oversé_e programming in.developing paid work experiences for studenis and-
farnilies C :

. Conduct monthly siakeholder advisory board 16 refine programming

«  Lead liaison for the foster grandparent program to bricdge employment services In
crectlng an organic approach for purposetul relafionships

«  Delivered wrcporoqnd services for the foster grandparent program and sludents
- through the provision of Independent Living services

Transiticn Specialist- June, 2015 June, 2016

* Granite stale lndependeni Living- Manchester, NH

. Provided vocational classroom instruction fo youth between the ages of 16-21 to
' earn’high school oqodemnc credit and employment pcihways skills

» Responsible for student recruitment with area high schoois
. Developed employment opportuniies for individuals 10 gain pcud employment

«  Built relahonshtps with community portners for students to expenence mfemshlps
and access _1occ|I resources



school Program Team Leader: Jne, 2009 - June, 2015
Work Opportunities Uhlirniled - Manchester, NH

-« Counseling ihdividucls to pravide educotion and vocational guidance .
~» Providing 'skills, $ravel ircining and direct support for students within the program

v ASssist m worklng ‘withteam on transitioning students out of hlgh school by
. counseﬁng WIfh communafy resources and the school district

. Develop IEP gools to Conducl 1r0nsﬁion plc:rr for future polhways

. espons:ble for team members daity schedule, job objechves and activilies for al’
studentsin school program

Teacher Assistant « August 2007-January 2008
Alpha Bils Learning Centers Manchester, NH

»  Assisted with pldnning daily routines for T_he preschool classroom

+ Develop lesson plans for child_ren's goals including intellectual stimulation and
language octivifies ‘

] Prclsed ch:ldren for occomp[ashmenis along with guidance in learning.

"Skills:
* lead consuttant in creafing programmmg in school districts and businesses throughout
New Hampshwe

+ . Spearhead federal, slate and foundation grant management thot includes reporfing *
and compliance responsibilities

= Assist with onboarding, managing and overseeing numerous team members and
assisting with staffs day o ddy operations

s keliabie, hard working_individuc! contributor and team player

»  Highly organized wifﬁ an person centerad approach

= Sirong Cbmmunicotion skills with employers, area c;gencies and school districts

. Creaie lesson plans for students and guide with goals and objeciives reloted io lEPs

. 'Proﬁz:|en| in Microsoft Office, XP, Excel, Powerpoint along with Mac OS and Google )
Platforms " :



Education:

Southern Néw. Hampshire Uniiversity - ... *
* June, 2009 Complelion ..

« Social Science, Bachelor's Degree

= Psychology, Minor Degree

.

o References Available Upon Request
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OBJECTIVE: Seeking a position w:th an agency dedicated to positive individual, famlhal

social and commumty change . )

N

WORK EXPERI‘EN CE:

* Transition Specia!i&t (February 2022- Present) Grdnite State Independent.Living- M_anchésre::

NH

.

. * Deliver standardized IMPACCT curriculum to students {(nges 16-22), including i mstructlon in
“work-readiness, selt-advocacy, ooal setting, and independent living

* Recruit, organlze and implement curriculum presentersfworkshops on specific toplcs

» Recruit students from each high school, and serve as the IMPACCT Academy's point person for
parents and school personne}

» Support students in identifying and utilizing community resources to increase their mdepcndent
living skill development, greater personal and econom;c 1ndcpendence Suppon students'

reintegration to sending schools

sMaintain accurate student records and provide monthly updatc reports on student progress to
schools, parents, and GSIL Leadership Team Provide monthly reports on enrollment, school &
business outreach, and overall progress to GSIL Leadership Team

Residential Counselor (August 2018 to March 2019) Spaulding Youth Cenrer- Northfield, NH

* Responsible for caseload of behaviorally-chalienged students (ages 4 1o 21), with peurological
jmpairments, including autism, intellectual disabilities, emotional disorders, and those who have
experienced significant trauma, abuse, or neglect '

» Providing direct care, support, and supervision to studeats during the non-school hours by
implementing residential objectives and behavioral support plans

» Teaching daily living skilis, community :ntegmuon and socmhzauon as weli as pamc:patmg
and engaging students in all residential activities

_Activity Coordinator & Summer Camp Counselor (April 2014 to June 2016) Girls Inc - Concord,

NH

» Creating, organizing, and implementing engaging, educational, and theme-based activities for
glrls {ages 5-13)

- B

w
*

. Supemse chlldren maintdin safety, problem solve, and control difficult behaviors
» Maintain samtat:on, orgamzanon, and cleaning

« Establish/follow curriculum, rules, and regulations of after-school/summer camp



EDUCATION:
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Bachelors in Human Services Springfield College -

Manchester, NH 2015
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Debb1e Cortes |

| Quahﬁcauon nghhghts

L Good Arutudc »

Deal with Difficule

* -

Value Education
® Critical Observer - _ ¢ Empathetdc -
e Flcmblc @ Think Qutside the e Highly Organized
Rclated Skﬂls

Cussaoom MANAGBMENT
. Mmagcd a dassroom of 10-25 students.
e Organized activides for students and

" . individuals with IEPs/ ISPs.
¢ Continually encouraged children o be

understanding and patient with others.

.. COMPUTER SKILLS

© . Able t troubleshoot common Compu:cr

issues

o Expedenced in Audio/Visual equipment

BILINGUAL

Communicated effectively with students,

- teachess and parents.

Cridcally observed student progress snd
provided leaming material needed to help

students succeed.

* Proficient in Word, Excel, PowerPoinr,
Google Classtoom, Imagine Leataing, A.spcq .

X2, Smarter Balanced Tesdng

 ® Effecively communicate verbally and in wr.i:ing in Spanish.
© Can understand and partally ¢ommunicate in Pon:ugucsc.

Experience :
Granite State Independeat Living, Lead Teansition Specialist Nashua, NH 10/2018-Present
Granite State Independent Living, Transition Coordinator « Nashua, NH 8/2017-10/2018

" Nashua Schc?ol District; Para Professional Nashua, NH 10/2014-07-2016
TILL, ING; Residential Manager Dedham, MA 01/2013.09/2014
TILL INC;‘RcsjdemiaI Seaff . Dedham, MA 09/2011-01/2013
Atlantic Union College; TT Secretary - South Lancaster, MA 08/2007-05/2011
Atlantic Union Cellege; Maintenance South Lancaster, MA 08/2007-05/2011
Atantic Union College; Audio/Visual Tech South Lancaster, MA 08/2007-05/2011

" Education . -

Nashua Community College; Educator Prcpétation Nasghug, NH 5/2017 -
Associates Degree , . o ’
Adantic Union College; Biology - 9/2007-5/2011

72 Credits

South Lancaster, MA



2000
1993

_ 2023-Present

2015- Present ..

2017-2019

2015-2017

2003-2015

1998-2003

1996-1998

- Edigation-Walla Walla College
BS Speech Communication {emphasis-public speaking)

BA Elementary Education. :
Minor in Health
. Work Experience . ‘ ) s

+

Granite State Independent Living- Lead Transition Specialist
Experience- Instructs daily académics for students, maintaining
academic rigor. Supervises extended learning activities for students.
Supports work site activities when needed. ’

- Self Employed-Uber

Customer rating 4.95 and higfier, Current Rating 5.0

Ross Sterling Middie School - Humble, TX
Experlence: ldentified specific skills, developed and implemented a
remedial plan to increase testing scores for at risk students.

Adventist Chrlstiali Academy of Texas -hConroe, X
Experience: 5% & 6% grade teacher, HS choir director, HS Health, HS

~ Computer. Developed and implemented curriculum for a HS life skills

class.

Spring ISD-Pat Reynolds Elem. - Houston, TX

_Experience: Regular Education and ELL Teacher (2 language leamers), '

37 grade and 5 grade for Language Arts/Social Studies

Leadership positions: 5* grade Team Leadet; Social Studies District
Representative; TRIBES trainer (team building), Student Council 5
grade sponsor, Spelling Bee Coordinator, Microsoft trainer for
Educators. .

Humble ISD+ North Belt Elem - Humble, TX
Experience: Regular Education 3™ and 4* grade

. Child Development Services US Army - Babenhausen, Germany

Experlence: Asst. Director for Army daycare, Scheduled and
supervised 15-20 workers including cook, secretary and teachers;
maintained an age-appropriate quality educational environment for
infants, toddlers and preschoolers; NAYAC certification was processed
and approved during this time; in cherge of daily running of center in all
areas including paperwork, inspections, and finances.



Educator and facthtator passnonate about suppomng all'leamers. Eﬂechve at working mdependently and
:as a team Respecl for dwersrty and cu!tural mclusmty in all aspects of . life- and leamlng

PROFESS[ONAL EXPERIENCE

" Granité State Independent Liwng | Dover, New Hampshlre T ApriI;2b23.-Present
' Lead Transition Specialist for IMPACCT Academy

. @
l"

Manage all aspacts of a 16-week academic program f from recrultment to matnculatton tncludlng
pamcmanng in and directing staff in recruitment, mtake. and progression: through the program
experience andback to school and other approprta!e service.

Recruit a full class of 16 individuals from ovér 19 regional schools and placemsnts three times yeany

‘ through -emall campaigns, advisory meetings, meet-and-greets at schools, observat!on days for

administrators, and meetings with students, school staff, and parents.

Serve as lead instructor for academic programming in career explaration training in soft and hard skllls
Evaluate student progress and pravide mastery-oriented feedback for competency-based leaming.
Establish and maintain student expectations-in the classroom and at the worksite. .
Adapt to academic and sacial situations in the classroom using researched, evidence-based stratégies.
Contact local businesses to establish relationships and arrangé worksite internships for students based
on industry and student needs and interests.

-Support local worksites énd student Interns throughout the cohort including observing, direct on-the-Job
training, and new skills training.

Establish and maintain.clear communication with- stakeholders including program dlrectors school
administration, case managers, transition coordinators, and parents to ensure student success.
Coordinate and facilitate monthly Regional Advisory meetings to work with Program Administrators and
stakeholders to continually review and evaluate all aspects of the program — assess process
effectiveness and full academic rigor.

Maintain effective records through data recordzng monthly update reports, and day—to—day observattons
and communications.

Maintain professional knowlecdge and skills by reviewing professional literature, conducting |ndependent
research,-and attending workshops and trainings.

Support and uphold GSIL policies and procedures, workplace regulations, and safety practlces

Newmarket JrJSr ngh School | Newmarket, New Hampshire _ August 2018 - July 2022
Teacher and Grade Level Coordinator

......._..'.

Established trust and credibility with students through advising and relationship buﬂdlng

Maintained effsctive communication with stakeholders via emails, phone conversations, and meehngs
Presented to audiences of up to 200 individuals using established public'speaking capacﬁles
Facilitated events for betwesan 30-100 participants with a focus on inclusivity and adaptivity.

- Independently created and implemented a Grade 7 ELA curriculum to increase testinig scores by 22%,.

Utflized technological toois, including video and audio editing platforms to create leaming content.
Analyzed qualltailve and quantitative data to develop reports and make informed policy decisions.
Coordinated a grade-level team to ensure that goals were met in a timely manner.

Reviewed deliverables for up to 90 leamers at a time, responding with mastery-oriented feedback
Simultaneously managed implementation projects in MTSS Intervention, SEL, STEAM, and ELA."
Conducted outreach with local partners to establish and build a middle school STEAM program.
Analyzed barriers related to equity and inciusion to ensure equitable expenences forall. -

Unlversal Design for ‘Learning Facliitator/Coordinator

Coordinated a UDL implementation.project from exploration, to teacher Ieammg, to classroom use.
Lead outreach and relationship building to bring in prospective new teachers and triple our participants. -
Used iterative design techniques to create accessible curriculum frameworks and materals. '
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Amerlcan Independence. Musetum | Exeter, New- Hampshlre a 2022 Present’

Cte L ] y -Communl’fy Leadership . [

e

i

Edutational Progran Management Volunteer - Field Trip Curriculum Developmen! E =0

Green Acres Stables | Madbury, New Hampshwe

oy

© .. University of New Hampshlre [ Dover, New Hampshlre

Deteénmine and write learning outesimes for museum-specific programming. . T
Design'program matrixes, standard operating.procedures, and templates for activity planning. |
Caollaborate with a tear of educators-to redesign a comprehensive field trip for up to 40 pamc:panls at a tlme
Datermma and pre-design pubhcaisons and exlra-cumcu!ar materials. )

CE 201'0—Present

w,‘

e 0 8 0,

"ok -

Voluntear Evont Coordinator, Secretary, Scorer .
- -Build relationships with valunteers and manage volunteer scHedules to ensure flawless event deli\rery
-» Maintain and analyze records and spreadsheets to score events and ensure financial success, :
. Commumcate clearly to pamclpants to ensura that all ruies and regulahons ara followed on the day of the-event.

3 T T - T
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S D EDUCATION AND CERTIFICATIONS ' - T

Masters in Education’- Secondary Education (GPA 4.0} | 7 )
Bachelor of the Arts - English Teaching (GPA 4.6) T

NH Department of Educauon Experfenced Educator License - Grades 6.12 Enghsh/l.anguage Arts

e CAST Universal Design for Learning Associate Level 1 Certifj cation. . .
‘Alfred Ernest Richards Award for Excellence in English Teaching

TECHNICAL PROFICIENCIES
Google Suite | Microsoft Office Suite | Outlook 1 Zoom | Treflo | Asana

&

A

[y » i



ERQFLSSJQ{_&LW I1have ten years of expenence inthe physmal servfces field, five years as a Lead -
Residential Counselor and I am currently a Transition Spécialist, My passion {Sbeinga motivatlonai leader and,
organizational problem solver. In'my work life I have advancéd supervisory, team builditg, and customer service
" skills. My practice desires are utilizing my experience gained in the development and execution of the programs
created for Individuals with specific needs. [am highly innovative and explicitly clent focused as a'staff member -
and a supervisor. [ have a sustained record of achlevement in all aspects of the operations of the business I 'am-
serving, Dellvering the requirernents of thé Supervisory board and supervisory staff. Ialso am proficiént in the
staff recruitment and all aspects'of the hiring process. [ can think creatively and adapt to the multitask
environments we create in support of my team initiatives and the goals for the student. that 1am working: Lam.
.self-motivated with a strong willingness to learn new tasks in a fast-paced environment. My proven customer
service skdlls are exceptional, especially with parents and school staff. havea proven record of accomplishment
and communicatlon : .

University of Maine - Groroe - Bachelor's Degree  ~ Kinesiology and Physical Education  May 2015 | .
NH Institute of Therapeutic Arts | Schoal of Massage Thcrapy Massage Therapist June 2011 '
NH Technical Institute Course Work . September 2009 -Dec 2009 -
Bow High School High Schoot Diploma : June 2009
- Additional t[ﬂiﬂillﬂ' . - . )
* MANT Training/Safety Care Training - Proficlent with Google applications and PC/Microsoft Office Suite
RBT Training Behavioral Support Experienced in both Apple and PC platforims
. CPRand Fitst Ald certlfied Knowledgeable with staff and direction of clicats
Wildemess Response certified . . Extremely skilled with Microsoft word, excel pregrams and PowerPoint
EMPLOYMENT:

Granite State Independen't Living

Lead Transition Specialist - : g July 2023 - Prasent
© Serves as lead Instructar of the day-to-day academic activitles ’ T
S Overseesthe development of the new ELOs (extended learning opportunitles) to respond to ldentiﬂed
student needs
& Directs staff in recruitment, intake, and progression through r.he program experience and back to school
- and other appropriate service '
- % Works with Program Administrators and stakeholders (Regional Advisory Group) to continually review
and evaluate al} aspects of the program — assess process effectiveness and full academic rigor  °
¢ Responsible for establishing and maintaining student expectations ‘
< Provide support to work site activities as needed
¥ Completes all the necessary program reports with high quality and in a timely manner

Transition Spécialist - - ’ . December 2022 - July 2023

& Responsible for carrying out day-to-day acadernic activities with flexibility and focus on goals

< Establish, develop, and maintaln student expectations while belng able to quickdy make decisions

% Provide support to worksites of students and ensure task understanding and improving soft and hard
skdlls In awork environment allowing the students to create thelt leaming style

% Effectively communicates with all parents, school personal, student teams, and other community
partners



,

% Teach dally Jessons with multiplé modalities to target various learning styles and student presentations
Assess progress of all students throtghout the term and offer diverse ideas for academic levels
Provide daily and monthly reports on updates, issues, concerns. - '

Bulld, develop and maintaln connections with businesses
Provide job site assessment and training in collaboration with a vocational rehabilitation counsalor

+ Refer students to coramunity tésources for financial, medical, edpcanonal and rehabilitatlon services
Worldng lmowledge of IEP/504 accommodations and modification ineluding meeting attendance
Complete knowledge of google sulte and Microsoft office ’

C A - 2K 2R

Monadnock Developmental Services ‘Prograni_ Manager ' February 2021°- December idz‘_z

Mar;ag: the schedules of Staff and-our Clients * i
Provides support to Our Disadled Clients and management of time ) RN
Leader to drive the mission of Success to accomplish bur goals ) ‘
Communjcations with all Parents of Clients, Employers and Clients . .
Scheduling the daily operations and staffing patterns. '
Trdining job coaches (1 on 1) on the dally tasks for clients needed for their job tequuements

_ Providing data for entry of program hours for gach cltent program.

- Manage tme slips, mileage reports, and expense reports bi-weekly
Data entry and review of all documentation and scheduling to provide services
Makdng sure that every ctient continues ta succeed every day In thelr assigned programs .
Ensure dally operations are followed by emplayers, staff, and clients

- - - R

- -

Crotched Mountain Rehabilitation Center - ' July 2015 - November-2021
(COVID Shut Down) : - o :

Residentlal Program Manager
Act 25 Haison, advocate, and coordinator for consumer involvernent In self-advocacy, vocational pragramming, integrated
community ar:twitles and learming independent [iving skills.

+ . Monltor staff pedormance management, including evaluations and developmental plans, disciplinary actonsqete. for all
program staff as scheduled..

4 Arrange and schedule all tralning for all program staff,

¢ Ensure completion/submission of all required datly, bi- -weekly, monthly, quarterly and annual reports as schediiled,

¢ . Coordinate/attend as needed all consurner celated meetings; ensure all necessary follow-up is completed.

'

" Residential Counselor III g .
Supervisor of an assigned house; everjrday operational fum:dons ‘ L
Ensures compliance with appllcable state regulations
Trains staff membérs on daily routines to safeguard the patients, pladng ahigh priority on dignity and respect
Time management: daily scheduling and supervision of § support staff, prioritizing workloads and available resources
effectively to meet deadlines :
Responsible for seizure protocols to ensure réscug outcome

" Accomplishes Implementation of IEP and therapy options
Influence pojicies and procedures, exchange meaningful information and Ideas throughout the workplace
Completes/monitots medication sign out sheets, daily student logs, adherence to behavior program Including data keeping
Fulfills food requisitions according to establlshed menus, ensuring balanced meals oversee all special diets under
supervision of Program Manager
Lialson between the school and residential departments; helps Improve team commun!canon
Attends trainings and seminazs as required; pursues ateas of developmient and tralning that will enhance job performance '
Supports the team of direct suppott staff in their growth and development .
Develops and malntains positive working relatlonshlps with'co-workers by be!ng punctual, keeping personal
commuhication to a minimum, and malntaining a pleasant work attitude

< Accepts construcuve criticism ln a professlona! manner

KK - <. o

LR ]

Self Emp!oyed Independent Contractor ' T .
Massage Therapist (continues to provide services forall clients) January 2010 ~ Present

YOLUNTEER: Organizing/(}verseeing small and large sports-ba.;sed tournaments, Intramural
Coach/Captain Soccer/Intramural Referee/Official. .



Skills Profile D : :

a
[ ]

CPR/AED Certified - ' . : ;
- CPl Certified o ’
Staff Devclopment Expericnce
Communication Skiils
Coordinator Sklils
IHustrated Leadershlp Ability
* Bachclor's degree in healthcare management ;

Emplo_yment History

-~

Transition Specialist . . ) - May 2023- present
Granite State Independent Living, Nashua, NH ‘ .

.o
+

Delivered corricufum. . " .

-
¢ Recruit students . ,
». - Bulld relatlonships with schools and foster them.,
s Find business pariners for student.worksites. "
Special Education Paraprofessional 2003 - May 2022

Miiford School District, Milford, NH .

*  Program Assoclate -

« 1:1 Paragducator

¢ Processed and delivered curriculum.

*  Wellness Coordinator . .
Human Resourcé Office - Peer Tutor & ' 1997 ~2002 .
Academic Support Center ' : ' ' .

Mount Wachusett Cbm;'nunity College, Gardner, MA.

o -Development and implementation of tutoring program

» Organization of Schedules

s  Oversight of the lunch program

o Data entry using Excel and Word A .
Education ] .
Mount Wachusett Community College Gardner, Ma. ' 1997-1999

o' Completed an associate degree in human scrviees in 1999
¢ Cumulative GPA 3.2



. Fitchburg State College Fitchburg, Ma.-
‘ ' ¢  Worked toweard B.S. In Sociology . i
" .« .Cumulative GPA 1.6 : )
. - Granite State College, Concord, NH. -
_» BS. In Healtheare Management ’
“‘s  Cumulative GPA3.8
Communily Service i
o ‘Lion’s Club . : e
s Souhegan Valley Lacrosse Club-league game scheduler
’ _»  Milford Community Athletic Association - ‘
* s Best Buddies . .
Awards ond Accolodes !
"7 7.+ Lion of the Vear 2010

. 2001-2002
PR 7 N
. 2021-June 2022
H
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. N . . " : . Marcia Bag]ey L )

" : ~—Prolessional Proble . — N

“ P L ;
‘a1 good Eoannunicalor. .. U3 I
: alor... 1o | prugiastic and energetic Adminiscrator who is eagce to suppore mdmduals with drf&nng

zbilifies, staff and-familics to ensuce all mdmduzls ate ptovldcd cqunl aceess’to opportunities

being A_ij-daf education diredor — withi n thicir communities.
arally goed one... " ¢+  New Hampshire Cerrificate in Spccml Educartion Adnumst:nuon and Educator,
. ¢ ) Cctuﬁcnn: in General Special Edueation and El:mcnmy Education.
Janice Mardn, Former . » Well versed in the New Harhpshire Standards for the Edueation of Chddn:n wnh
* Director of Special Esluc_:znon . Disabilitics and IDEA requitements.
, Nashuz ,&h“,'l Dissrier s+ Chair and Vice Chair of the Board of Dizectors for the Parent Informanon Centeron
T Special Education (PIC), 2012 = 2021,
; e . PIC Voluntcer Advosase for Special Education.
: i s« Named New Hampshire Special Education Administrator of the Year for 2022.
", dfectinly addressed borriers Education ) .
1o ioyplesenting transit ' N
relatedto implementing ransition 2002 — 2004 . McDaniel College
and child find requirenstnis, | Master's of Science - ' Westminster, MD

L : Master’s of Science in Human Services Management in Special Educadon witha
thinking creatively 1obile kesping the _ concentzation in Applicd Behavior Analysis (ABA).

needs of fanrifies and ehildren at the | 1997 - 2002 Marywood University
. : Jfarefon. .. _ Bacthefor's of Science 7 Scranton, PA
' Bachelor's of Scicnce in Special and Elemeatary Educadon b

Mlchc[lc Lewis, E\'ccuuvc
Director, PIC
- Employment

2023 - presenr Granite State Independent Living (GSIL) ] Concord, NH

o, warks thrasgh any burdles | Chief Progsam Officer ' : T .
e . Oversee the coordination and delivery of all programs, contracts and scrvices:promoting

suriesgfilly wnaking sare that each collabogadve relationships in the pursuit of independence for individuals with disabilidcs.
e Coordinate with CEO and cxecutive tcam to ceeace and mainain overall program ’
“ehild’s needs are pret...” development and management across multple sites and departmeats. ' )
. o - Represeat GSIL with external community pmncxs,
Susan Angel, Former o Directly supervise four program dicectors.
! Nsdnnsmhu“':uS:::o{\];?:t:::. . f.or::t:j:i support a high performing culturé amongst all programs that align with GSIL's

i . s Monitor emerging needs among key stakeholders Such as consumers, government and
other funding services.
'2007- 2022 Nashua School District . " Nashua, NH
. | Director, Special Education 2018- 2022

adninistrulor who can truly makt &'\ Ascistant Director, Special Education 2016-2018

d,fgfma" Praschosl Coordinator 2007 - 2016

“.a talented and bemblh. ..

. ) . o Dircctly supervised a tram of nine administrators and adminiseradve support staff
Simonne Perey, Teacher to suppor the goals and vision of the Nashua School Districe
s  Ovemaw and supecvised 500+ special education seaff, ensuring all 2000+ swudems’ [EPs

. were. fulfilled in accordance with Federal and Seate law,
. o Facilitated the Distdet’s response to the COVID- 19 pandemic, proyiding guzdnnce and

tools to scaff 1o best support students during cemore and hybrid leaming.
» . Created and manage budget for speciat education depactment (2pproximately

$12.2 million).
o  Provided technical assistance to teams to problem solve unique issues,

maintain compliznce, and meet students unique necds.




pbat can be an nsrmbtbﬂ..")rg process |

“v. bar the ability :ro Bumenize

Jor parenss, . extrauely

: pmfurimd...&ﬁ)yf positive...”

Kyl'c Langille, Former

Pnnc:p:ll, Nashua School

‘District

"# it neas.really bord sending [bmr]

12 sehood al such a yonng ags, bit

from onr first 1EP mecting, you

»

wads w5 ferd s0

comfortabe. f“amrtt are lucky fo

. bave souscons Lika you belp with rlis |

* fnitizl ireasition.. "

O:c».;yl B, Parent

N .

"... the Preschool departnrent,
aader the leadership of Marria

Bagley, bas come laps and

bounds. .. sbe pears mary, siary

bats and does a fabuloas job.. "

Sarah Almeida, Speech
Pathologist

s Collabetaica with SERI0T Tdecship, t;m!dmg'zdmlmsuamrs 20d other AdmInISIRTos 10
casure all studears bad cqual access wohigh quality educational opportunitics.
~*  Prowessed and respond 10 parent complmms OCR, coniphints and due pmcc_ss requests,
¢ Facilitated team and department mectings.

.+ Created and conduceed trainings for Nashua School Districs staff.

»  Dirccted and coosdinated the Nashua Larly Education: Program (INEEP), inclasive of the
witon-based Play Pals ptogrzm.

*  Superviscd the Specidt Education process for all referred studeats ig:s 25-5,
avcnaging 213 per year,

“ e Developed Preschool Procedures, Program Descriptions and Cum:u]um for the

Nashua School District in compliance with the New Hampshire Rules for the
Educaton of Children with Disabilities. Nashua Preschoo! proceduces have been used
as exemplars for school diserices chmughout New Hampshire.

o Collzborated with all team membeérs including parents, advocates, prindipals, teachers,
and scrvice providers to resolve issucs and provide students with & fréc and sppropriate
pubhc education (FAPE)

2006 < 2007 The Birchteee Center

Spedial Education Case Caom’mafar _ ,
Devcloped students’ Individualized Edvcation Plens. Prepared quantetly progress

repons.  Administered standardized and eriterfor-referenced evaluations: Coordinated and
facilitated alternative forms-of state testing. Assisted in the development and implementation
of curriculum and related materials. Implemented students’ 1EP goals within the classroom in
one-to-once settings. Modeled teaching of students’ academic programs in the classcoom,

Pertsmouth, NH

2004, 2006 - Sheppard Pratt -The Forbush Schoo! -
Special Education Teacher

Temple Hills, MD

. Provided direct instrucgon fo students with Audsm in a non-public tweive-month schooL

Rezponsible for the development, implementation and supervision of Individualized Educaton
Plans a0d Behavior Management Plans, Prepared quarterly. progress reports, Collecred 20d
annlyzed datz. Planned, crented, and introduced proup and individual lessons and materials
witored to; 1EPs and curdculum. Prepared and faéiliated alternative forms of standardized

testing. Supervised Teaching Assistants.
1

Wcsnminsrcr, MD

Cornmunity Living Marnager .

Delivered direct care to adults with developmenta! disabilitics. Collaborated in the opening of
a new alternative living unit. Organized all required paperwork, coordinatd inspections,
oversaw the hizing, scheduling, and training of saff, and managed the houschold budget.

2001 2004  Targer Community md Ed Services, Inc.



+  Event planning
- ¢ Tour guiding

4 "+ ' Sales management °
+  Team leadership

. +  Program development
¢« Museum managerment
+ " Data input '
+  Historical analysis
+  Cumiculim

development
+  Proficient in Miczasoft,
Google applications,
and Outlock
»  Cultivating
relatdonships
VOLUNTEER.

EXPERIENCE _

VOLUNTEER TUTOR +
DECEMBER 2020 - JUNE 2021
I gave tutoring lessons twice &
week to a student in the 10®
grade. We worked:on various
subjects and developed theixr
skills in lime. management &
organization.

TRANSTI’IGN SPECIAIJST‘ GRAN!TE STATE INDEPENDENT LNING .

-AY 2023 - CURRENT

My role as a transition spécialist mr.:ludes teachmg work-readmess
education to students with disabilities through an ELO program
called IMPACCT Academy and providing follow- up services to those
students upon graduation from the program. [ am also responsible fof
cultivating and maintaining relationships with school personnel,
parents, business & conimunity partners, and local resources to help
students on their pathway to life after high school. Curriculum is
delivered in the form of work-readiness lrmmng. self-advocacy, goal.
setting, and indspendent living.

SPECIAL EDUCA‘I‘ION‘PARAPROF ESSIONAL « DOVER MIDDLE “

SCHOOL » OCTOBER 2021 - MAY 2023

My position as a paraprofessional involved working with high needs
students at Dover Middle School in their autism resource rcom. Asa
para | assisted students with academic needs.and structural suppor?.

 Areas of need/strategies to assist are determined by student [EP

guidelines and case manager recommendations. Data tracling and
reporting was completed daily. I also pnonnzed the dignity, health,
and safety of the students. )

MUSEUM EDUCATOR » ALBACORE PARK « JUNE 2022 ~ SEPT 2022 .
1 worked as a temporary Museum Educator for Albaccre Park,
assisting the team in ¢reating and implementing a robust schedule, of
education programs. [ was also responsible for training a small slaff
of volunteers torun daily programs. My responsibilities were to
develop lesson plans for curtent and future programuming, deliver the
programs during events and daily cperations, design an educauon
brochure, and collect visitor feedhack

1



"

EDUCATION VISITOR SERVICES & SALES MANAGER » OLD NORTH CHURCH &

, HISTORIC SITE » AUGUST 2018 - AUGUST 2020
: was responsxb!e for the complete onboarding and management of .’

BACH ELOR OF ARTS IN PUBLIC the visitor services team. ] worked directly with thousands of visitors
HISTORY WITH A MINOR IN every year. My most frequent clients were school groups, Boston
TRAVEL & TOURISM - MAY - " walking tours, and cruise liners, looking to arrange field trips or
2018 » SALEM STATE private events. Additional responsibilities included data input,
UNIVERSITY . Tevenue reportmg, website editing, donor retention, and mvomng
Graduated Magna cum laude -
with a 3.7 GPA and lifetime EDUCATCR = OLD NORTH OHURCH & HISTORIC SITE + APRIL 2018 -
memberstiip in Phi Alpha . AUGUST 2018..
Theta, the national honors 1 held a dual position as an educator and a first-person mterpreter 1

was responsible for teaching visitors and school groups the process
used by the colonists to ¢reate colonial-style drinking chocolate, The
demonstration used props to show cultivation and creation from
“bean fo beverage'. The position included wearing historically
accurate clathing and memotizing a multitude of facts and

’ information from the 17 & 18* centuries. .

gociety for historians.

" TOUR GUIDE & MUSEUM INTERN ¢+ THE HOUSE OF THE SEVEN
GABLES * MAY 2017 - AUGUST 2018
i ) My undergraduate internship allowed me to explore my interest in
’ . non-profits, specifically in museums. [ worked on social media
management and surveying visiter experience. I also warked ciose}y
with the archwal team o catalogue and input notable ghjectainte’
PastPerfect; At the end of my internship, [ was hired as a tour guxde
. ' giving educational and historical tours of the mansion o groups and o
school groups. Tours cavered the architectural, familial, and
- ' maritime history of the site. . .



ADMISSIONS AMBASSADOR * SALEM STATE UNIVERSITY. * MARCH
2015 - MAY 2018 - =

While an admissions ambassador | gave Qaily tours cf the umversity
campus to prospechve students and their families. My position was
also responsible for hiring, sc¢heduling, and training ambassadors. I
a)so worked in the office, mputtmg/convertmg grades from
prospective student appl:cauons using the programs Onbase and
Peoplesoft.

RIDES TEAM LEAD + SIX FLAGS NEW EMGLAND APRIL2022 -,
OCTOQBER 2016 ) . '

A5 a team Jead, | oversaw a division of the park ﬂmt composed of up
to thirty employaes fram April - October each year. My duties
included operating theme park rides, managing a break schedule,
employee training, daily paperwork, safety :mplementauon,
addressing guest concems, and cleaning tasks,

.

‘b

+



Highly organlzed ‘and detail-onented indlvidual with over a decade of classroom expenence with

. diverse student populations, Abllity-to work'in a fast-paced environment; with individualé and groups
from diverse cultural backgrounds as a team member or independently. Strong leadership abilities, .~ .
adaptable, resllient and able to effectively solve prablems In strassful situations, .
Coardinated and diligént activity coordinator skitled in student behavior management and redirection.
Supports faculty and classroom needs with proactive and diligent approach. Passionate about helping
students and offers proven skills developed over ten years of related experience, Versed in school |

- standards. nd strategies to.optimize leaming for any students needs.

'
. .
* . o

Work Experience . .

" Lead Transltion Specialist _
Granite State Independent Living - Manchester, NH Lo .
August 2023 to Present . 5

* Serves as lead Instructor of the day-to -day . academic activities. ’ "

« Oversees the developmeut of the new ELO's {extended learning opponunitxes) to respond to Identlf‘ ed
student needs,

+ Directs staff in recruitment, intake and progression through the pmgram experience anﬁ back to school
‘and other appropriate service.

» Works with Progrem Administrators and stakeholders (Regional Advisory-Group) to-continually review
and evaluate all aspects of the program - assess process effectiveriess and full acadernic rigor.

instructlona Assistant/ Registed Behavior Tech -
SAUB Schogl District - Conord, NH
March 2018 to Present

* Supported student learning objectlves through personai:zed and small group assmstance
= Provided support to help students with special needs learn and grow.

« Provided support during classes, group fessons and ¢lassroom activities..
- Delivered curriculum In both one-on-one lessons and group learning environments, - v

» Used behavior modeling and specialized teaching techniques to share and reinforce social skills.
- Provided support during classes, group lessons and classtoom activities

» Assessed student assignments to check quality and completeness before submission for grading

-

Freelance Writer. P e .

Freelance - Concord, NH i .
July 2005 to Present

» Wrote and poéted content for company blog, keeping customers updated and engaged
*+ Wrete and edited long- and short-form copy far blogs, websites, social media, presentations, training
"materials and more )

« Wrote in several styles and voices for website, print and internal documents 4



.“
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* Shaped the strateglc direction of copy by c'ollaboratin'g with marketing and retail partners

"« Prioritized workflow and managed schedules to deliver completed projects under deadline.

Residential Counselor and lnstructional Assistant ) .. -
Spaulding Youth Center - Northfield, NH N
March 2014 to'August 2015 T . . ,

« Counseled students with'mental health disorders such as emotionally handicapped, learning disabléd,

-neuro- behaviorally impaired, autistic, mental[y challenged or delinquent.boys and girls or adolescents

» Supervised residential and day treatment children during class and on field trips

» Supported student learning ob;ectwes through personalized and small group assistance.

« Provided support to help-students with special needs leain and grow.

+ Counseled cliants to he!p them understand and overcome personal; soclal and behavloral problems

* « Consulted with other staff members regarding treatment plans as deemed approprlate by team leader,

" Su bstit‘utt\z Teacher ‘

Manchester School District - Manchester, NH
September 2007 {o June 2015 | ,

*» Instructed up to 35 students individually and in groups

+ Adapted teaching methods and materials to meet students’ varying needs and interests

.« Set up lesson materlals, bulletin board displays afd demonstraticns

* Encouraged students with special académic interests to fully pursue those subjects
+ Worked one on one with students with special needs.

T Upheld classroorn routines ta support student envirenments and maintain consistent schedules.

+ Followed classroom plans left_by class teacher to continue student education and remforce core

" concepts.

+ Repeatedly requested as substitute teacher by teachers based on excellant past referrals and trusted
performance.

.‘Educaﬁén

Master of Arts In Creative Writing : .
Southern New Hampshire University - Hooksett, NH

- Auqust 2007 to 2009

Skills. L .

+ Managing classroom for diverse populations Expertise in Creative Writing

. Ex;;enise in English and special-needs classrooms Diverse ¢lassroom settings
» Experience with special-needs students Strong coilaborator

* Positive reinforcement Teaching/tutoring

« Creative imagination stimulation Creative questioning

« Student motivation Critical thinking )

. Aé!ep! at working with special needs children Outstanding social skills

» Special educatioﬁ Classroom discipline )

« Curriculum-Based Lessons -
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Certifications and Licenses
' CPR Certification. - -
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CAREER BRIEF o | '

. Dynarhic and creative pardprofessional with 20+ years of experience working withi students of all ages ina *.”
myrigd of settings. Fiexible, eunthusiastic, team player with leadership skills and ability to engage in open
minded collaboration. Enjoys developing innovative, hands-on curriculum with differentiated instruction for
unique learning expériences’ Well versed in supporting students and dedicated to instilling confidence and self-.
esteem. Committed to building strong connections and positive relationships with students, parents, coworkers
and the communiity. Excited to foster an atmosphere that engages and inspires.

*

- SKILLS . ) . .
o Professional and dependable @  Excellent interpersonal skills @ Strong leadership qualities
e Innovativeand optimistic ~ e Proven writien and oral skills e  Enthusiastic motivator
¢ Ambitious and eager toteam o Effective communicator ® Versatile and compassionate

APPLICABLE AND RELATED WORK EXPERIENCE, .

Granite Stite. Indcpendent Living, IMPACCT Academy, T ransition Specialist, Concord, NH (2021-Present)
o Establish and support post-secondary transition goals for students with disabilities _ o
.+ Inspire students to actively engage in their education and understand the relevance to future career goals
o . Create, 8evelop end maintain relationships with local school district staff, adolescents, parents and
. service providers: _ '

* Build and foster community connections, and relationships with local business .
Hopkinton Middle High School, inclusion Fi acili!a:or{lns:rucriomi! Assistant, Hopkinton, NH (2018-2021) .
Engaged with Special Educdtion Department team members to plan for/assess student leaming
e Used knowledge of unique leaming styles to create measurable goal oriented instruction
. " Wore many hats (1v1; general classroom IA, Special Ed. Para, substitute, field trip planning etc.)

*
&

Had direct input and warked-collaboratively on writing/developing IEP’s and curriculum
Established rapport with parents/guardians to facilitate communication and academic progress

Henniker Community, School, 5*-8" Special Ed Literacy Paraprofessional, Henniker, NH (2014-2018)
Differentiated instructional design within programs to engage diverse student leaming needs
Assisted students in literacy development and academic endeavors in a variety of settings )
Worked collaboratively with teachers and other staff to implement student academic/behavior plans.
Managed student behaviors to ensure the best possible learning environment '

® 09

Dynamite Sound Productions, Disc Jockey and Company Partner, New England Area (ug '04-Present)
e Coordinate a variety of productions to meet individual and group needs and expectations

Serve as primary point of contact between clients, including facilitating meetings and planning

Work under pressure; improvise, plan/manage timelines, control flow of important events.

Maintain high reviews and positive experiences to foster satisfied customers and repeat clients ™

Responsible for all aspects of running a small business and fostering an impeccable reputation

.0 & @ @

-



T he. leager Newspaper Bz—weekb: Columnist/Feature Wruer Hillsboro, NH (Sept 09-June I 0)
Responsible “for generating story pitches and composing and editing my own column -
Successfully planned, navigated and facilitated numerous interviews
Built contacts with many local citizens, programs, and orgatiizations :
- Handled press coverage penned entertainment stories, and researched and wrote feature amcles
Penn Yan Mrda’!e Schoo! Teacher/Facilitator for 21" Centwy Program, Penn Yan, NY (Aug 02 -Dec 03)

o Successfully developed and implemented after school program activities

o Adapted various motivational strategies to engage students academically and keep them on task

e Generated contact leads for new programs and networked with contacts to actualize programing

e Actedas one-on-one mentor support for several students, with focus on goal complenon

_ Fmger Lakes Parent Network, Juvemle Respite Worker, Pénn Yan, NY (Aug 02-Dec. 03)
e Planned numerous children’s group and individual outings, in-home respites, and on-site funcuons
. & Learned how to facilifate an environment conducive to students’ emotional growth

"o - Adapted group management and program plannmg appropriate for children of diverse ablhnes

Pat’s Peak Ski Area, PSIA Lv1 Certified Skn Instructor, Henmker NH (Dec 99-April 2010) '
o Taught an average'of 6-8 lessons per day to children, teens and adults of all ages . o

. o Instructed school program lessons, responsible for 50-75 adolescents-daily :

e Designed and implemented a variety of iesson plans to meet learners' needs
'@ Variegated instruction for daf"ferent learning styles, with attention to skilt mastery-and enjoyment

Mount Royal Academy, Academic Tutor, Ski Program Coordinator, Substitule, Sunapee, 'NH (2008-2011 )
* o Worked with teachers and parents {o determine individual student needs for tutoring
o Planned and facilitated appropriate tutoring sessions in a range of subjects and levels.
e Coordinated group of 68 students 112" grade and all parent chaperones for Ski Program
e Responsibilities included safety of all involved, smooth running of 6-week program, delegating tasks,
handling emergencies, ensuring completed paperwork and financial transfers, communicating
effectively with all involved agencies incliding MRA, Ski Mountain, transportation and parents

Richard E. Byrd Academy, Internship in 8" Grade Multi-Level Classroom, Chicago, IL (Jan 03-March 03)
e Navigated and gained knowledge of challenges facing students and teachers in urban classrooms
e Tailored lessons to meet the.needs of the-students
¢ Nurtured and inspired students to reach for their dreams -

EDUCATION AND CERTIFICATIONS:

. Keuka College, Keuka Park’ NY (Sept 00-Dec 03)
"« Three completed years - Major in Secondary English Education g
.» Education courses including: Educational Psycholégy, Foundations of Education, Early Human ,
Development, Study of C}nld:en s therature Diverse Learners ’
*  Bishop Brady High Scham', Concord. NH (96-00)
"' e College preparatory studies, Honors Diploma

Youth Development Practitioner - NH (October 2022)
Para H Certification - NH (April '19)
"CPI Certification mlon-vwlem Crisis Prevention and Imerventwn) NH (Sepr 19) .



